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PART |

The information in this annual report contains eéntforward-looking statements, including statersaetated to our business prospects
and strategies, the markets for our products ansises, and trends in our business and marketsithetive risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results may differ materially from the rasudiscussed in these forward-looking statemergstdfs that might cause such a difference
include those discussed in “Business,” “Risk FastdrManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Fine€ondition and Results of
Operations” and elsewhere in this annual report.

Iltem 1. Busines:

Overview

We are a network specialist focused on networkoigt®ns that enable converged, next-generatiohi@atures, optimized to handle the
broad array of high-bandwidth communications sewilied upon by business and consumer end Werprovide equipment, software and
services that support the transport, switchingreggtion, service delivery and management of vaiitkso and data traffic on communications
networks.

Our Converged Packet Optical, Packet NetworkingjdapTransport and Software products are usedyihaally or as part of an
integrated, programmable solution, in networks afegt by communications service providers, cableatpes, governments, enterprises,
research and education institutions, content semioviders and other network operators acrosgltiee. Our products allow network
operators to scale capacity, increase transmisgieads, allocate network traffic and deliver sewito end users. Our network solutions also
include an integrated software suite that provitesvork and service management capabilities thif¢ oar product portfolio, facilitating
automation and software-defined programmabilitgti@ble efficient service delivery. To complement jpwduct portfolio, we offer a broad
range of Network Transformation Solutions and edatupport services that help our customers desfgimize, deploy, manage and maintain
their networks. We believe that the close, collakive partnership with customers enabled by ouangement model and services offering is al
important component of our network specialist apptoand a significant differentiator for Ciena watlr customers.

Rapid proliferation of and reliance by end usersrupommunications services and devices, increasdulity and growth in cloud-based
services have fundamentally affected the demarategdlupon communications networks and how thegesigned. Network operators face a
challenging and rapidly changing environment tlegjuires that their network infrastructures be rolea®ugh to address increasing capacity
needs and be flexible enough to adapt to new agtjgit and service offerings. Network operatorscamapeting to distinguish their service
offerings to end users and generate revenue, widleaging the costs required to implement and miaitheir networks. To address these
business, infrastructure and service delivery enaiés, we believe network operators need a flekildastructure that can be adapted to
support a variety of applications and controllegbtigh the use of software.

Our OP"Architecture is designed to meet these challenggadviding increased scalability and programmahilas well as network-level
software applications to control and configurertieéwork dynamically. Through this network approask,seek to enable high-capacity,
configurable infrastructures that can adapt tocthenging needs of end-users and the applicati@idtby require, while providing flexible
interfaces for the integration of computing, steramd network resources. By increasing networkljlity for service delivery, reducing
required network elements and enabling increasale st reduced cost, our solutions simplify netwo#kt the same time, our approach
facilitates the creation of new service offering®ating business and operational value for outocusrs. Our OPArchitecture, which
underpins our solutions offering and guides oueaesh and development strategy, is described nudlyeifi “Strategy” below.

Certain Financial Information and Segment Data

We generated revenue of $2.1 billion in fiscal 2043 compared to $1.8 billion in fiscal 2012 . Fwre information regarding our results
of operations, see “Management's Discussion andlyiseof Financial Condition and Results of Opamas” in Item 7 of Part Il of this annual
report. During the first quarter of fiscal 201364 reorganized its internal organization structung the management of its business into new
operating segments. See Note 18 to the Consolidkteahcial Statements found in Item 8 of Part Ithaé annual report. As a result of this
reorganization, our operations are currently orgehinto four separate operating segments: “ComeeRacket Optical,” “Packet Networking,”
“Optical Transport,” and “Software and Services.”

The matters discussed in this “Business” secti@ulshbe read in conjunction with the Consolidat@thRcial Statements found in Item 8
of Part Il of this annual report, which include aatshal financial information about our operatinggsnents, total assets, revenue, measures of
profit and loss, and financial information aboubgephic areas and customers representing grbatel0% of revenue.
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Corporate Information and Access to SEC Reports

We were incorporated in Delaware in November 1982 @mpleted our initial public offering on Febry&r, 1997. Our principal
executive offices are located at 7035 Ridge Roadhdder, Maryland 21076. Our telephone number i8)X494-5700, and our website address
is www.ciena.com. We make our annual reports omF0-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, currenorépon Form 8-K, and amendments
to those reports, available free of charge in theestors" section of our website as soon as reddppracticable after we file these reports
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (tleC'$. We routinely post the reports above, recemtsiand announcements, financial
results and other important information about ausibess on our website at www.ciena.com. Infornmationtained on our website is not a part
of this annual report.

On December 12, 2013 we announced our intentidratsfer the listing of our common stock from thaSDAQ Global Select Market to
the New York Stock Exchange, effective on or alidetember 23, 2013. Ciena common stock will contiiouieade under the stock symbol
“CIEN.”

Industry Background

The markets in which we sell our communicationsveeking solutions have been subject to signifiagmnges in recent years, including
rapid growth in network traffic, increased mobiliBxpanded service offerings, and evolving end dsarands. These conditions have created
market opportunities and business challenges,l@dhiave changed competitive landscapes for Ciedédts®customers. Existing and emerg
network operators are competing to distinguishrtbetvice offerings and rapidly introduce diffefiated, revenue-generating services. At the
same time, network operators continue to seek twagmnetwork expense and operate their businessf@siply. These dynamics are driving
technology convergence of network features, fumstiand layers, virtualization of certain networkdtions, and increasing demand for
software-based network programmability. We belithese market dynamics will cause network operdtoesiopt communications network
infrastructures that are increasingly more autothatgbust and configurable.

Network Traffic Growth Driving Increased Capacitgdirements and Transmission Spe

Optical networks, which carry voice, video and daadfic using multiple wavelengths of light acrd#ser optic cables, have experienced &
multi-year period of strong traffic growth, and industnalysts project continued growth for the foreskealiure. Increasing network traffic
being driven by growing use of, and reliance umohroad range of communications services by consam&business end users, as well a
expansion of bandwidth-intensive wireline and wiss services. Mobile applications, including Inétyvideo and data services from the
proliferation of smartphones, tablets and otheelgss devices are further increasing network traffusiness customers seeking to improve
automation and productivity are increasingly degeridipon bandwidth-intensive communications sesvibat facilitate global operations,
employee mobility and seamless access to critiesiness applications and data. Enterprise techydtegds such as virtualization, cloud
computing and machine-to-machine connections @@ new capacity requirements on networks. Astirae time, an increasing portion of
network traffic is being driven by growth of consemrroriented applications and adoption of mobile braadband technologies. These include
peer-to-peer Internet applications, video serviogdtimedia downloads, cloud-based consumer ses\aoe online gaming. We believe that
this traffic growth will require that network opéoes add capacity or transition to higher capac#tworks with increased transmission speeds

Multiservice Traffic and Transition to Softwi-Defined Programmable Network Architectures

We expect that the broadening mix of high-bandwidtta and video communications services will rejupgrades to existing network
infrastructures, including wireless and wirelindwarks. We believe that this mix of high-bandwidtind latency-sensitive data traffic, and an
increased focus on controlling network costs, aindrdy a transition from multiple, purpose-builtcadisparate SONET/SDH-based networks t
a more efficient, converged, multi-purpose packgteal network architecture. The industry has prasgly experienced such network
technology transitions, and these upgrade and imesg cycles tend to happen over multi-year periéds instance, from the mid 1980s to the
mid 1990s, service providers focused network upggaxh the transition required to digitize voicdfttaFrom the mid 1990s to the mid 2000s,
service providers focused network upgrades onrtmsition to SONET/SDH networks designed to rejididndle substantially more network
traffic. We believe that the industry is currerglyperiencing a network transition to flexible, nipitirpose OTN/Ethernet packb&sed networ
architectures that more efficiently handle a graywinix of high-bandwidth communications services argteater concentration of data traffic.

Drivers for Network Transformatic
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We believe the following areas are illustrativelud significant transition in the services, applmas and performance required from
today's networks, and we believe that transitiodhfumdamentally change how communications netwankesdesigned and managed.

» Mohbility. The emergence of smart mobile devices and taliiatsdeliver integrated voice, audio, photo, videmail and mobile
Internet capabilities is rapidly changing the seeviype and magnitude of data traffic carried bseless networks. The increase in
availability and improved ease of use of mobile swelsed applications expands the reach of virtudssgvices beyond a wireline
connection. For instance, consumer-driven videogamding are being virtualized, allowing broad ascesgardless of the device or
the network used. Because most wireless traffimaliely travels over a wireline network in orderéach its destination, growth in
mobile communications continues to place demands wgreline networks.

e “Cloud” Services.Cloud services are characterized by the sharimpiputing, storage and network resources to impesegiomics
through higher utilization of networked elemenisahd network service providers are centralizirgsthresources in order to offer
usage-based and metered services that are hostetehg across a network. Prevalent cloud-basedcgsrinclude Platform as a
Service (PaaS), Software as a Service (SaaS) fmagdthucture as a Service (laaS). As a result, lsmahterprises and consumers can
subscribe to an expanding range of cloud serviresplace local computing and storage requireméatgjer enterprises and data
center operators may use private clouds to coreelitheir own resources and public clouds to accodate peak demand situations,
sometimes in combination. Today, infrastructuraste®r dynamically allocate centralized storage emehputing resources. As a
result, network architectures must be capable aptg in real time to changing capacity requiretaemd locations.

» Network Virtualizatior. Virtualization is the process of decoupling plegsil T or communications assets from the logicalises or
capabilities they can provide. This approach hasynagpealing attributes, such as minimizing expenstsources while adding
flexibility and scale. The virtualization of comjng, storage and network resources elevates the wdlconnectivity and drives
demand for network infrastructures that offer gee@grogrammability, scale, and flexibility. Nowgse virtualization principles are
being applied to communications networks. Netwgr&rators are seeking to virtualize costly, singleetion or dedicated network
appliances, such as firewalls and WAN-acceleratorsleploying their functionality on centralizeargeric servers. Consequently,
fewer devices are needed and those devices catbefigured to serve a variety of network functions

e Machineto-Machine (M2M) Applicationsin the past, communications services largelyteeléo the connection of locations. With
growth of and increasing reliance upon mobile aggpions, this model has shifted to connectivitpebple-to-people or people-to-
content. As the number of networked connectionebéen devices and servers grows, M2M-related traffexpected to represent an
increasing portion of Internet traffic. Today, we &#eginning to see growth in deviceeevice connection requirements. In additio
increasing network capacity requirements, thisdraiso dramatically increases the complexity ofremivity and the number of
connections the network must accommodate and mamagee connections provide valageled services and allow users to share
that can be monitored and analyzed by applicatiesisling on various devices. We expect servicéitredlating to the interconnectis
of machines or devices to grow as Internet anddctmntent delivery, smartgrid applications, healire and safety monitoring,
resource/inventory management, home entertainrnensumer appliances and other mobile data apmitatiecome more widely
adopted.

Strategy

We believe that the shift that is underway in netnarchitectures to next-generation, convergedstfuctures represents significant, long
term opportunities for our business. We believé tharket trends underlying this shift, including tbroliferation of devices running mobile
web applications, the prevalence of video applicetj the increase in machineft@chine connections, and the shift of enterprisecamsume
applications to cloud-based or virtualized netwenkironments, are indicative of increasing usedepukndence by consumers and enterprise
upon a growing variety of broadband applications services. We expect that these services willicoatto require network operators to in
in converged next-generation network infrastrucutat are more automated, open and software progable.

Our corporate strategy to capitalize on these niahj@amics, promote operational efficiency and evofitable growth of our business
includes the following initiatives:

Promotion of outOP"A rchitecture for Next-Generation Network§8he services and applications running on commuioicatnetworks
require that more of the traffic on these netwdr&packet-oriented. The traditional approach te thi
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problem has been to add IP routing capability atyn@oints of intersection in the network. As capaadieeds grow, this approach becomes
unnecessarily complex and costly. We reduce theazascomplexity of growing networks with a prograable infrastructure that brings
together the reliability and capacity of opticatwerking with the flexibility and economics of paatiknetworking technologies. Combining
these attributes with network level applicationsates an approach we call our "ORchitecture". Our OPArchitecture leverages the
convergence of optical and packet networking tdoenaetwork scale, applies advanced control plaftevare for network programmability,
and enables cloud-level applications to integraté@timize network resources — along with computind storage resources — in a
virtualized environment. The software-driven asp@&dtthis architecture become increasingly impdréanour service provider customers seek
to rapidly create new, differentiated services bamenext-generation architectures. We intend ¢onate the scalability, programmability,
flexibility and cost-effectiveness attributes ofr @P" Architecture, and we see opportunities in offe@ngortfolio of carrierclass solutions th
facilitates the transition to converged, next-gatien networks.

Alignment of Research and Development InvestméntGvowth OpportunitiesWe seek to ensure that our product developmeritinis
and investments are closely aligned with our magketvth opportunities, shifts in network architaetsiand the changing dynamics faced by
network operators. We are investing in our @¥chitecture with current development efforts foed®n expanding packet capabilities in our
Packet Networking and Converged Packet Opticalyrtsdfor metro and service aggregation applicat@érgson optimizing our core network
solutions for application in metro networks. Ousearch and development efforts seek to extend @amekege our existing technologies,
including our WavelLogic coherent optical procedso40G and 100G optical transport, and introdu@@@ and greater transmission speed
the packet area, we are increasing the scale guabitity of our packet offerings and integratingrefards-based open control interfaces. In th
software area, we are enhancing our network managieamd planning applications. We are also focusin@itiatives to increase software-
defined programmability and control of networks andlevelop network-level software applicationg t@nfigure networks and support new
service introduction.

Evolution of our Go-to-Market ModélVe seek to evolve our go-to-market sales modem footh coverage and engagement perspectives

Coverage Through direct sales resources as well as oatesfic channel relationships, our coverage modekissed on
penetrating high-growth geographic markets, sellitig key customer segments and addressing additieiwork applications with our
solutions. We seek to enhance our brand interratigrexpand our geographic reach and increaseehahare in international markets,
including Brazil, the Middle East, Russia, Japad bia. We intend to pursue opportunities to dsifgrour customer base beyond our
traditional customers. We are expanding our sdfestgto: capture opportunities arising from ept&e migration to, and increased
reliance upon, cloud-based services; build uporreputation with government agencies and researdleducational institutions as a
trusted network equipment supplier; and targetergervice providers and other network operatorsrging as a result of network
modernization drivers and the adoption of new comication services. We seek to expand the applicatfemur solutions, including met
aggregation and submarine networks, and in sugbatbud-based services, business Ethernet seraimgsnobile backhaul. We intend to
pursue selling initiatives and strategic channg@asfunities, including relationships with key rdeed. We also intend to sell into enterprise
end users through our service provider customgstesis integrators and value-added resellers.

EngagementOur strategy is to leverage our close, collabeeatélationships with customers in the design, tigraent,
implementation and support of their networks angdrimote a close alignment of our solutions witktomer network priorities. We
believe that this engagement model is a key diffigaéor for our business and provides us with ueigsight into the business and netw
needs of our customers. We seek to expand our Meffransformation Solutions offering to addressrikévork modernization and
service delivery demands of our customers, asaegdtheir desire to derive additional value fromirthetwork infrastructures. We believe
this services-oriented solutions offering shifts ealue proposition beyond the sale of our nextegation communications networking
equipment and allows us to play a key role in tbgigh and evolution of our customers' networksufpsrt their strategic business
objectives. By understanding our customers’ inftettire and business needs, and the evolving nsairk@thich they compete, we believe
our engagement approach creates additional busangissperational value for our customers.

Business optimization to yield operating leveraljée seek to improve the operational efficienciesunbusiness and gain additional
operating leverage. We are focused on the transfitomand redesign of certain business procesget®nss, and resources. These initiatives
include additional investments, re-engineering amgmation of certain key business processes,dimgiuthe engagement of strategic partners
or resources to assist with select business fumetio addition, we are focused on optimizing ays@y chain, including efforts to reduce our
material and overhead costs in an effort to in@edBciency and reduce the cost to produce outyrbsolutions. These initiatives include
portfolio and process optimization, reducing our
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fulfillment, shipping and logistics expense, andritifying ways to drive improved efficiencies iretdesign and development of our solutions.
We seek to leverage these opportunities to prothet@rofitable growth of our business.

Customers and Markets

Our customer base, and the geographic marketswstdnoer segments into which we sell our produatissemvices, have expanded in
recent years. As a result of the industry dynardissussed above, additional network operators stipgacnew communications services and
applications continue to emerge. The network itftemsure needs of our customers vary, depending tipeir size, location, the nature of their
end users and the services that they deliver applosu We sell our product and service solutiomsugh our direct sales force and third party
channel partners to end user network operatofseifidlowing customer segments.

Communications Service Providers

Our service provider customers include regionaional and international wireline and wireless s, as well as service provider
consortia offering services over submarine netwotkg customers include AAPT, Allstream, AT&T, Atadta Japan Cable, Bell Canada, BT,
Cable & Wireless, CenturyLink, France Telecom, $ap& Cable, Korea Telecom, PLDT, Rascom, ReliaB&\-ME-WE 4, SingTel,
Southern Cross, Sprint, Tata Communications, Talefg Telmex, Telus, Verizon, Vimpelcom, Vodafomel &O Communications.
Communications service providers are our histoigcatomer base and continue to represent a signifinajority of our revenue. We provide
service providers with products from the wireliretwiork core to its edge where end users gain acCessservice provider solutions address
growing bandwidth demand from multiservice traffiowth and support key service provider offeririgsluding carrier-managed services,
wide area network ("WAN") consolidation, data cerated inter-site connectivity, wireless backhaud &nsiness Ethernet services.

Cable & Multiservice Operators (MSO)

Our customers include leading cable and multisergjoerators in the United States and internatipn@liese customers include Comcast,
Cox, RCN, Rogers, Time Warner Cable and Virgin Me@ur cable and multiservice operator customéysumon us for carrier-grade,
Ethernet transport and switching products and kigbacity coherent optical transport. Our platfoatiew cable operators to integrate voice,
video and data applications over a converged itrfragire and to scale their networking infrastruetio keep ahead of the bandwidth and
application demands of their subscribers. Our petslsupport key cable applications including bussnEthernet services, wireless backhaul,
broadcast and digital video, voice over IP, angtgidn demand.

Enterprise

Our enterprise customers include large, multi-aitemercial organizations, including participantsha financial, health care,
transportation, utilities and retail industries.r@olutions enable enterprises to leverage netnes@urces to achieve operational improvem
increased automation and information technology sductions. Our products enable ins&e connectivity between data centers, salesaes]
manufacturing plants, retail stores and researdhrdamelopment centers, using an owned or leasedtgrfiiber network or a carrier-managed
service. Our products facilitate key enterpriseligpfions including IT virtualization, cloud compng, business Ethernet services, business
continuity, online collaboration, video conferergiitow latency networking and WAN encryption. Ouogucts also enable our enterprise
customers to prevent unexpected network downtindesmsure the safety, security and availabilityhefit data.

Content Service Providers

Our customers include global providers of a diveesgye of Internet content services and applicatguth as search, social media, video,
real-time communications and cloud-based offertiogsonsumers and enterprises. Our customers reaaissive scale, low latency, reliability
and performance to interconnect critical data asrded connect end-users to network resourcesartdrd. Our customers leverage high-
capacity coherent optics, packet switching, autechatrvice provisioning and software-based networitrol to deliver flexible, high-
performance connectivity services on demand intaafized network environment.

Government, Research and Education
Our government customers include federal and s@acies in the United States as well as internaltigovernment entities. Our
government and research and education customerscstake advantage of technology innovation, imprtheir information infrastructure a

facilitate increased collaboration. Our solutioeatfire ultra-high capacity and service flexibility
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to meet the requirements of supercomputing syst@ussolutions offering promotes network assuraseeurity and reliability while
improving network performance, capacity and flelitijpi We collaborate with leading institutions toopide government, research and
education communities with optimized networks ti@timize cost and complexity, through initiativést support intelligent control plane
technologies, interoperability and scalability.

Products and Services

Our product portfolio consists of our Convergedkea©ptical, Packet Networking and Optical Transpooducts. Our network solutions
also include an integrated software suite, whidviges network management capabilities that unifiyproduct portfolio and provide
automation, softwardefined programmability and management featurgsethable efficient service delivery. These produitigether with ou
network transformation solutions and support sewiafferings, allow us to offer customers comprshansolutions to address their
communications network priorities.

Converged Packet Optical

Our Converged Packet Optical portfolio includesnmeking solutions optimized for the convergencealfierent optical transport, OTN
switching and packet switching.

Utilizing our coherent 40G and 100G optical transpechnology, our 6500 Packet-Optical Platformvidies a flexible, scalable dense
wavelength division multiplexing (DWDM) solutionahadds capacity to core, regional and metro nédsvand enables efficient transport at
high transmission speeds. Our 6500 Packet-Optiatfiodm features our WaveLogic coherent opticalggssors. Our third generation of this
custom silicon chipset facilitates deployment oaesting fiber plant (terrestrial and submarineples capacity to 40G, 100G and greater
transmission speeds, and minimizes the need ftainaretwork equipment, such as amplifiers, regeioes and dispersion compensating
devices. Our 6500 Packet-Optical Platform alsouide$ certain integrated switching elements, adufgessarket demand for converged
network features, functions and layers to driveenobust and cost-effective network infrastructuiidss platform — which includes several
chassis sizes and a comprehensive set of line earcsn be utilized from the customer premises, wlspace and power are limited, to the
metropolitan/regional core, where the need for lugbacity and carrier-class performance is esdentia

Our Converged Packet Optical portfolio also inckigeoducts that provide packet switching capabititgllocate network capacity
efficiently and enable rapid service delivery. G480 Reconfigurable Switching System includes alfaaf multi-terabit reconfigurable
switching systems that utilize intelligent meshweking to provide resiliency and feature an ingggd optical control plane to automate the
provisioning and bandwidth control of high-capada#rvices. These platforms flexibly support a nfiCarrier Ethernet/MPLS, OTN, WDM,
and SONET/SDH switching to facilitate the transitio a service-enabling infrastructure. Our CoreBlior® Multiservice Optical Switch and
5430 Reconfigurable Switching System offer multigss, multi-protocol switching systems that condate the functionality of an add/drop
multiplexer, digital cross-connect and packet siwitdo a single, high-capacity intelligent switchisystem. These products address both core
and metro segments of communications networks apdast key managed services, including Ethernet/TPxiate Line and IP services.

Packet Networkin

Our Packet Networking products allow customerstiliza the automation and capacity created by camv@rged Packet Optical products
in core and metro networks and to deliver new, meegenerating services to consumers and enterpriseselproducts have applications fi
the edge of metro and core networks, where theyeaate traffic, to the access tiers of networksrertieey can be deployed to support wire
backhaul infrastructures and deliver business skataces. As a key element of our ORchitecture, our Packet Networking products faaté
network simplicity and cost effectiveness, incliglreduced costs associated with power and spacengsared to traditional IP routing
network designs. Our Packet Networking products atsable a flexible and open architecture thateeslthe complexity of growing networks
and adding services.

Our Packet Networking products principally inclualeg 3000 family of service delivery switches and/e® aggregation switches, the
5000 series of service aggregation switches, ané&thernet packet configuration for the 5410 SenAggregation Switch. These products
support the access and aggregation tiers of comuatimns networks and have principally been depldgesiipport wireless backhaul
infrastructures and business data services. Emmaaphisticated, carrier-grade Ethernet switchéofinology, these products deliver "quality
of service" capabilities, virtual local area netkiog and switching functions, and carrier-graderapens, administration, and maintenance
features. This segment also includes stand-aloredband products that transition voice networksuggport Internet-based telephony, video
services and DSL.
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Our Packet Networking products utilize our Serviogare Operating System ("SAOS") in conjunction witlr network management
software suite to reduce customer operating expandeaccelerate network operators' time-to-revéouleusiness, mobile and consumer data
services. We have also integrated key featurestiridutes of SAOS on our Converged Packet-Oppicadlucts to ensure seamless service
delivery and operations between our Packet Netwgrkind Converged Packet-Optical portfolios.

Optical Transport

Our Optical Transport products include stand-aM¢ieM and SONET/SDH-based optical transport solutittreg add capacity to core,
regional and metro networks and enable cost-effeethd efficient transport of voice, video and dedéfic at high transmission speeds. The
products in this segment principally include th®@@2dvanced Services Platform, Corestream® Agitical Transport System, 5100/5200
Advanced Services Platform, Common Photonic La@&l(), and 6100 Multiservice Optical Platform. Oyptidal Transport portfolio include
our traditional SONET/SDH transport and data nekivgy products, as well as certain enterprise-ogérntansport solutions that support
storage and LAN extension, interconnection of dataters, and virtual private networks.

Software and Services
Network Management and Network Control Software

Our integrated software offering includes our Onet@a Unified Management System, an integrated ndtvand service management
software that unifies our product portfolio, proggdautomated management features and enablesmfervice delivery. Our network
management tools offer a comprehensive set of ifiumgtfrom monitoring network performance and psauiing the network, to full service
level management across a variety of network lagedsdomains. These software solutions can tradikidual services across multiple prod
suites, facilitating planned network maintenanegage detection and identification of customersavices affected by network performance.
Our integrated software suite is a robust, seraigare framework that improves network utilizatiordavailability, while delivering enhanced
performance monitoring and reliability. By incraaginetwork automation, minimizing network downtiared monitoring network performan
and service metrics, our software tools enableotoets to improve cost effectiveness, while incregsine performance and functionality of
their network operations. This software suite awtudes Ciena OnePlanner, a suite of planningstt@t helps network operators utilize their
networks more efficiently, and our ON-Center® Netwv& Service Management Suite, Ethernet Serviceaddar, Optical Suite Release and
network level applications.

Network Transformation Solutions and Support Sesvic

To complement our product portfolio, we offer adqaaange of consulting and support services thptdie customers design, optimize,
deploy, manage and maintain their communicationsor&s. We believe that our broad set of serviderofgs is an important component of
our network specialist approach and a significaffieigntiator from our competitors. We believe tbat services offering and our close
collaborative engagement with customers provideitis valued insight into network and business ahades faced by our customers, enabling
them to modernize and gain value from their netwofilastructures. Our network transformation saln$ offering enables us to work closely
with our customers in the assessment, plannindogeyent, and transformation of their networks. Véidve that customers place significant
value on the strategic, consultative engagemefdsdafd by our services offering and on our abiigypartner with them through services-
oriented solutions that address their network arginess needs.

Our services and support portfolio includes théfeing offerings:

» Network transformation solutions, includil

o Network analysis, planning and design;

o Network optimization, migration, modernization aagbsurance servici
* Maintenance and support services, incluc

= helpdesk and technical assista

= training:

= spares and logistics managem

= engineering dispatch and siie professional servict

= equipment repair and replacement;

= software maintenance and upde
» Deployment services, including turnkey instadiatand turndp and test service
* Network management and operations center senace
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» Project management services, including staging msiparation and installation support activi
We provide these services using a combinationtefial resources and qualified third party serpiagners.
Product Development

Our industry is subject to rapid technological depenents, evolving service delivery requirementandards and protocols, and shifts in
customer and end user network demand. To remaipetitne, we must continually enhance existing picichlatforms by adding new featu
and functionality, increasing transmission speettbaapacity, and introducing new network solutitiret address multiservice traffic growth
and enable new service offerings. Our researctdaadlopment strategy has been to pursue technolmgyergence. This enables us to
consolidate network features and functionalitie®ansingle platform, helping network operatorshiext robust, feature-rich networks that
require fewer network elements and address castespnd power limitations. We believe these coregrgext-generation networking
solutions promote rapid service delivery and alletwork operators to derive business and operdti@tae from their network infrastructur:

We are investing in our OFArchitecture, our approach to building next-gernierahetworks. Our OPArchitecture, which underpins our
solutions offering and guides our research andldpweent strategy, leverages the convergence ofand packet technologies to increase
network scale cost effectively, while emphasizinfsare-enabled programmability, automation andnapéerfaces. Through this network
approach, we seek to enable high-capacity, cordlgarinfrastructures that can be managed and atlbpteetwork-level applications, and to
provide flexible interfaces for the integrationaafmputing and storage resources in a unified nétwour product development initiatives also
include design and development work intended toesfdgrowing opportunities, such as metropolitawakk applications, enterprise
networking, cloud infrastructure and packet-basdistructure solutions for next-generation, higipacity networks. To address these
opportunities and realize our network vision, ourrent development efforts are focused upon:

* Improving and converging technologies across outf@®, including:
o Extending our leadership in 40G, 100G, and 40f1g-haul transpor
o Continued development of our WaveLogic cohergtical processor to improve network capacity, traission speed,
spectral efficiency and reach;
o Expanding packet networking capabilities andufezd for our high-capacity Ethernet aggregatioricweis, for metro and
service aggregation applications, mobile backhadltzusiness Ethernet services;
» Developing products that increase softwlaased network programmability and control, inclggc
o softwaredefined networking control layt
o network level applications that automate varioesvork functions, support new service introductom monetize network
assets; and
o softwarebased virtualization of features or functions triadially supported by hardware network eleme
» Designing solutions that enable network opegatorachieve improved cost and efficiency, inclgdiith respect to power, space and
cost per bit.

Our research and development efforts are also deéaweard portfolio optimization and engineering ©bes intended to drive cost reductions
across our platforms.

To ensure that our product development investmamdssolutions offerings are closely aligned wittrkeademand, we continually seek
input from customers and promote collaboration agnaur product development, marketing and globdd fieganizations. In some cases, we
work with third parties pursuant to technology lises, original equipment manufacturer (OEM) arramggs and other strategic technology
relationships or investments, to develop new coreptsior products, modify existing platforms or oiffemplementary technology to our
customers. In addition, we participate in industngl standards organizations, where appropriateinandporate information from these
affiliations throughout the product developmentqerss.

We regularly review our existing product offerireysd prospective development projects to deternhieie fit within our portfolio and
broader corporate strategy. We assess the manketridk technology evolution, prospective returnroarestment and growth opportunities, as
well as the costs and resources necessary to geantbsupport these products. In recent yearsstoategy has been to pursue technology anc
product convergence that allows us to consolidatkipte network technologies, features or functidres on a single platform, or to control
and manage multiple elements throughout the netivork a single management system, ultimately angatiore robust, integrated and cost-
effective network tools. We have also shifted draitegic development approach from delivering ppiaiducts to providing a focused
combination of networking equipment, software aa/ige solutions that address the business andorletveeds of our customers.
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Within our global products group, we maintain anteaf skilled engineers with extensive experiencthaareas of photonics, packet and
circuit switching, network system design, and enadeetoperating system and network management seft@ar research and development
expense was $379.9 million , $364.2 million and%a8nillion , for fiscal 2011 , 2012 and 2013 ,pestively. For more information regarding
our research and development expense, see “Managieéscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditeomd Results of Operationsi Item 7
of Part Il of this report.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our communications networking solution®tlyh our direct sales resources as well as thretrgtegic channel relationships. In
addition to securing new customers in growth geplgiess and customer market segments, our salesgtrhas focused on building long-term,
consultative relationships with existing custom®&ve believe this engagement model promotes ourar&tapecialist approach, allows us to
address a wider range of applications with ourarasts, and helps ensure the alignment of our espexith our customers’ business and
network requirements. We believe this approach piegides opportunities to participate in futurejpcts relating to the transition or
expansion of existing network infrastructures amdrbss-sell solutions across our portfolio.

Within our global field organization, we maintaimisect sales presence that is organized geogralpharound the following markets: (i)
United States and Canada; (ii) Caribbean and l&atierica; (i) Europe, Middle East and Africa; afid) Asia-Pacific. These regions include
sales personnel that focus on one or more of tlerimg customer segments: communications serviogigers, including traditional wireline
service providers, wireless providers, cable anttisauvice operators, enterprise customers, corgemntice providers and government, rese
and education. Within each geographic area, we taiaispecific teams that focus on a particularaegcountry, customer or market vertical.
These teams include sales management, accournpesiaess, and systems engineers, as well as stategketing, services and commercial
management personnel, who ensure we operate clogthland provide a high level of support to ousttumers. Certain of our global sales
teams also focus on submarine network opporturatigsemerging customer segments including conggmice providers and cloud
infrastructure providers.

We also maintain a global channel program that warih resellers, systems integrators, serviceigess, and other third party
distributors who market and sell our products amdises. Our third party channel sales and ott&ribution arrangements enable us to reach
additional geographic regions and customer segmwfesntend to pursue and foster targeted stratgdtaonel relationships in an effort to
enable us to sell our products as a complememietbrtoader offering of these vendors or integraiocduding, in particular, in support of
enterprise-oriented applications and cloud-basedces. We also see opportunities to leverage thirategic channel relationships to address
additional customer segments, emerging applicafiensur solutions and growth geographies. Ourafsghannel partners has been a key
component in our sales to government, researctedandation and enterprise customers. We believestiagegy and our use of third party
channels afford us expanded market opportunitidsasiuce the financial and operational risk of gntethese additional markets.

To support our sales efforts, we engage in margetativities intended to position and promote awanio as well as our product, software
and service offerings. Our marketing team suppsatss efforts through direct customer interactiodystry events, public relations, industry
analysts, social media, tradeshows, our websiteotivel marketing channels for our customers andredlgpartners.

Operations and Supply Chain Management

Operations personnel within our global productaugrmanage our relationships with our third partynafacturers and manage our supply
chain. In addition, this team also addresses coemtgorocurement and sourcing, product testing aadity, fulfilment and logistics relating
our sales, support and professional services, atdbdition efforts.

We utilize a global sourcing strategy that emplessjrocurement of materials and product manufagjun lower cost regions. We rely
upon third party contract manufacturers, with fie$ in Canada, Mexico, Thailand and the Uniteat&t, to perform nearly all of the
manufacturing of our products. We also rely upardtparty supply partners to perform design andqgiype development, component
sourcing, full production, final assembly, testangd customer order fulfilment. As a result, we exposed to risks associated with the busi
continuity of these third parties and other evemtsonditions affecting the locations where thegrape. We are also exposed to risks assoc
with their markets and business practices includirglevel of corruption or protection of intellaat property. To address customer concerns
and to mitigate the related risks to our businepsrations and intellectual property, we have bredncing the reliance of our supply chain
upon suppliers in China and are currently transitig, or expect to transition, the procurementetain components and the manufacture anc
assembly of our product platforms to alternatetioca.
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We are currently utilizing a direct order fulfilmemodel for the sale of certain products, andemgaged in initiatives to expand this
model to a broader set of products. This modelalas to rely on our third party contract manufeetsi to perform final system integration i
testing prior to shipment of products from therifities directly to our customers. For certain giwots, we continue to perform a portion of the
system assembly, software application, final systeegration and testing internally. We believetttvar sourcing and manufacturing strategy
allows us to conserve capital, lower costs of pobdales, adjust quickly to changes in market detnand operate without dedicating
significant resources to manufacturing-related tpéard equipment. As part of our effort to optimine operations, we continue to focus on
driving cost reductions through sourcing, desigd @ngineering efforts, rationalizing our supply ichand consolidating distribution sites and
service logistics partners. These efforts incluaess optimization and initiatives, such as vendanaged inventory models, to drive
improved efficiencies in our sourcing, logisticgldnlfillment.

Our manufacturers procure components necessaasf@mbly and manufacture of our products basediiospecifications, approved
vendor lists, bills of materials and testing andligy standards. Our manufacturers' activity isdobsn rolling forecasts that we provide to then
to estimate demand for our products. This buildet@cast purchase model exposes us to the rislotiatustomers will not order those
products for which we have forecast sales, orpuiichase less than we have forecast. As a reseiiipaur carrying charges or obsolete mat
charges for components purchased by our manufastihée work closely with our manufacturers to manataterial, quality, cost and delive
times, and we continually evaluate their servicesrisure performance on a reliable and cost-effettsis.

Our products include some components that are jgtapy in nature, only available from one or a dmamber of suppliers, or
manufactured by sole or limited sources responéisiproduction. If component supplies become kajtproduction at a manufacturer is
disrupted or we experience difficulty in our reteiship with a key supplier or manufacturer, we raagounter manufacturing delays that coulc
adversely affect our business.

Backlog

Generally, we make sales pursuant to purchasesisired under framework agreements that govergetheral commercial terms and
conditions of the sale of our products and servi€basse agreements do not obligate customers thase any minimum or guaranteed order
guantities. Our backlog includes orders for produicht have not been shipped and for serviceshthat not yet been performed. In addition,
backlog also includes orders relating to produtas have been delivered and services that havepgeréormed, but are awaiting customer
acceptance under the applicable purchase term&r&hmn our customers may cancel or change theiersrwith limited advance notice, or tf
may decide not to accept these products and ssnattough both cancellation and non-acceptareamérequent. Orders in backlog may be
fulfilled several
quarters following receipt or may relate to muktiay support service obligations. As a result, bagkhould not be viewed as an accurate
indicator of future revenue in any particular pdrio

Our backlog increased from $902.0 million as ofdbetrr 31, 2012 to $1.0 billion as of October 31,20Backlog includes product and
service orders from commercial and government coste combined. Backlog at October 31, 2013 inclagigsoximately $167.3 million ,
primarily related to orders for maintenance andpsupservices, that are not expected to be fill@tiwfiscal 2014. Backlog at October 31,
2012 included approximately $140.5 million , priiharelated to orders for maintenance and suppantises, that were not expected to be
filled within fiscal 2013. Our presentation of bémk may not be comparable with figures presentedthgr companies in our industry.

Seasonality

Like other companies in our industry, we have elgneed quarterly fluctuations in customer actiwtye to seasonal considerations. We
typically experience reductions in order volume @osvthe end of the calendar year, as the procurecyeles of some of our customers slow
and network deployment activity at service provédercurtailed. This seasonality in our order flaxas result in somewhat weaker revenue
results in the first quarter of our fiscal yeare$h seasonal effects do not apply consistenthdanbt always correlate to our financial results.
Accordingly, they should not be considered a rédiahdicator of our future revenue or results oéigtions.

Competition
Competition among communications network solutiendors remains intense. The markets in which wepebdenare characterized by

rapidly advancing and converging technologiespihtiction of new network solutions and selling efdp displace incumbent vendors and
secure market share. Successfully competing irethr@gkets is based on any one or a combinatiomeofoflowing factors:
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e product functionality, speed, capacity, scalabitibd performanc

e price and total cost of ownership of our soluti

* incumbency and existing business relations

» ability to offer comprehensive networking solutipnensisting of equipment, software and networksedting service!

» product development plans and the ability te@donvergence of network features, functions agdrs and meet customers'
immediate and future network requirements;

» flexibility, including ease of integration, produateroperability and integrated managerr

» manufacturing and leatitne capability; an

» services and support capabilit

In this intense and fragmented competitive envirenitnsecuring new opportunities, particularly itermational markets, often requires"
we agree to unfavorable commercial terms or pridimgncial commitments requiring collateralizedfpemance bonds or similar instruments
that place cash resources at risk, and other os@mntractual commitments that place a dispropuat® allocation of risk upon us as the
vendor. These terms can adversely affect our eetibperations.

Competition for sales of communications networlksotutions is dominated by a small number of vergdamultinational companies. C
competitors include Alcatdlucent, Cisco, Ericsson, Fujitsu, Huawei, Junipetworks, and ZTE. Many of these competitors havestntially
greater financial, operational and marketing resesithan Ciena, significantly broader product afifgs or more extensive customer bases. W
expect our competitive landscape to broaden angettion to increase as network technologies, featand layers continue to converge. As
this convergence occurs, and requirements for soétywrogrammability and virtualization increase,expect to compete with a broader group
of vendors offering their own network architectuspproaches. We expect that we may increasinglypeterwith IP router vendors, system
integrators and information technology and softwamedors, as well as suppliers of networking tetdmyotraditionally geared toward differe
network users, layers or functions.

We also continue to compete with several smallar glstablished, companies that offer one or movdymts that compete directly or
indirectly with our offerings or whose products eslks specific niches within the markets and cust@®gments we address. These compe
include ADVA, BTI, Cyan, Coriant, Infinera and Tanode. In addition, there are a variety of eadiage companies with products targeted ¢
specific segments of the communications networkiragket. These competitors often employ aggressivgpetitive and business tactics as
they seek to gain entry to certain customers okatar Due to these practices and the narrower fottieir development efforts, these
competitors may be able to develop and introduodumts more quickly, or offer commercial terms thi@ more attractive to customers.

Patents, Trademarks and Other Intellectual PropertyRights

The success of our business and technology leadesssignificantly dependent upon our proprietand internally developed technology.
We rely upon patents, copyrights, trademarks, eamktsecret laws to establish and maintain prassietghts in our technology. We maintai
patent incentive program that seeks to reward iation. We regularly file applications for patentgldhave a significant number of patents in
the United States and other countries where weudmbss. As of December 1, 2013, we had 1,397 patents, 225 pending U.S. patent
applications and over 406 non-U.S. patents.

We also rely on non-disclosure agreements and oth@racts and policies regarding confidentialiffhvemployees, contractors and
customers, to establish proprietary rights andgmtarade secrets and confidential information. @ractice is to require employees and rele
consultants to execute non-disclosure and propyieights agreements upon commencement of theit@ment or consulting arrangements
with us. These agreements acknowledge our owneddlipellectual property developed by the indivadlduring the course of his or her work
with us. The agreements also require that thesmpsmaintain the confidentiality of all proprigtamformation disclosed to them.

Enforcing proprietary rights, especially patentm be costly and uncertain. Moreover, monitoringuthorized use of our technology is
difficult, and we cannot be certain that the stityag we are taking will detect or prevent all uteized use. In recent years, we have filed sui
to enforce our intellectual property rights. We éalso been subject to several claims relatedtenpafringement, including by competitors
and by non-practicing entities or "patent trolsid have been requested to indemnify customersiaotrso contractual indemnity obligations
relating to infringement claims made by third pastilntellectual property infringement assertionsld cause us to incur substantial costs,
including settlement costs and legal fees in tHerdse of related actions. If we are not successfdéfending these claims, our business could
be adversely affected. For example, we may be redjid enter into a license agreement requirin usake ongoing royalty payments,
required to redesign our products or prohibitednfiselling any infringing technology.
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Our operating system, element and network managesoétivare and other products incorporate softveaie components under licenses
from third parties. As network requirements forremsed software-defined programmability increasd,vee continue to advance our OPn
Architecture through the development and sale ook level applications, we may be required tetise additional technology from third
parties in order to develop new products or prodatiancements. Failure to obtain or maintain sieeim$es or other third party intellectual
property rights could affect our development e8pdr to require us to re-engineer our productsbtain alternate technologies.

In connection with our acquisition of substantialyof the optical networking and Carrier Etherassets of Nortel's Metro Ethernet
Networks business (the "MEN Business") on March28,0 (the "MEN Acquisition"), we obtained a -exclusive license to use patents and
other intellectual property controlled or exclusjvewned by Nortel in connection with our manufaetusale and support of a broad range of
optical networking and Carrier Ethernet productd services and natural evolutions of such prodaistsservices. We also obtained an
exclusive license to use a narrower set of patmdsother intellectual property owned by Nortet@mnection with Ciena's manufacture, sale
and support of optical networking and Carrier Etle¢iproducts and services within a narrower fiéldse and subject to certain limitations. As
part of this license, we granted Nortel a non-esigiel license to use the patents and other intebégroperty (except trademarks) that we
acquired as part of the MEN Business in conneactiith the manufacture and sale of products and sesvin the fields of Nortel's other
businesses (including those businesses sold dmeldold to other parties) and natural evolutionsuch fields.

Environmental Matters

Our business and operations are subject to enviatahlaws in various jurisdictions around the wpihcluding the Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment (WEEE) and Restriction of e of Certain Hazardous Substances in ElectrighEdectronic Equipment (RoHS)
regulations adopted by the European Union. We laresaibject to disclosure and related requiremtiatisapply to the presence of "conflict
minerals" in our products or supply chain. We seetiperate our business in compliance with sucls lahating to the materials and content of
our products and product takeback and recyclingirBnmental regulation is increasing, particulaslytside of the United States, and we ex
that our domestic and international operations bgubject to additional environmental compliareguirements, which could expose us to
additional costs. To date, our compliance costgtirg to environmental regulations have not resliitea material cost or effect on our
business, results of operations or financial caomalit

Employees
As of October 31, 2013, we had a global workfareesisting of 4,754 employees. We have not expeeigiany work stoppages, and we
consider the relationships with our employees tgdied. Competition to attract and retain highlyllskiitechnical, engineering and other

personnel with experience in our industry is inten&e believe that our future success dependstioatipart on our continued ability to
recruit, motivate and retain such qualified persgdnn
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Directors and Executive Officers

The table below sets forth certain information @ng our directors and executive officers:

Name Age Position

Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.D. 7C Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors

Gary B. Smith 53 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Stephen B. Alexander 54  Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer
Rick Dodd 44  Senior Vice President, Global Marketing

James A. Frodsham 47 Senior Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer
Francois Locoh-Donou 42  Senior Vice President, Global Products Group
Philippe Morin 48 Senior Vice President, Global Field Organization
James E. Moylan, Jr. 62 Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Finar@féiter
Andrew C. Petrik 5C Vice President and Controller

David M. Rothenstein 45  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar
Harvey B. Cash (1)(3) 75 Director

Bruce L. Claflin (1)(2) 62 Director

Lawton W. Fitt (2) 6C Director

Judith M. O'Brien (1)(3) 63 Director

Michael J. Rowny (2) 63 Director

Patrick T. Gallagher (2)(3) 58 Director

(1) Member of the Compensation Commi

(2) Member of the Audit Committ:

) Member of the Governance and Nominations Comn

Our Directors hold staggered terms of office, @rgiras follows: Ms. O'Brien and Messrs. Cash andtl®im 2014; Messrs. Claflin and
Gallagher in 2015; and Ms. Fitt, Dr. Nettles and Rowny in 2016.

Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.Dhas served as a Director of Ciena since April 1&%d as Executive Chairman of the Board of Directorse
May 2001. From October 2000 to May 2001, Dr. Nettieas Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chiafcutive Officer of Ciena, and he
was President and Chief Executive Officer from Ap#8i94 to October 2000. Dr. Nettles serves as atéeufor the California Institute of
Technology and serves on the board of directofsxotlis Technologies, Inc. and The Progressive Ga@tion. Dr. Nettles has previously
served on the board of directors of Apptrigger, lfmrmerly known as Carrius Technologies, Incd an the board of directors of Optiwind
Corp, a privately held company

Gary B. Smithjoined Ciena in 1997 and has served as Presidenthief Executive Officer since May 2001. Mr. Sniiths served on
Ciena’s Board of Directors since October 2000. iRachis current role, his positions with Cienalimed Chief Operating Officer, and Senior
Vice President, Worldwide Sales. Mr. Smith previguserved as Vice President of Sales and Markdon$NTELSAT and Cray
Communications, Inc. Mr. Smith also serves on thart of directors for Avaya Inc. and CommVault 8yss$, Inc. Mr. Smith is a member of
the President’s National Security Telecommunicatiddvisory Committee, the Global Information Infrasture Commission and the Center
for Corporate Innovation (CCl).

Stephen B. Alexandejoined Ciena in 1994 and has served as Chief Téobp®fficer since September 1998 and as a Serime V
President since January 2000. Mr. Alexander hadqusly served as General Manager of Products &elogy and General Manager of
Transport and Switching and Data Networking.

Rick Doddhas served as Ciena's Senior Vice President, GMagdeting since December 2010 and is responsidsl€fena’s product,
solutions and corporate marketing organizationspndides strategic support to Ciena’s global fiidanization and global products groups.
Mr. Dodd previously worked at Infinera Corporatimom September 2003 to December 2010 and servealds including Vice President of
Product Marketing and Vice President of Corporatekédting. Mr. Dodd previously served as an Assedrrtner at venture capital firm
Kleiner, Perkins, Caufield and Byers and as CieDasctor of Strategic Marketing.
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James A. Frodshanjoined Ciena in May 2004 and has served as Sena# Rresident and Chief Strategy Officer since M&@10 with
responsibility for our strategic planning and cogie development activities. In August 2010, Modsham assumed responsibility for the
integration of the MEN Business, which was substéigtcompleted in fiscal 2011. Mr. Frodsham preusty served as Senior Vice President,
General Manager of Ciena’s former Broadband AcGrssip from October 2004 to October 2005 and Meti EBnterprise Solutions Group
from May 2004 to October 2004. From August 2000&nuary 2003, Mr. Frodsham served as chief operafiicer of Innovance Networks,
optical networking company. On December 23, 2008pVance filed a Notice of Intent to make a proppsasuant to Part Ill of the
Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada). Prior @t tiMr. Frodsham was employed for more than temsy@esenior level positions with
Nortel Networks in product development and marlgtitrategy, including as Vice President, Produneliarketing, Optical Networkin
Group, from December 1998 to June 2000. Mr. Frogiserves on the board of directors of InnovanceviNeds.

Francois Locoh-Donouhas served as Ciena's Senior Vice President, GRibalucts Group since August 2011. In this capabity Locoh-
Donou leads Ciena’s engineering, supply chain, gebline management, quality/customer advocacy painduct marketing and solutions
organizations on a global basis. Mr. Locoh-Donangd Ciena in August 2002 and served as Ciena’s Piesident and General Manager,
EMEA from June 2005 to August 2011.

Philippe Morin joined Ciena in March 2010 in connection with Cisrecquisition of NorteB MEN Business and has served as Senior
President, Global Field Organization since Aug@t1? where he is responsible for leading Cienadbajl sales and services organizations.
From March 2010 to August 2011, Mr. Morin servedCasna's Senior Vice President, Global Productau@rér. Morin previously served as
President of Nortel's MEN Business from May 200@iludiena’s completion of the MEN Acquisition in Mzh 2010. In January 2009, Nortel
Networks Corporation and certain of its subsid&fiked voluntary petitions in the United StateslenChapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Ci
From January 2003 to May 2006, Mr. Morin held tlsifion of Nortel's General Manager of Optical Netlks. Mr. Morin previously held
other positions at Nortel in manufacturing, mankegtisales and product management both in North fsamend Europe.

James E. Moylan, Jrhas served as Senior Vice President, Finance ared Elhancial Officer since December 2007.

Andrew C. Petrikjoined Ciena in 1996 and has served as Vice Pmasi@entroller since August 1997 and served assStnes from
August 1997 to October 2008.

David M. Rothensteijoined Ciena in January 2001 and has served asiS¢éite President, General Counsel and Secretapgsi
November 2008. Mr. Rothenstein served as Vice &easiand Associate General Counsel from July 26@ctober 2008 and previously
Assistant General Counsel.

Harvey B. Cashhas served as a Director of Ciena since April 1884.Cash is a general partner of InterWest Pastreewenture capital
firm in Menlo Park, California, which he joined 11985. Mr. Cash serves on the board of directofsrst Acceptance Corp., Silicon
Laboratories, Inc. and Argonaut Group, Inc. andfrasiously served on the boards of directors dfé2hnologies, Inc., Voyence, Inc. and
Staktek Holdings, Inc.

Bruce L. Claflin has served as a Director of Ciena since August.2d06Claflin served as President and Chief Exeeu®fficer of 3Com
Corporation from January 2001 until his retiremienfEebruary 2006. Mr. Claflin joined 3Com as Presidand Chief Operating Officer in
August 1998. Prior to 3Com, Mr. Claflin served &nidr Vice President and General Manager, Saledvamketing, for Digital Equipment
Corporation. Mr. Claflin also worked for 22 yeatdBM, where he held various sales, marketing amth&agement positions, including general
manager of IBM PC Company’s worldwide research @exklopment, product and brand management, asawellesident of IBM PC
Company Americas. Mr. Claflin also serves on tharbif directors of Advanced Micro Devices (AMD)he&re he is currently Chairman of
Board and Chairman of its Nominating and Governaammittee.

Lawton W. Fitthas served as a Director of Ciena since Novemb@d.Zrom October 2002 to March 2005, Ms. Fitt sdras Director of
the Royal Academy of Arts in London. From 1979 tt@der 2002, Ms. Fitt was an investment banker @ithdman Sachs & Co., where she
was a partner from 1994 to October 2002, and a giagalirector from 1996 to October 2002. In additto her service as a director of non-
profit organizations, Ms. Fitt currently servestbe boards of directors of Thomson Reuters, ThéyéaBroup LP and The Progressive
Corporation, and she has previously served ondheds of directors of Overture Acquisition Corparatand Frontier Communications
Company.

Judith M. O'Brien has served as a Director of Ciena since July 280@e November 2012, Ms. O'Brien has served astagrand head
of the Emerging Company Practice Group at the law 6f King & Spalding. Ms. O'Brien served as Exé&ga Vice President and General
Counsel of Obopay, Inc., a provider of mobile pagtreervices, from November 2006 through Decemb&02Brom February 2001 until
October 2006, Ms. O'Brien served as a Managingddireat Incubic Venture Fund, a venture capitahfifrom August 1980 until February
2001, Ms. O'Brien was a lawyer with Wilson SongBoodrich & Rosati, where, from February 1984 tordaby 2001, she was a partner
specializing in corporate finance, mergers and iasgttans and general corporate matters. Ms. O'Bsemwes on the board of directors of
Theatro Labs, Inc, a privately-held company, arglfgraviously served on the board of directors ofigtdc, Inc.
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Michael J. Rownyhas served as a Director of Ciena since August.2d04Rowny has been Chairman of Rowny Capitaliiaape equity
firm, since 1999. From 1994 to 1999, and previofislyn 1983 to 1986, Mr. Rowny was with MClI Commuations in positions including
President and Chief Executive Officer of MCI's Imtational Ventures, Alliances and Correspondentigracting Chief Financial Officer,
Senior Vice President of Finance, and Treasurer Rdwny'’s career in business and government hasiradtuded positions as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Ransohoff Companyjef Executive Officer of Hermitage Holding Compaiikecutive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of ICF Kaiser Internationéic., Vice President of the Bendix Corporationgd ®eputy Staff Director of the White
House. Mr. Rowny also serves on the board of dirsatf Neustar, Inc.

Patrick T. Gallagherhas served as a Director of Ciena since May 2009Q¢dllagher currently serves as Chairman of Haimbrt, a
public company and global provider of high-perfonoa video solutions to the broadcast, cable, tetfaconications and managed service
provider sectors. From March 2008 until April 200, Gallagher was Chairman of Ubiquisys Ltd., adimg developer and supplier of
femtocells for the global 3G mobile wireless markkegbm January 2008 until February 2009, Mr. Géddkxgvas Chairman of Macro 4 plc, a
global software solutions company, and from May&06til March 2008, served as Vice Chairman of @ol@elecom Inc., a leading facilities-
based provider of integrated communications in Rumssd the CIS. From 2003 until 2006, Mr. Gallagives Executive Vice Chairman and
served as Chief Executive Officer of FLAG Telecomo@ and, prior to that role, held various seni@nagement positions at British Telect
Mr. Gallagher also serves on the board of direatéSollers JSC.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our securities involves a high degoégsk. In addition to the other information coim&d in this report, you should consider
the following risk factors before investing in @ecurities.

Our revenue and operating results can fluctuate sigficantly and unpredictably from quarter to quarter.

Our revenue and results of operations can fluctsigtgficantly and unpredictably from quarter toagier. Our budgeted expense levels
depend in part on our projections of future reveam@ gross margin, and substantial reductionspeese can take time to implement.
Uncertainty or lack of visibility into customer sping, and changes in economic or market conditibasaffect customer spending, can make
it difficult to forecast future revenue and margihsaddition, increases in the percentage of argiyuarter's revenue generated from orders
placed during that quarter, along with significarder volume late that quarter, could further resulariability and less predictability in our
quarterly revenue and cash flow. Consequently)enal of operating expense or inventory may be héejative to revenue, which could harm
our profitability and cash flow. Additional factotisat contribute to fluctuations in our revenue apérating results include:

» broader macroeconomic conditions, including weakmesl volatility in global markets, that affect @ustomer:
« changes in capital spending by large communicatengice provider

« order flow and backlog leve

» the timing of our ability to recognize revenue aies

« the mix of revenue by product segment, geograplycastomer in any particular quar

» the level of competition and pricing pressure weoemter

» seasonal effects in our busint

» the level of startyp costs we incur to support initial deploymentEngiew customers or enter new markets

» our level of success in improving manufacturingoéghcies and achieving cost reductions in our guplpain

Quarterly fluctuations from these and other factoey cause our results of operations to fall sbbar significantly exceed the expectations of
securities analysts or investors, which may caoatility in our stock price.

We face intense competition that could hurt our s&s and results of operations.

We face a competitive market for sales of commuitna networking equipment, software and serviaes, this level of competition cot
result in pricing pressure, reduced demand, lowesgmargins and loss of market share that could bar business and results of operations
Competition is particularly intense as we and ampetitors aggressively seek to displace incumbgaipment vendors at large service
providers and secure new customers. In an effa@étoire customer opportunities and capture mahlegeswe have in the past, and may in the
future, agree to commercial terms or pricing tlesuit in low or negative gross margins on a pagrcarder or group of orders. We expect this
level of competition to continue or potentially irase, as multinational equipment vendors seekoimqte adoption of their network
architectural approaches and retain incumbentipasitvith large customers around the world. We algomect our competitive landscape to
broaden. As network technologies, features anddag@nverge and demands for software programmgabilihetworks increases, we expect
that our business will overlap more directly witidd@ional networking suppliers, including IP routemdors, system integrators, software
vendors and other information technology vendors.

Competition in our markets, generally, is base@y one or a combination of the following factgyeoduct features; functionality and
performance; price; services offerings; manufandapability and lead-times; incumbency and aexiskiusiness relationships; scalability and
flexibility of products to meet the immediate andure network; and service requirements of netvegrérators. A small number of very large
companies have historically dominated our industrginy of which have substantially greater finanaia marketing resources, broader
product offerings and more established relatiorshijh service providers and other customer segsitéan we do. In addition, a number of
these vendors are putting forth competing visiamhbw next-generation network architectures shbeldiesigned. Because of their scale anc
resources, they may be perceived to be a bettiar fihe procurement, or network operating and rgangent, strategies of large service
providers. We also compete with a number of smalbenpanies that provide significant competitiondapecific product, application,
customer segment or geographic market. Due todhmwer focus of their efforts, these competitoes/rachieve commercial availability of
their products more quickly or may be more attracto customers. If competitive pressures increasee fail to compete successfully in our
markets, our business and results of operationisl curfer.

Our business and operating results could be advenseaffected by unfavorable changes in macroeconomand market conditions and
reductions in the level of capital expenditure by gstomers in response to these conditions.
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Our business and operating results could be miyeaidversely affected by reduced customer spenuimgsponse to unfavorable or
uncertain macroeconomic and market conditions,ajlplor with respect to a particular region where @perate. Broad macroeconomic
weakness and market volatility have previously Itegiuin sustained periods of decreased demandufopr@ducts and services that have
adversely affected our operating results. Macroenoo and market conditions could be adversely &gfby a variety of political, economic
other factors in the United States and elsewhextecibuld adversely affect spending levels, as aslireate volatility or deteriorating conditic
in the markets in which we operate. Continuatigroofan increase in, macroeconomic uncertaintyeakmess could result in:

» reductions in customer spending and delay, deferrahncellation of network infrastructure initias

» increased competition for fewer network projectd aales opportunitie

* increased pricing pressure that may adversely tafé@enue, gross margin and profitabil

« difficulty forecasting, budgeting and planni

» higher overhead costs as a percentage of re\

» tightening of credit markets needed to fund caiigdenditures by our customers anc

» customer financial difficulty, including longeollection cycles and difficulties collecting acacas receivable or write-offs of
receivables; and

* increased risk of charges relating to excessonsdlete inventories and the wrid#-of other intangible asse

Reductions in customer spending in response tovaordle or uncertain macroeconomic and market ¢immdi, globally or with respect to
a particular region where we operate, would ad¥gsect our business and results of operations.

A small number of large communications service praders account for a significant portion of our reveaue, and the loss of any of these
customers, or a significant reduction in their speding, would have a material adverse effect on ourusiness and results of operations.

A significant portion of our revenue is concentcagenong a few, large global communications serpio®iders. By way of example,
AT&T accounted for approximately 17.9% of fiscall&0revenue, and our largest ten customers cordb®®.4% of fiscal 2013 revenue.
Consequently, our financial results are closelyalated with the spending of a relatively small tn@mof service provider customers and can
be significantly affected by market or industry eas that affect their businesses. These factorgnclude consumer and enterprise spending
on communication services, macroeconomic volafitie adoption of new communications products amdises, the emergence of competing
network operators and changing demands of endcus#éomers. Because the terms of our framework &cistido not obligate customers to
purchase any minimum or guaranteed order quant#feEnding by these service providers can be uigtadde and sporadic, our revenue and
operating results can fluctuate on a quarterlyhddeliance upon a relatively small number of seryiroviders increases our exposure to
changes in their network and purchasing strate§iesie of our customers are pursuing efforts tocaute the management and operation of
their networks, or have indicated a procuremeatatyy to reduce the number of vendors from whiely fiurchase equipment, which may
benefit our larger competitors. Our concentrationevenue has increased in the past as a reszdngblidation among a number of our largest
customers. Consolidation may increase the likelihobtemporary or indefinite reductions in custorspending or changes in network strateg)
that could harm our business and operating resthis.loss of one or more of our large service gtercustomers, a significant reduction in
their spending, or market or industry factors adebr affecting service providers generally, woudddr a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our reliance upon third party component suppliers,including sole and limited source suppliers, exposeour business to additional risk
and could limit our sales, increase our costs andanm our customer relationships.

We maintain a global sourcing strategy and depentthiod party suppliers for support in our proddesign and development and the
sourcing of key product components and subsyst®msproducts include optical and electronic commséor which reliable, high-volume
supply is often available only from sole or limitedurces. Increases in market demand or scarcigsolirces or manufacturing capability h
previously resulted in shortages in availabilityimmportant components for our solutions, allocatiballenges and increased lead times. W
exposed to risks relating to unfavorable econoroiditions or other similar challenges affecting lhusinesses of our component providers
can affect their liquidity levels, ability to contie investing in their businesses, and manufagjur@pability. This could expose our business t
increased costs, lack of supply or discontinuatiboomponents that can result in lost revenue,tanhdil product costs, increased lead times
and deployment delays that could harm our busiaedscustomer relationships. We do not have anyagee of supply from these third
parties, and in certain cases are relying upon ¢eanp or transitional commercial arrangements. Assalt, there is no assurance that we will
be able to secure the components or subsystemaé¢haquire, in sufficient quantity and quality @asonable terms. The loss of a source of
supply, or lack of sufficient availability of key
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components, could require that we locate an altersaurce or redesign our products, each of whickdcincrease our costs and negatively
affect our product gross margin and results of ajp@ms. Our business and results of operationsdvoainegatively affected if we were to
experience any significant disruption or difficekiwith key suppliers affecting the price, qualétyailability or timely delivery of required
components.

Investment of research and development resources aommunications networking technologies for whichhere is not a matching
market opportunity, or failure to sufficiently or t imely invest in technologies for which there is maet demand, would adversely affect
our revenue and profitability.

The market for communications networking equipniemharacterized by rapidly evolving technologied ahanges in market demand.
We continually invest in research and developmesustain or enhance our existing products aneéveldp or acquire new product
technologies. Our current development efforts aoei$ed upon enhancing our software and network-#p@ications, extending our
OneConnect control plane across the 5400 and 6affonmn families, expanding packet applicationsservice delivery switches, aggregation
switches, and coherent optical transport platfoemgending our WaveLogic chipset, enabling 40G HD@G coherent optical transport across
our portfolio, and introducing 400G transmissiongucts. There is often a lengthy period betweennsenting these development initiatives
and bringing new or improved products to marketrilbgthis time, technology preferences, customenated and the market for our products,
or those introduced by our competitors, may mowdiiections we had not anticipated. There is na@uee that our new products or
enhancements will achieve market acceptance ottthaiming of market adoption will be as predictétere is a significant possibility,
therefore, that some of our development decisimetyding significant expenditures on acquisitioresearch and development costs, or
investments in technologies, will not turn out ai@pated, and that our investment in some prejedl be unprofitable. There is also a
possibility that we may miss a market opportuniggduse we failed to invest, or invested too lat@, technology, product or enhancement
sought by our customers. Changes in market demaimy@stment priorities may also cause us to disoaa existing or planned development
for new products or features, which can have augtére effect on our relationships with customéirsve fail to make the right investments or
fail to make them at the right time, our compeétposition may suffer and our revenue and profitglould be harmed.

We may experience delays in the development of oproducts that may negatively affect our competitiveposition and business.

Our products are based on complex technology, @andam experience unanticipated delays in develogigmanufacturing these
solutions. Our current development efforts are $ecupon enhancing our software applications, diktgrour OneConnect control plane
across the 5400 and 6500 platform families, expanpgacket applications on service delivery switclaggregation switches, and coherent
optical transport platforms, extending our Wavelcoghipset for 40G and 100G coherent optical trartsgyoss our portfolio and introducing
400G transmission products. Delays in these angl gifoduct development efforts may affect our rapoih with customers, affect our ability
to seize market opportunities and impact the tingind level of demand for our products. Each steherdevelopment life cycle of our
products presents serious risks of failure, revaorédelay, any one of which could adversely affaet ¢ost-effective and timely development of
our products. We may encounter delays relatingigpreering development activities and softwareighesourcing and manufacture of criti
components, and the development of prototypesddiitian, intellectual property disputes, failureasitical design elements, and other
execution risks may delay or even prevent the sel@d these products. If we do not successfullyeltgyproducts in a timely manner, our
competitive position may suffer and our busineisgrfcial condition and results of operations cdwdcharmed.

Product performance problems and undetected erroraffecting the performance, reliability or security of our products could damage
our business reputation and negatively affect ouresults of operations.

The development and production of sophisticatedware and software for communications network emeipt is complicated. Some of
our products can be fully tested only when deplapecbmmunications networks or when carrying t@ffith other equipment. As a result,
undetected defects or errors, and product quatitgroperability, reliability and performance prebis are often more acute for initial
deployments of new products and product enhancem@fe are in the process of launching a numbeewf platforms. Unanticipated product
performance problems can relate to the design, faatwring and installation of our products. Undételcerrors can also arise as a result of
defects in components, software or manufacturimgtailation or maintenance services supplied by tharties, and technology acquired from
or licensed by third parties. Unanticipated seguritinerabilities relating to our products or thatigties of our supply chain, including any
actual or perceived exposure of our solutions tbaioas software or cybeattacks, would adversely affect our business apdtation. Produc
performance, reliability, security and quality pleins can negatively affect our business, includimgugh:

« damage to our reputation, declining sales and aralecellation:
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* increased costs to remediate defects or replachipts

« payment of liquidated damages, contractual or sinienalties, or other claims for performance fauor delay:

* increased warranty expense or estimates regutim higher failure rates, additional field seeviobligations or other rework costs
related to defects;

* increased inventory obsolescet

» costs and claims that mapt be covered by liability insurance coverageemorerable from third parties; ¢

» delays in recognizing revenue or collecting acceueteivable

These and other consequences relating to undetectad affecting the quality, reliability and seitpiof our products could negatively affect
our business and results of operations.

Network equipment sales to large communications seice providers often involve lengthy sales cyclesd protracted contract
negotiations and may require us to assume commertigerms or conditions that negatively affect pricirg, risk allocation, payment and
the timing of revenue recognition.

A significant portion of our revenue comes fromesaio large communications service providers. Thakes typically involve lengthy sa
cycles, extensive product testing, and demonstraddiboratory or network certification, includingtmerk-specific or region-specific product
certification or homologation processes. Thesessallo often involve protracted and sometimesadlifficontract negotiations in which we r
deem it necessary to agree to unfavorable conathaticommercial terms that adversely affect pgeiexpose us to penalties for delays or nor
performance, and require us to assume a dispropaté amount of risk. We may also be requestedatdge deferred payment terms, vendor
or third-party financing, or offer other alternaipurchase structures that extend the timing ofryesy and revenue recognition. Moreover, our
purchase agreements generally do not include mmimpurchase commitments, and customers often haveght to modify, delay, reduce or
cancel previous orders. These terms may negatafedgt our revenue and results of operations aackase our susceptibility to quarterly
fluctuations in our financial results. Moreovemsee providers may insist upon terms and condgtithvat we deem too onerous or not in our
best interest, and we may be unable to reach a eoomhagreement. As a result, we may incur sulisiaexpense and devote time and
resources to potential sales opportunities tha¢nmaterialize or result in lower than anticipasades.

Efforts by us or by our strategic third party channel partners to sell our solutions into targeted gegraphic markets and customer
segments may be unsuccessful.

We continue to take steps, including sales initegtiand strategic channel relationships, to selpoaducts into new markets, growth
geographies and diverse customer segments beyorrdhditional service provider customer base. Sppadly, we are targeting opportunities
Brazil, the Middle East, Russia, Japan and India.ai¢ also targeting sales opportunities with enisas, wireless operators, cable operators,
submarine network operators, content service pasgiccloud infrastructure providers, research ahatation institutions, and federal, state
local governments. We believe sales to these custepgments, as well as emerging network operatqugorting new communications
services and applications, will be an important ponent of our growth strategy. In many cases, we fess experience in these markets and
customer segments, and they may have less fanyiligith our company. To succeed in some of thesggphic markets and customer
segments we have engaged or intend to leveragegitraales channels and distribution arrangensrdsexpect these relationships to be an
important part of our business. Our efforts mayhbsuccessful, and difficulties selling into thesgyet markets, including through third party
channels, could limit our growth and harm our ressaf operations.

The international scale of our operations exposessuo additional risk and expense that could adversgaffect our results of operations.

We market, sell and service our products globally eely upon a global supply chain for sourcing @rant components and
manufacturing of our products. Our internationatigtions are subject to inherent risks, including:

» the impact of economic conditions in countries m&t$he United State

» effects of changes in currency exchange r

« greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivalaind longer collection perio

» difficulty and cost of staffing and managing foneigperation:

» less protection for intellectual property rightssime countrie

» adverse tax and customs consequences, parlycatarelated to transfgricing issue

» social, political and economic instabili

» higher incidence of corruption or unethical busipsactices that could expose us to liability andge our reputatio

e trade protection measures, export complianceedtic preference procurement requirements, qeatifin to transact business and
additional regulatory requirements; and
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e natural disasters, epidemics and acts of war corism

We expect that we may enter new international ntar&ed withdraw from or reduce operations in othets global operations expose us to
additional risk and expense that could give risertanticipated liabilities, costs or other diffitaé that could adversely affect our operations
and financial results.

We may be required to write off significant amountsof inventory as a result of our inventory purchaseractices, the obsolescence of
product lines or unfavorable market conditions.

To avoid delays and meet customer demand for shaetavery terms, we place orders with our contraenufacturers and component
suppliers based in part on forecasts of custommiadd. As a result, our business is exposed tagketrat our customers ultimately may not
order the products we have forecast, or will pusehf@wer products than forecast. As features amctifinalities converge across our product
lines, and we introduce new products with overlaggeature sets, it is increasingly possible that@mers may forgo purchases of one pra
we have inventoried in favor of another productwgiimilar functionality. Market uncertainty can@lémit our visibility into customer
spending plans and compound the difficulty of fating inventory at appropriate levels. Moreover, @istomer purchase agreements
generally do not include any minimum purchase cament, and customers often have the right to modégtuce or cancel purchase
guantities. We may also be exposed to the rishwdntory write offs as a result of certain supgigio initiatives, including consolidation and
transfer of key manufacturing activities. As a tesue may purchase inventory in anticipation deséhat ultimately do not occur. If we are
required to write off or write down a significarthaunt of inventory, our results of operations fog period would be materially adversely
affected.

Our intellectual property rights may be difficult and costly to enforce.

We generally rely on a combination of patents, cighys, trademarks and trade secret laws to establid maintain proprietary rights in
our products and technology. Although we have bgsuired numerous patents and other patent apphesatie currently pending, there can be
no assurance that any of these patents or othprigtary rights will not be challenged, invalidatedcircumvented, or that our rights will
provide us with any competitive advantage. In addijtthere can be no assurance that patents widldoed from pending applications or that
claims allowed on any patents will be sufficiertipad to protect our technology. Further, the lafvsome foreign countries may not protect
our proprietary rights to the same extent as dda¥s of the United States.

We are subject to the risk that third parties mi#gmapt to access, divert or use our intellectuapprty without authorization. Protecting
against the unauthorized use of our products, wolgg and other proprietary rights is difficulty®-consuming and expensive, and we canno
be certain that the steps that we are taking wélent or minimize the risks of such unauthorizee. Witigation may be necessary to enforce o
defend our intellectual property rights or to detire the validity or scope of the proprietary rigbf others. Such litigation could result in
substantial cost and diversion of management timerasources, and there can be no assurance thetlwbtain a successful result. Any
inability to protect and enforce our intellectuabperty rights, despite our efforts, could harm abitity to compete effectively.

We may incur significant costs in response to claimby others that we infringe their intellectual prgperty rights.

From time to time third parties may assert claimitiate litigation or other proceedings relatedpatent, copyright, trademark and other
intellectual property rights to technologies anldited standards that are relevant to our busiffdmsrate of infringement assertions by patent
assertion entities is increasing, particularlynia United States. Generally, these patent ownéftsenenanufacture nor use the
patented invention directly, and simply seek tawdevalue from their ownership through royaltiesnfr patent licensing programs.

We can be adversely affected by litigation, othrexcpedings or claims against us, as well as clagaénst our manufacturers, suppliers or
customers, alleging infringement of third party gmietary rights by our products and technologyc@mponents thereof. Regardless of the r
of these claims, they can be time-consuming, dibertime and attention of our technical and mameaye personnel, and result in costly
litigation. These claims, if successful, can reguis to:

* pay substantial damages or royal

» comply with an injunction or other court order tisauld prevent us from offering certain of our prots

» seek alicense for the use of certain intelleghuaperty, which may not be available on commergigghsonable terms or at
» develop nonnfringing technology, which could require signdiat effort and expense and ultimately may not leeessful; an

« indemnify our customers or other third parties parg to contractual obligations to hold them hassler pay expenses or damage
their behalf.
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Any of these events could adversely affect ourrtmss, results of operations and financial condit@ur exposure to risks associated with the
use of intellectual property may be increased @salt of acquisitions, as we have a lower levelisibility into the development process with
respect to such technology and the steps takeafegisard against the risks of infringing the rigbitshird parties.

Our failure to manage effectively our relationshipswith third party service partners could adverselyimpact our financial results and
relationship with customers.

We rely on a number of third party service partneogh domestic and international, to complementgbobal service and support
resources. We rely upon these partners for ceratallation, maintenance and support functionsaddition, as network operators seek to
increasingly rely on vendors to perform additioseivices relating to the design, construction gretation of their networks, the scope of w
performed by our support partners is likely to @ase and may include areas where we have lessengeeproviding or managing such
services. We must successfully identify, asseas) &and certify qualified service partners in ortteensure the proper installation, deployment
and maintenance of our products, and the skilldufgrmance of other services associated with exg@isdlutions offerings, including site
assessment and construction related servicesnyettid certification of these partners can be gasitl time-consuming, and certain partners
may not have the same operational history, findmegource and scale as Ciena. Moreover, certatngra may provide similar services for
other companies, including our competitors. We matybe able to manage effectively our relationskijil our service partners and cannot be
certain that they will be able to deliver servigeshe manner or time required or that we will indeato maintain the continuity of their services.
We may also be exposed to a number of risks oterigds relating to the performance of our servarners, including:

* we may suffer delays in recognizing revel

* we may be exposed to liability for injuries terpons, damage to property or other claims reldtirige actions or omissions of our
service partners;

e our services revenue and gross margin may be alyexffected; an

e our relationships with customers could su

If we do not manage effectively our relationshipthwhird party service partners, or if they failperform these services in the manner or time
required, our financial results and relationshifhwustomers could be adversely affected.

We may be exposed to unanticipated risks and addinal obligations in connection with our resale of@mplementary products or
technology of other companies.

We have entered into agreements with strategiclgygaptners that permit us to distribute their prog or technology. We may rely upon
these relationships to add complementary produdisctinologies, diversify our product portfolio,address a particular customer or
geographic market. We may enter into additionalinal equipment manufacturer (OEM), resale or sinskrategic arrangements in the future
We may incur unanticipated costs or difficultieltiag to our resale of third party products. Chird party relationships could expose us to
risks associated with the business, financial dwordiintellectual property rights and supply chagmtinuity of such partners, as well as delays
in their development, manufacturing or deliverypodducts or technology. We may also be requiredusgomers to assume warranty,
indemnity, service and other commercial obligatjionsluding potential liability to customers, greathan the commitments, if any, made to u:
by our technology partners. Some of our strategpky partners are relatively small companies Wittited financial resources. If they are
unable to satisfy their obligations to us or oustomers, we may have to expend our own resourcesigly these obligations. Exposure to
these risks could harm our reputation with key @ongrs and negatively affect our business and @ulteeof operations.

Our exposure to the credit risks of our customersad resellers may make it difficult to collect recerables and could adversely affect oL
revenue and operating results.

In the course of our sales to customers and rekalenel partners, we may have difficulty collectingeivables and our business and
results of operations could be exposed to riskscated with uncollectible accounts. Lack of ligtydn the capital markets, macroeconomic
weakness and market volatility may increase ouosuye to these credit risks. Our attempts to motti@se situations carefully and take
appropriate measures to protect ourselves mayenstifficient, and it is possible that we may havevtite down or write off accounts
receivable. Such write-downs or write-offs couldjatively affect our operating results for the pdrio which they occur, and, if large, could
have a material adverse effect on our revenue parhting results.
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Our business is dependent upon the proper functiong of our internal business processes and informatn systems and modification or
interruption of such systems may disrupt our busines, processes and internal controls.

We rely upon a number of internal business proseasd information systems to support key businasstions, and the efficient operati
of these processes and systems is critical to asinbss. Our business processes and informatidensgsieed to be sufficiently scalable to
support the growth of our business and may regnudifications or upgrades that expose us to a nuwib@perational risks. We are currently
pursuing initiatives to transform and optimize business operations through the reengineeringrtdingorocesses, investment in automation
and engagement of strategic partners or resouscEsstst with certain business functions. Thesagémmay be costly and disruptive to our
operations, and could impose substantial demandsamragement time.

These changes may also require changes in oumatan systems, modification of internal contrabgedures and significant training of
employees or third party resources. There can kessorance that our business and operations wiéxpgerience any disruption in connection
with this transition. Our information technologyssgms, and those of third party information techgglproviders or business partners, may
also be vulnerable to damage or disruption caugedrbumstances beyond our control, including datgdic events, power anomalies or
outages, natural disasters, viruses or malwarecamguter system or network failures. We may alsexposed to cyber-security related
incidents, including unauthorized access of infdromasystems and disclosure or diversion of intllal property or confidential data. There
can be no assurance that our business systemasar @hour third party business partners wouldoeogsubject to similar incidents, exposing us
to significant cost, reputational harm and disroptbr damage to our business.

Data breaches and cyber-attacks could compromise pintellectual property or other sensitive information and cause significant
damage to our business and reputation.

In the ordinary course of our business, we mairgaimsitive data on our networks, including ourllattual property and proprietary or
confidential business information relating to ousimess and that of our customers and businessepsriThe secure maintenance of this
information is critical to our business and repiotat Companies in the technology industry have hirereasingly subject to a wide variety of
security incidents, cyber-attacks and other attsrigpgain unauthorized access. Our network andggoapplications may be subject to
unauthorized access by hackers or breached dyeetator error, malfeasance or other system dismigtin some cases, it is difficult to
anticipate or immediately detect such incidents tieddamage caused thereby. These data breachasyndauthorized access or disclosure
of our information could compromise our intelledtpeoperty and expose sensitive business informatiyber-attacks could also cause us to
incur significant remediation costs, disrupt kegibess operations and divert attention of managearehkey information technology
resources. These incidents could also subject lishitity, expose us to significant expense, aadse significant harm to our reputation and
business.

Outstanding indebtedness under our convertible notemay adversely affect our liquidity and results obperations and could limit our
business.

At October 31, 2013, indebtedness on our outstancnvertible notes totaled approximately $1.Rdwilin aggregate principal, including
the accretion of principal at maturity on our 2026tes. Our indebtedness could have important negatinsequences, including:

» increasing our vulnerability to adverse economid sxalustry condition:

» limiting our ability to obtain additional financingarticularly in unfavorable capital and creditriet conditions

» incurrence of debt service and repayment obligattbat reduce the availability of cash resourcesfloer business purpos
» limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the market

» placing us at a possible competitive disadvantagmmpetitors that have better access to capialrees

During fiscal 2012, we entered into a $150 millgenior secured asset-based revolving Credit Radititaddition to customary remedies that
would apply should we default under the credit agrent governing this facility, we may be subjedetader control over certain cash assets
and required to comply with a fixed charge covenagi® in the event that we do not maintain theurgite level of availability under the

facility. The credit agreement also contains custgntovenants that limit our ability to, among attiengs, pay cash dividends, incur debt,
create liens and encumbrances, redeem or repurstaade enter into certain acquisition transactjoapay indebtedness, make investments o
dispose of assets. The Credit Facility matures oguat 13, 2015, provided that it will mature eastyDecember 15, 2014, if any of Ciena's
4.0% convertible senior notes due March 15, 20&5fen outstanding. We may also enter into addititmnsactions or lending facilities,
including equipment
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loans, working capital lines of credit and otherdeterm debt, that may increase our indebtednedsesmult in additional restrictions upon our
business.

Significant volatility and uncertainty in the capital markets may limit our access to funding.

We have accessed the capital markets in the pdsumtessfully raised funds, through the issuaheguity or convertible debt, to
increase our cash position, support our operaaosundertake strategic growth initiatives. We tady evaluate our liquidity position, debt
obligations, and anticipated cash needs to fundamg-term operating plans and may consider it sg@ey or advisable to raise additional
capital in the future. Global capital markets hawmelergone periods of significant volatility and artainty in recent years, and there can be nc
assurance that such financing alternatives woulaMadlable to us, should we determine it necessaagvisable to seek additional cash
resources.

Facilities transitions could be disruptive to our gerations and may result in unanticipated expenseral adverse effects our cash positio
and cash flows.

We have recently undertaken and expect to undedaakenber of significant facilities transitionsedfing a number of our largest
employee populations. The lease of our “Lab 101dig on the Carling Campus in Ottawa, Canadaewipire in fiscal 2017, and we are
currently considering facilities and developmen¢aatives in advance of the expiration of thisé&edn addition, the lease for our research an
development facility in Gurgaon, India will expire October 2014. While we have an agreement teléasperiods beyond such date, the
parties have not yet executed an extension ofeth&el Both locations include sophisticated resemrdrdevelopment lab equipment and
significant headcount including key engineeringspenel. Locating appropriate alternative spac@fwrengineering operations may be costly,
and there can be no assurance that the transiticgycengineering functions to a successor facility not be disruptive or adversely affect
productivity. Significant facilities transitions aldl be disruptive to our operations and may rasulinanticipated expense and adverse effects
on our cash position and cash flows.

Restructuring activities could disrupt our businessand affect our results of operations.

We have previously taken steps, including redustiarforce, office closures, and internal reorgatians to reduce the size and cost of
operations, improve efficiencies, or realign ouyanization and staffing to better match our madggtortunities and our technology
development initiatives. We may take similar stepihe future as we seek to realize operating gji@sy optimize our operations to achieve
target operating model and profitability objectivesbetter reflect changes in the strategic dineodf our business. These changes could be
disruptive to our business, including our reseanth development efforts, and may result in sigaifteexpense, including accounting charges
for inventory and technology-related write-offs,kfmrce reduction costs and charges relating tecolaation of excess facilities. Substantial
expense or charges resulting from restructuriniyities could adversely affect our results of opieras and use of cash in those periods in
which we undertake such actions.

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified pesonnel, we may be unable to manage our businessestively.

Competition to attract and retain highly skilledhaical, engineering and other personnel with @gpee in our industry is intense, and
employees have been the subject of targeted Hignmur competitors. We may experience difficultiareing and motivating existing
employees and attracting qualified personnel t&éy positions. Because we rely upon equity awasda significant component of
compensation, particularly for our executive teartack of positive performance in our stock priegluced grant levels, or changes to our
compensation program may adversely affect ourtgtidi attract and retain key employees. The losa@ihbers of our management team or
other key personnel could be disruptive to ouresss, and, were it necessary, it could be diffimuleplace members of our management tea
or other key personnel. In addition, none of owrrive officers is bound by an employment agredrfograny specific term. If we are unable
to attract and retain qualified personnel, we maybable to manage our business effectively, andperations and results of operations ci
suffer.

We may be adversely affected by fluctuations in cuency exchange rates.

As a global concern, we face exposure to adverse&ments in foreign currency exchange rates. Histtlyi, our sales were primarily
denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result of ouréased global presence, a larger percentage eéwvenue and operating expense are now no
U.S. dollar denominated and therefore subject teidm currency fluctuation. We face exposure toanry exchange rates as a result of the
growth in our non-U.S. dollar denominated opera@mgense in Canada, Europe, Asia and Latin Amelfican time to time, we may hedge
against currency exposure associated with antipfatreign currency cash flows. There can be noraase that any hedging instruments will
be effective, and losses associated with thesmimsints and the adverse effect of foreign currexchange rate fluctuation may negatively
affect our results of operations.
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Our products incorporate software and other technobgy under license from third parties, and our busiess would be adversely affected
if this technology were no longer available to usrocommercially reasonable terms.

We integrate third party software and other techgglinto our embedded operating system, networkag@ment system tools and other
products. Licenses for this technology may not\aglable or continue to be available to us on comuiadly reasonable terms. Third party
licensors may insist on unreasonable financialtbeioterms in connection with our use of such tetbgy. Our failure to comply with the ter
of any license, including free open source softwaray result in our inability to continue to uselslicense, which may result in significant
costs and require us to obtain or develop a substiechnology. As networks become more open afteia@ programmable, we expect that
communications networking solutions vendors, intigdCiena, will increasingly contribute to and ueehnology developed by standards
settings bodies or other industry forums that segltomote the integration of network layers amctions. This may increase risks associatec
with our use or reliance upon third party or opeuarse software. Difficulty obtaining and maintaigithird party technology licenses may
disrupt development of our products and increaseosts.

Strategic acquisitions and investments may expose to increased costs and unexpected liabilities.

We may acquire or make investments in other tedgytompanies, or enter into other strategic mtethips, to expand the markets we
address, diversify our customer base or acquieecelerate the development of technology or pradda do so, we may use cash, issue e
that would dilute our current stockholders' owngrsbr incur debt or assume indebtedness. Themeactions involve numerous risks,
including:

* significant integration cos:

« disruption due to the integration and rational@atbf operations, products, technologies and pewed

< diversion of management attenti

- difficulty completing projects of the acquiredmpany and costs related topmecess project

* loss of key employee

< ineffective internal controls over financial repog;

e dependence on unfamiliar suppliers or manufacty

e exposure to unanticipated liabilities, includinggifectual property infringement claims; ¢

« adverse tax or accounting effects including dimation expense related to intangible assets hadyes associated with impairment
of goodwill.

As a result of these and other risks, our acquoissti investments or strategic transactions mayeagt the intended benefits and may ultimately
have a negative impact on our business, resultp@fation and financial condition.

Changes in government regulation affecting the comuomications industry and the businesses of our custrers could harm our prospect:
and operating results.

The Federal Communications Commission, or FCCjurésdiction over the U.S. communications industigd similar agencies have
jurisdiction over the communication industries ther countries. Many of our largest customers udiclg service providers and multiserv
network operators, are subject to the rules andlagigns of these agencies. Changes in regulagmyirements applicable to wireline or
wireless communications and the Internet in theddhStates or other countries could serve as acgistive to providers to invest in their
communications network infrastructures or introdoew services. These changes could adversely dffecale of our products and services.
Changes in regulatory tariff requirements or otlegulations relating to pricing or terms of cargagn communications networks could slow
the development or expansion of network infrastmegt and adversely affect our business, operagimigts, and financial condition.

Government regulations affecting the use, import oexport of products could adversely affect our opations and negatively affect our
revenue and increase our cOSsts.

The United States and various foreign governmeaige imposed controls, license requirements and ogisérictions on the usage, import
or export of some of the technologies that we €tlvernment regulation of usage, import or expbduw products, technology within our
products, or our failure to obtain required apptevar our products, could harm our internationadl @omestic sales and adversely affect our
revenue and costs of sales. Failure to comply suitth regulations could result in enforcement astifines or penalties and restrictions on
export privileges. In addition, costly tariffs onreequipment, restrictions on importation, tradet@ction measures and domestic preference
requirements of certain countries could limit oocess to these markets and harm our sales. Fopéxamdia's government has implemented
security regulations applicable to network equiptvemdors, and has imposed significant tariffs thay inhibit sales of certain
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communications equipment, including equipment mactufred in China, where certain of our productsassembled. These and other
regulations could adversely affect the sale oraismir products, substantially increase our cosiatés and adversely affect our business and
revenue.

Government regulations related to the environment ad potential climate change could adversely affecur business and operating
results.

Our operations are regulated under various fedstate, local and international laws relating ® éimvironment and potential climate
change. If we were to violate or become liable uridese laws or regulations, we could incur fireests related to damage to property or
personal injury, and costs related to investigatioremediation activities. Our product design #f@nd the manufacturing of our products are
also subject to evolving requirements relatingh presence of certain materials or substancesgriaguipment, including regulations that
make producers for such products financially resfime for the collection, treatment and recyclirigertain products. For example, our
operations and financial results may be negatiaéiscted by environmental regulations, such adiaste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(WEEE) and Restriction of the Use of Certain HamasdSubstances in Electrical and Electronic EquiprtiRoHS) that have been adopted by
the European Union. Compliance with these and ameihvironmental regulations may increase our @bdesigning, manufacturing, selling
and removing our products. These regulations msy ralake it difficult to obtain supply of compliasimponents or may require us to write
non-compliant inventory, which could have an adgexfect on our business and operating results.

We may be required to write down long-lived asset&nd these impairment charges would adversely affeour operating results.

As of October 31, 2013, our balance sheet incl$®6£€.9 million in long-lived assets, which inclsd&185.8 million of intangible assets.
Valuation of our long-lived assets requires us akenassumptions about future sales prices andaali@ses for our products. These
assumptions are used to forecast future, undisedurash flows upon which our estimates are basthd3 of significant uncertainty or
instability of macroeconomic conditions can makeséasting future business difficult. If actual matrkonditions differ or our forecasts chat
we may be required to reassess long-lived assdtsand record an impairment charge. Any impairnaarge relating to long-lived assets
would have the effect of decreasing our earninga@easing our losses in such period. If we ageired to take a substantial impairment
charge, our operating results would be materialyeasely affected in such period.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls ove financial reporting could have a material adverseeffect on our business, operatir
results and stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 megutihat we include in our annual report a reponta@ining management's assessment
of the effectiveness of our internal controls dfiieancial reporting as of the end of our fiscal yaad a statement as to whether or not such
internal controls are effective. Compliance witbdh requirements has resulted in, and is likebotdginue to result in, significant costs and the
commitment of time and operational resources. Césairgour business, including certain initiativegransform business processes, to inve
information systems or to transition certain fuoos to third party resources or providers, willessitate modifications to our internal control
systems, processes and information systems astimizgour business and operations. Our increakszhboperations and expansion into 1
regions could pose additional challenges to oarir@l control systems. We cannot be certain thatowent design for internal control over
financial reporting, or any additional changes émiade, will be sufficient to enable managemeuetermine that our internal controls are
effective for any period, or on an ongoing badisve are unable to assert that our internal costookr financial reporting are effective, market
perception of our financial condition and the traglprice of our stock may be adversely affected, arstomer perception of our business may
suffer.

Our stock price is volatile.

Our common stock price has experienced substamiatility in the past and may remain volatile iretfuture. Volatility in our stock price
can arise as a result of a number of the fact@sudsed in this “Risk Factors” section. Duringdis2013, our closing stock price ranged fror
high of $27.67 per share to a low of $13.16 pereshBhe stock market has experienced significaoe@nd volume fluctuation that has
affected the market price of many technology conmgmmwith such volatility often unrelated to thecogiting performance of these companies.
Divergence between our actual or anticipated firmesults and published expectations of analyatscause significant swings in our stock
price. Our stock price could also be affected byoamcements that we, our competitors, or our custsmmay make, particularly
announcements related to acquisitions or otheifgignt transactions. Our common stock is includedertain market indices and any change
in the composition of these indices to excludeanmpany would adversely affect our stock price.sehand other factors affecting
macroeconomic conditions or financial markets mayeamally adversely affect the market price of cammon stock in the future.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Overview. As of October 31, 2013, all of our properties rased and we do not own any real property. \A&eléacilities globally related
to the ongoing operations of our four business sggsmand related functions. Our principal execubffiees are located in two buildings in
Hanover, Maryland. In addition, we currently occupyp supply chain and logistics facilities in Liithm, Maryland.

Our largest facility is our research and developneenter located at “Lab 1@h the former Nortel Carling Campus in Ottawa, @ndge
below for information regarding the lease assodiat#h this engineering facility. We also have eragring and/or service facilities located in
San Jose, California; Alpharetta, Georgia; Spok#veshington; Kanata, Canada; and Gurgaon, Indiadétition, we lease various smaller
offices in the United States, Mexico, South AmeriEarope, the Middle East and the Asia-Pacificardd support our sales and services
operations. We believe the facilities we are noimgiare adequate and suitable for our businessresgents.

Hanover, Maryland Headquarters Leas€iena entered into a lease agreement dated Nare3n2011, with W2007 RDG Realty, L.L.C.
relating to office space for its new corporate ltpedters in Hanover, Maryland, consisting of areagrupon rentable area of approximately
154,100 square feet. At the commencement datenithienal rental commitments to be paid over the #&rjlease term were approximately
$61.8 million.

Carling, Ottawa LeaseCiena Canada, Inc., a subsidiary of Ciena, afdi¢®Works and Government Services Canada (PWGEL) a
parties to a lease agreement relating to Ciena&elef the “Lab 10” building on the former Nortelriing Campus in Ottawa, Canada (the
“Lease”). This facility consists of a rentable acg®65,000 square feet. During the term of thedeave will incur lease expense, consisting of
both base rent and fixed additional operating egperanging from approximately CAD $7.2 million gerar to approximately CAD $10.9
million . The Lease, originally entered into in MAr2010 with an affiliate of Nortel as part of Ca&nacquisition of Nortel's Metro Ethernet
Networks assets, initially had a -year term, but was subject to an early terminafature that allowed Nortel to reduce the terrtheflease
in exchange for its payment of an early terminafemof up to $33.5 million. In October 2010, Nodeld the Carling Campus, including the
“Lab 10" building, to PWGSC, which directed NoritelDecember 2010 to exercise its early terminatight. Accordingly, during the first
quarter of fiscal 2011, Ciena received from Nob@th notice of early termination shortening the deeto five years and the corresponding
$33.5 million early termination payment. The Leases subsequently amended, however, to extend rtimetteSeptember 18, 2017.

Restructuring We attempt to sublease properties that we nceloagcupy. As part of our restructuring costs, wevigle for the
estimated cost of the future net lease expensiége facilities. The cost is based on the faealf future minimum lease payments under
contractual obligations offset by the fair valuettud estimated future sublease payments that werecajve. As of October 31, 2013, our
accrued restructuring liability related to theseparties was $1.9 million . If actual market coiatis relating to the use of these facilities are
less favorable than those projected by manageradditjonal restructuring costs associated withetfasilities may be required. For additional
information regarding our lease obligations, se&eNad to the Consolidated Financial Statementteim B of Part Il of this annual report.
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding

On July 26, 2013, Ciena and Cheetah Omni LLC edteri® a settlement agreement relating to patégation pending in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District @x&s. The proceeding arose on July 29, 2011, wheet&h Omni filed a complaint against
Ciena and several other defendants alleging thrtdineof the parties' products infringe upon muéip.S. patents relating to reconfigurable
optical add-drop multiplexer (ROADM) technologidhe complaint sought injunctive relief and damadgisder the terms of the settlement,
Ciena agreed to make a one-time payment of $1/f®omitb Cheetah Omni in exchange for a fully pafhgense to all of the patents-in-suit, a
release from all claims for damages and otherfrediating to such patents, and a covenant not¢oGiena at any time on any non-medical
patents owned by or assigned to Cheetah Omni oeftbetive date of the settlement agreement aralgir July 26, 2017. On August 9, 2013,
the district court granted the parties' joint stipion of dismissal with prejudice.

On May 29, 2008, Graywire, LLC filed a complainttire United States District Court for the North&istrict of Georgia against Ciena
and four other defendants, alleging, among othag#) that certain of the parties' products infeni)S. Patent 6,542,673 (the “'673 Patent”),
relating to an identifier system and componentofiiical assemblies. The complaint seeks injunatlief and damages. In July 2009, upon
request of Ciena and certain other defendantd)i8ePatent and Trademark Office (“PTQ”) granteel diefendantshter partesapplication for
reexamination with respect to certain claims of' @Y Patent, and the district court granted tHerdiants' motion to stay the case pending
reexamination of all of the patents-in-suit. In Petber 2010, the PTO confirmed the validity of satams and rejected the validity of other
claims of the '673 Patent and Ciena and other defés filed an appeal. On March 16, 2012, the Pii@ppeal rejected multiple claims of the
'673 Patent, including the two claims on which @ignalleged to infringe. Subsequently, the pléintiquested a reopening of the prosecution
of the '673 Patent, which request was denied byi@ on April 29, 2013. Thereafter, on May 28, 20h@ plaintiff filed an amendment with
the PTO in which it canceled the claims of the '&&8ent on which Ciena is alleged to infringe. Tase currently remains stayed, and ther:
be no assurance as to whether or when the stapeviifted.

In addition to the matters described above, wesabect to various legal proceedings and clainsragiin the ordinary course of business,
including claims against third parties that mayoire contractual indemnification obligations on fieet of Ciena. We do not expect that the
ultimate costs to resolve these matters will haweaterial effect on our results of operations, fficial position or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.
PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters anslusr Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) During fiscal 2013, our common stock was tradedhe NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symMBeEN.” On December 12,
2013, we announced our intention to transfer i@l of our common stock from the NASDAQ Globalese Market to the New York Stock
Exchange, effective on or about December 23, 2Gkha common stock will continue to trade underdtoek symbol “CIEN.”

The following table sets forth the high and lowesaprices of our common stock, as reported on th8MAQ Global Select Market, for the
fiscal periods indicated.

High Low

Fiscal Year 2012

First Quarter ended January 31 $ 1532 % 10.3¢

Second Quarter ended April 30 $ 17.1¢ $ 13.4¢

Third Quarter ended July 31 $ 16.81 $ 11.4¢

Fourth Quarter ended October 31 $ 17.9¢ % 12.15
Fiscal Year 2013

First Quarter ended January 31 $ 16.4¢ % 13.1¢

Second Quarter ended April 30 $ 175 $ 14.3:

Third Quarter ended July 31 $ 22.9¢ $ 14.9]

Fourth Quarter ended October 31 $ 2761 $ 19.92
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As of December 12, 2013 , there were approximai@y holders of record of our common stock and 188240 shares of common stock
outstanding. We have never paid cash dividendsuocapital stock. We intend to retain earningsuee in our business, and we do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foralskefuture.

The following graph shows a comparison of cumukattal returns for an investment in our commoulstthe NASDAQ
Telecommunications Index and the NASDAQ Compositkek from October 31, 2008 to October 31, 2013e NASDAQ Composite Index
measures all domestic and international based constoeks listed on The Nasdaqg Stock Market. The DAQ Telecommunications Index
contains securities of NASDAQ-listed companiesdiféed according to the Industry Classification Bemark as Telecommunications and
Telecommunications Equipment, which include proksdsf fixed-line and mobile telephone services, arakers and distributors of high-
technology communication products. This graph isde@med to be “filed” with the SEC or subjecthe tiabilities of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&nhge Act”) and the graph shall not be deemée iocorporated by reference into any
prior or subsequent filing by us under the Seasifct of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act.

350 ‘/-

= A /./ =@—NASDAQ Teleco.
250 = =i NASDAQ Comp.
150 - B v e,

100 -

50

Oct-08 Apr-0% Oct-09 Apr-10 Oct-10 Apr-11 Oct-11 Apr-12 Oct-12 Apr-13 Oct-13

Assumes $100 invested in Ciena Corporation, the DIAQ Telecommunications Index and the NASDAQ Comfmbidex, respectively,
on October 31, 2008 with all dividends reinvestethanth-end.

(b) Not applicable.
(c) Not applicable.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial De

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Managei's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” #meConsolidated Financial Statements and the nioéesto included in Item 8, “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.” We have a 53-wareek fiscal year, which ends on the Saturdayes to the last day of October in
each year. For purposes of financial statemeneptation, each fiscal year is described as hawiage on October 31. Fiscal 2009, 2010, 2
and 2013 consisted of 52 weeks and fiscal 201 2isieasof 53 weeks.

Year Ended October 31,
(in thousands)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 485,70 $ 688,68° $ 541,89t $ 642,44: $ 346,48
Short-term investments $ 563,18: $ —  $ — % 50,057 $ 124,97¢
Long-term investments $ 8,031 $ — ¢ 50,26: $ — 15,03:
Total assets $ 1504,38 $ 2,118,090 $ 195141 $ 1,881,14. $ 1,802,77
Short-term convertible notes payable $ — $ — $ — $ 216,21 $ —
Long-term convertible notes payable $ 798,000 $ 1,442,700 $ 1,44236. $ 1,225800 $ 1,212,01
Total liabilities $ 1,04854! $ 1,958,800 $ 1,93754 $ 1,970,11! $ 1,885,44
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 45583t % 159,29: $ 1387 % (88,97) $ (82,677
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Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Acquisition and integration costs
Amortization of intangible assets
Restructuring costs
Goodwill impairment
Change in fair value of contingent consideration
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Interest and other income (loss), net
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on cost method investments
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt
Loss before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net loss
Basic net loss per common share

Diluted net loss per potential common share

Weighted average basic common shares outstanding
Weighted average dilutive potential common shares

outstanding

Year Ended October 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
$ 652,62 $ 123663 $ 1,741,971 $ 1,833,92 $ 2,082,54
367,79 739,13 1,032,82. 1,109,69" 1,217,37
284,83 497,50 709,14¢ 724,22 865,17
190,31¢ 327,62 379,86 364,17 383,40t
134,52 193,51! 251,99( 266,33 304,17
47 50 102,69: 126,24: 114,00; 122,43;
— 101,37¢ 42,08t — —
24,82t 99,40: 69,66: 51,69’ 49,77
11,20° 8,51¢ 5,781 7,85¢ 7,16¢
455 ,67: — — | —
— (13,807 (3,289 — —
864,06 819,32( 872,33 804,07( 866,95
(579,23) (321,81 (163,19:) (79,84¢) (1,775
9,487 3,917 6,02z (15,200 (5,742
(7,406) (18,619 (37,926 (39,659 (44,047
(5,326 — 7,24¢ — —
— 4,94¢ — — (28,630
(582,47¢) (331,57) (187,84%) (134,69¢) (80,19:)
(1,322 1,941 7,67¢ 9,32z 5,24(
$ (581,159 $ (33351) $ (19552) $ (144,02) $  (8543)
$ (6.37) $ (356 $ (2.04) $ (1.45) $ (0.89)
$ (6.37) $ (356 $ (204 $ (145 $ (0.89)
91,16’ 93,10: 95,85 99,34 102,35
91,16’ 93,10: 95,85 99,34 102,35
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ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

This report contains statements that discuss fuewents or expectations, projections of resultopérations or financial conditio
changes in the markets for our products and sesyioe other “forward-looking” information. Our “foward-looking” information is based ¢
various factors and was derived using numerousrapsions. In some cases, you can identify thesevdod-looking statementdiy words liki
“may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “antic ipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “intends,” “potential” or “continue” or the
negative of those words and other comparable words. should be aware that these statements ongctefur current predictions and belie
These statements are subject to known and unknigks, uncertainties and other factors, and actuadrds or results may differ materia
Important factors that could cause our actual résub be materially different from the forwelooking statements are disclosed throug|
this report, particularly under the heading “Risla€tors” in Item 1A of Part | of this annual report. You shibreview these risk factors fo
more complete understanding of the risks associaf#idl an investment in our securities. We undertageobligation to revise or update ¢
forward-looking statements. The following discussion andlysis should be read in conjunction with ouélected Consolidated Financ
Data” and consolidated financial statements and noteséto included elsewhere in this annual report.

Overview

We are a network specialist focused on networkoigt®ns that enable converged, next-generatiohi@atures, optimized to handle the
broad array of high-bandwidth communications sewilied upon by business and consumer end Werprovide equipment, software and
services that support the transport, switchingreggtion, service delivery and management of vaiitkso and data traffic on communications
networks.

Our Converged Packet Optical, Packet NetworkingjdapTransport and Software products are usedyishaally or as part of an
integrated, programmable solution, in networks afegt by communications service providers, cableaipes, governments, enterprises,
research and education institutions, content semioviders and other network operators acrosgltiee. Our products allow network
operators to scale capacity, increase transmisgieads, allocate network traffic and deliver sewito end users. Our network solutions also
include an integrated software suite that provitsvork and service management capabilities thif¢ oar product portfolio, facilitating
automation and software-defined programmabilitgti@ble efficient service delivery. To complement jpwduct portfolio, we offer a broad
range of Network Transformation Solutions and edatupport services that help our customers desfgimize, deploy, manage and maintain
their networks. We believe that the close, collakive partnership with customers enabled by ouagement model and services offering is al
important component of our network specialist apptoand a significant differentiator for Ciena watlr customers.

Rapid proliferation of and reliance by end usersrupommunications services and devices, increasdulity and growth in cloud-based
services have fundamentally affected the demarategdlupon communications networks and how thegesigned. Network operators face a
challenging and rapidly changing environment tlegjuires that their network infrastructures be rolea®ugh to address increasing capacity
needs and be flexible enough to adapt to new agijgit and service offerings. Network operatorscamapeting to distinguish their service
offerings to end users and generate revenue, widleaging the costs required to implement and miaitheir networks. To address these
business, infrastructure and service delivery enaiés, we believe network operators need a flekildastructure that can be adapted to
support a variety of applications and controllegbtigh the use of software.

Our OP"Architecture is designed to meet these challenggadviding increased scalability and programmahilas well as network-level
software applications to control and configurertieéwork dynamically. Through this network approask,seek to enable high-capacity,
configurable infrastructures that can adapt toctienging needs of end-users and the applicatiashty require, while providing flexible
interfaces for the integration of computing, steragpd network resources. By increasing networkiflkty for service delivery, reducing
required network elements and enabling increasalé st reduced cost, our solutions simplify networkt the same time, our approach
facilitates the creation of new service offering®ating business and operational value for outocusrs. Our OPArchitecture, which
underpins our solutions offering and guides oueaesh and development strategy, is described nutiyei the “Strategy” section of the
description of our business under Item 1 of Pat this annual report.

Our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, annual repantgorm 10-K and current reports on Forr 8ted with the SEC are available throu
the SEC's website at www.sec.gov or free of chargeur website as soon as reasonably practicatgleveé file these documents. We routir
post the reports above, recent news and annount¢gnfieancial results and other information aboigr@ that is important to investors in the
"Investors" section of our website at www.ciena.cémrestors are encouraged to review the “InveStestion of our website because, as with
the other disclosure channels that we use, frora tortime we may post material information on it that is not otherwise disseminated by
us.
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Market Opportunity and Strate(

We believe that the shift that is underway in netnarchitectures to next-generation, convergedstfuctures represents significant, long
term opportunities for our business. We believé tharket trends underlying this shift, including tbroliferation of devices running mobile
web applications, the prevalence of video applicetj the increase in machineft@chine connections, and the shift of enterprisecamsume
applications to cloud-based or virtualized netwenkironments, are indicative of increasing usedepukndence by consumers and enterprise
upon a growing variety of broadband applications services. We expect that these drivers will cargito require network operators to invest
in converged next-generation network infrastrucutat are more automated, open and software progadle. Our corporate strategy to
capitalize on these market dynamics, promote ojpeatefficiency and drive profitable growth of domsiness includes the initiatives set forth
in the "Strategy" section of the description of business in Item 1 of Part 1 of this annual report

Global Market Conditions and Competitive Landscape

During fiscal 2013, we gained considerable momerituour business and financial results and expeééra steadily improving market
environment, particularly as reflected in the speggbatterns and decisions of our largest North Araa service provider customers. We
believe that this spending reflects customer pesifee of, and a shift in network spending towardhtgapacity, next-generation network
architectures. Improved conditions during fiscal2@ollowed a lengthy period of macroeconomic utaaty and volatility, which caused
cautious customer behavior in our industry and et@tkThese conditions, most notably in Europe,gradiously resulted in lower levels of
capital expenditure on communications network wiftacture. Because the market opportunity and ingta@onditions during fiscal 2013
described above are in their early stages, we remaiertain as to their longéarm effect on the growth of our markets and bussnas well a
our results of operations.

Although we are beginning to see network operaadiapt converged network architectures that alighwieéh our OP" Architecture and
solutions offering, particularly in North Americapmpetition in our sector remains significant. Véatinue to encounter a highly competitive
marketplace, particularly for our converged paakmtcal products, as we and our competitors hatrednced new, high-capacity, high-speed
network solutions and have aggressively soughapdure market share. In this intense and fragmestetpetitive environment, securing new
opportunities, particularly in international marketften requires that we agree to unfavorable ceruial terms that can elongate the revenue
recognition cycle, add startup costs to deployno¢oiur solutions in customer networks, require ficial commitments or performance bonds
that place cash resources at risk, and other os@antractual commitments that place a dispropuat® allocation of risk upon the
vendor. These terms can adversely affect our eefibbperations and contribute to fluctuationsum @sults. We expect the competitive
landscape to remain challenging and dynamic asndether multinational equipment vendors introdnee, competing, next-generation
platforms, seek adoption of network architectupgdraaches and compete to obtain new businessaidn iatumbent positions with large
customers around the world. As networking technielmgeatures or layers converge, our competiimel$cape may broaden beyond traditi
competitors to include additional competitors faami®n IP routing, information technology and sofsva

Operational Reorganization

To address the growing need to transport, aggregetenanage multiple types of services, networkaipes are increasingly demanding
and adopting solutions that enable the convergehbeth network functions and network layers, paarly the integration of transport, OTN
switching and packet switching capabilities. Our"@¥chitecture and our continued development andtemtdof features to our solutions
portfolio are intended to address the market amdari&ing design dynamics faced by network operat8pecifically, we continue to converge
OTN switching and packet switching functionalitgarour coherent optical transport solutions. Atshene time, we are integrating more
transport functionality and packet switching intar switching platforms. To address these changesiinmarkets and the convergence of
certain solutions portfolios, during the first gigarof fiscal 2013, we reorganized our organizatl@tructure and the management of our
business into the following new operating segmeiijt€onverged Packet Optical; (ii) Packet Netwarki(iii) Optical Transport; and (iv)
Software and Services. Notably, our Converged Ra@gtical segment consists of our former PacketgapBwitching segment with the
addition of our 6500 Packet-Optical Platform. Wedeecast segment revenue and segment profitsdcalfR011 and fiscal 2012 presented in
this Form 10-K to reflect the new operating segraesiee "Results of Operations Gperating Segments"” below for additional detaitgareing
our new operating segments effective for fiscal2aad the product families and platforms that mak¢hese segments.

Convertible Debt Exchange Offer Transactions
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On December 27, 2012, we issued $187.5 milliorggregate principal amount of new 4.0% Convertitdai8r Notes due 2020 (the02C
Note") in separate, private transactions with holdersxchange for $187.5 million in aggregate princgmaount of our outstanding 4.0%
Convertible Senior Notes due 2015 (the “2015 Ngte3értain terms of the new 2020 Notes are the smsribe 2015 Notes that they replaced,
including the 4.0% annual cash interest rate aad:tinversion rate of 49.0557 shares of Ciena constamk per $1,000 in original principal
amount, which is equal to an initial conversiorcerof $20.385 per share. Unlike the 2015 Notes,gvew the principal amount of the 2020
Notes will accrete at a rate of 1.85% per year cemecing December 27, 2012, compounding on a-annual basis. The accreted portion of
the principal is payable in cash upon maturity dgs not bear cash interest and is not conveititideadditional Ciena common stock.
Consequently, in the event the 2020 Notes are ctetjethe accreted liability will extinguish withbpayment. Accretion of principal is
reflected as a non-cash component of interest exgpearing the term of the 2020 Notes. The 2020 Nalwo provide us with the option, at our
election, to convert the 2020 Notes in whole gpant, prior to maturity, into the underlying commstock, provided the trading price of our
common stock exceeds $26.50 (or 130% of the thplicajple conversion price) for the required measmet period. If we elect to convert the
2020 Notes on or before maturity, holders woul&hez a make-whole premium payable in Ciena comnaeksor its cash equivalent, at our
election. The 2020 Notes will mature on December2020. Following these private exchange offergeations, $187.5 million in aggregate
principal amount of the 2015 Notes remained outhtanwith terms unchanged. We believe that theresiém of maturity enabled by these
exchange transactions has strengthened our badhre¢ and provided enhanced financial flexibilBge Note 12 to our Consolidated Financia
Statements included in Item 8 of Part Il of thipae for a summary of the 2020 Notes, includingeaplanation of the $28.6 million loss on the
extinguishment of a portion of the 2015 Notes dreddeparate accounting for the debt and equity oasgs of the 2020 Notes.

Financial Results for Fourth Quarter Fiscal 2013

Revenue for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 wa83p4 million , representing a sequential increzs®4% from $538.4 million in the
third quarter of fiscal 2013 . Revenue-related itketaflecting sequential changes from the thirdrer of fiscal 2013 include:

»  Product revenue for the fourth quarter of fis2@13 increased by $39.0 million , primarily refiag an increase of $48.9 million in
Converged Packet Optical and an increase of $4l@min software. These increases were partiaffgai by a decrease of $13.6
million in Optical Transport .

» Service revenue for the fourth quarter of fis2@l3 increased by $6.0 million

* Revenue from the United States for the fourtartgr of fiscal 2013 was $326.2 million , a decesfiom $339.5 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2013 .

» International revenue for the fourth quartefisfal 2013 was $257.2 million , an increase frat®&9 million in the third quarter of
fiscal 2013 .

* As a percentage of revenue, international regemas 44.1% during the fourth quarter of fiscal20&n increase from 37.0% during
the third quarter of fiscal 2013 .

»  For the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 , one oustr accounted for greater than 10% of revenueesepting 16.5% of total revenue.
There were two customers that each accounted éatgrthan 10% of revenue in the third quartersaft 2013 , representing an
aggregate of 31.8% of total revenue.

Gross margin for the fourth quarter of fiscal 20 39.7% , a decrease from 42.4% in the thirdtquaf fiscal 2013 . Gross margin for
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 was largely imeacby the recognition of Converged Packet Optieaénue for certain large international
network builds with tier one customers, primarityaur Caribbean and Latin American region, wittiaideployments including a higher mix
of lower margin common equipment.

Operating expense was $232.1 million for the foguhrter of fiscal 2013 , an increase from $213Man in the third quarter of fiscal
2013 . Fourth quarter operating expense reflecteases of $11.9 million in selling and marketirngense and $7.4 million in research and
development expense. Increased selling and magketipense was primarily due to increased variatmepensation expense resulting from
strong order flow during fiscal 2013. As expectiadreased research and development expense disasafevelopment costs relating to
certain planned activities, the timing of which redvfrom the third to the fourth fiscal quarter 6f13.

In spite of the increased revenue in the fourthiguaf fiscal 2013 , our lower margin and increhsperating expense as described above
resulted in a loss from operations for the fourtlarger of fiscal 2013 of $0.4 million , as compate@ $14.8 million income from operations
during the third quarter of fiscal 2013 . Our redd for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 was
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$9.8 million , or $0.09 per share. This compares teet loss of $1.2 million or $0.01 per share tiar third quarter of fiscal 2013 .

We generated $3.6 million in cash from operatiomsnd) the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, consigtof $45.5 million provided by net
losses adjusted for non-cash charges, partialsebffy a $41.9 million use of cash related to chang working capital. We generated $42.0
million in cash from operations during the thirdagier of fiscal 2013 , consisting of $53.9 millifsom net losses adjusted for noash charge
partially offset by an $11.9 million use of cashated to changes in working capital.

As of October 31, 2013, we had $346.5 million skt and cash equivalents, $125.0 million of stertinvestments in U.S. treasury
securities and commercial paper and $15.0 millidlorg-term investments in U.S. treasury securitidgs compares to $378.2 million in cash
and cash equivalents, $100.0 million of short-tetaestments in U.S. treasury securities and $15ll@®mof long-term investments in U.S.
treasury securities at July 31, 2013 and $642.4amiin cash and cash equivalents and $50.1 milhibshort-term investments in U.S. treasury
securities at October 31, 2012 .

As of October 31, 2013 , we had 4,754 employeem@ease from 4,680 as of July 31, 2013 and aréase from 4,481 and 4,339 at
October 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

36




Table of Contents
Consolidated Results of Operations
Operating Segments

For the reasons described in "Overview" above mduttie first quarter of fiscal 2013, Ciena reorgadiits internal organizational structi
and the management of its business into the follgwmiew operating segments:

» Converged Packet Optical +acludes networking solutions optimized for the wergence of coherent optical transport, OTN
switching and packet switching. These platformsénautomated packet-optical infrastructures thedte and efficiently allocate
high-capacity bandwidth for the delivery of a widkriety of enterprise and consumer-oriented netvwgerkices. Products in this
segment include the 6500 Packet-Optical Platfomuiéng Ciena's WavelLogic coherent optical processgeroducts also include
Ciena's family of CoreDirector® Multiservice OpticGwitches, its 5430 Reconfigurable Switching Sysand its OTN configuration
for the 5410 Reconfigurable Switching System. Th@eelucts include multiservice, multi-protocol sshiing systems that consolidate
the functionality of an add/drop multiplexer, daitross-connect and packet switch into a sindég-bapacity intelligent switching
system. These products address both the core aind segments of communications networks and sugqegrimanaged services,
Ethernet/TDM Private Line, Triple Play and IP seed. This segment also includes sales of opersyistgm software and enhanced
software features embedded in each of these pmdretvenue from this segment is included in prodexetnue on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

» Packet Networkin— principally includes Ciena's 3000 family of servaaivery switches and service aggregation switcties5000
series of service aggregation switches, and iterB#t packet configuration for the 5410 Service reggtion Switch. These products
support the access and aggregation tiers of conuations networks and have principally been depldgesiipport wireless backhaul
infrastructures and business data services. Emmgaaphisticated, carrier-grade Ethernet switchéotinology, these products deliver
quality of service capabilities, virtual local anegtworking and switching functions, and carrieadg operations, administration, and
maintenance features. This segment also includesstlone broadband products that transition vieéte/orks to support Internet-
based (IP) telephony, video services and DSL. $&nent also includes sales of operating systetwaia and enhanced software
features embedded in each of these products. Reveoa this segment is included in product revemu¢he Consolidated Statement
of Operations.

» Optical Transport —includes optical transport solutions that add capa&c core, regional and metro networks and enabsg-
effective and efficient transport of voice, videtdalata traffic at high transmission speeds. Csgoincipal products in this segment
include the 4200 Advanced Services Platform, Cozast®Agility Optical Transport System, 5100/5200 Advati&ervices Platforr
Common Photonic Layer (CPL), and 6100 Multisernv@ygical Platform. This segment includes sales fRONET/SDH, transport
and data networking products, as well as certai@rprise-oriented transport solutions that supptantage and LAN extension,
interconnection of data centers, and virtual pavattworks. This segment also includes operatistpay software and enhanced
software features embedded in each of these pmdretvenue from this segment is included in prodexetnue on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

» Software and Services ireludes Ciena's network software suite, includhmg OneControl Unified Management System, an isatieg
network and service management software designadttmnate and simplify network management, operatitd service delivery.
These software solutions can track individual sssiacross multiple product suites, facilitatingnpled network maintenance, outage
detection and identification of customers or sessiaffected by network performance. This segmettidies the ON-Center®letwork
& Service Management Suite, Ethernet Services Mandptical Suite Release and network level aptina. This segment includes
a broad range of consulting, network design anghariservices from Ciena's Network Transformatiotusons offering. This
segment also includes installation and deploynmaatntenance support and training activities. Exéeptevenue from the software
portion of this segment, which is included in prodkevenue, revenue from this segment is includeskivices revenue on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Fiscal 2012 compared to Fiscal 2013
Revenut

The table below (in thousands, except percentagg dats forth the changes in our operating segnegenue for the periods indicated:
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Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 %* 2013 %* (decrease) %o**

Revenue:

Converged Packet Optical $ 951,24! 519 $ 1,187,23 570 $ 235,98t 24.¢

Packet Networking 128,98: 7.0 222,89¢ 10.7 93,91¢ 72.¢

Optical Transport 353,62( 19.3 233,82: 11.2 (119,799 (33.9

Software and Services 400,07¢ 21.8 438,59¢ 21.1 38,52( 9.6
Consolidated revenue $ 1,833,92 100.0 $ 2,082,554 100.0 $ 248,62: 13.€

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013

» Converged Packet Optical revenuéncreased significantly, reflecting a $176.7 miflimcrease in sales of our 6500 Packet-Optical
Platform, largely driven by service provider demémdhigh-capacity, optical transport for coherd@G and 100G network
infrastructures. In addition, sales of our 543®rdigurable switching system and the OTN configwrafor the 5410 Reconfigurable
Switching System increased by $71.0 million and.$illion respectively. These increases were allytbffset by a $22.0 million
decrease in sales of our CoreDirector® Multiser@gaical Switches. The strong performance of tegnsent, particularly as
compared to the expected annual revenue declin@gtical Transport segment revenue, reflects théepence of network operators
to adopt next-generation architectures that enhleleonvergence of high-capacity, coherent optiealsport with integrated OTN
switching and control plane functionality.

» Packet Networking revenueincreased reflecting a $101.0 million increase in sale®of 3000 and 5000 families of service deliv
and aggregation switches. This increase was sfigiittet by a $4.9 million decrease in sales of ™0 Service Aggregation Switch
and a $2.7 million decrease in sales of our oltlrdsalone broadband products. Segment revenuditeerfeom the expansion of
Ethernet business services by our North Americaviceprovider customers and sales of service dgfiand aggregation products
support of their related network initiatives.

»  Optical Transport revenue decreased , reflecting sales decreases of $55i0miit our 4200 Advanced Services Platform, $42.6
million in other stand-alone transport products $8d.1 million in our 5100/5200 Advanced Servic&gfBrm. Revenue for our
Optical Transport segment, which currently congisiscipally of stand-alone WDM and SONET/SDidsed transport platforms, t
experienced meaningful declines in annual revenuedent years, reflecting network operators' itemmstoward next-generation
network architectures as described above.

« Software and Services revenumcreased , reflecting sales increases of $15.0omih software, $14.2 million in installation and
deployment, $7.6 million in maintenance and suppervices and $1.7 million in network transformat@mnsulting services.

Revenue from sales to customers outside of theedi8tates is reflected as International in the ggadgc distribution of revenue below.
The table below (in thousands, except percentazg dats forth the changes in geographic distioutif revenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 %* 2013 %* (decrease) %o**
United States $ 972,57¢ 53.0 $ 1,217,46: 585 $ 244,88t 25.2
International 861,34 47.0 865,08 41.5 3,731 04
Total $ 1,833,922 100.0 $ 2,082,54( 100.0 $ 248,62 13.6

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013

* United States revenueeflects increases of $152.0 million in Convergegket Optical sales, $95.5 million in Packet Nekiry
sales, and $28.2 million in Software and Serviezenue. These increases were partially offset by a
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$30.9 million decrease in Optical Transport sdlesreased revenues reflect early adoption by nétwperators in the United States
converged network architectures that align welhvaitir OP* Architecture and solutions offering.

* International revenue reflects increasesf $84.0 million in Converged Packet Optical salad $10.3 million increase in Software .
Services revenue. These increases were partidfigtdfy decreases of $88.9 million in Optical Trors sales and $1.6 million in
Packet Networking sales.

A sizable portion of our revenue continues to cdrom sales to a relatively small number of sernpoaviders. As a result, our financial
results are significantly affected by and can fhaté depending upon spending levels and the bgsammortunities and challenges encountere
by our service provider customers. Some of ouratusts have indicated a procurement strategy taceethe number of vendors from which
they purchase equipment, which could further aféestconcentration of revenue where we participatbese efforts. Sales to AT&T were
$248.1 million , or 13.5% of total revenue, in 862012 and $373.6 million , or 17.9% of total newe, in fiscal 2013 . We did not have any
other customers accounting for greater than 10@upfevenue in fiscal 2012 or fiscal 2013 .

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit

Product cost of goods sold consists primarily obants paid to third party contract manufactureosngonent costs, employee-related
costs and overhead, shipping and logistics costcaged with manufacturing-related operationsardy and other contractual obligations,
royalties, license fees, amortization of intangifsets, cost of excess and obsolete inventorywdreh applicable, estimated losses on
committed customer contracts.

Services cost of goods sold consists primarilyicdal and third party costs, including employetated costs, associated with our provi
of services including installation, deployment, manhance support, consulting and training actisjtend, when applicable, estimated losses ¢
committed customer contracts.

Our gross profit as a percentage of revenue, @sgmargin,” is susceptible to fluctuations dua tmmber of factors. In any given period,
gross margin can vary significantly depending ufenmix and concentration of revenue by segmentuyart line within a particular segment,
geography, and customers. Gross margin can alatfdied by our concentration of lower margin "coomhequipment sales and higher
margin channel cards, the mix of lower margin ihstian services within our service revenue, odrdaduction of new products, and changes it
expense for excess and obsolete inventory and mtgrobligations. We expect that gross margins belisubject to fluctuation based on our
level of success in driving product cost reductioaonalizing our supply chain and consolidatihigd party contract manufacturers and
distribution sites as part of our effort to optimiaur operations. Gross margin can also be adyeaxffekcted by the level of pricing pressure
competition that we encounter in the market. Irefiart to retain or secure customers, enter nevkataror capture market share, we may a
to pricing or other unfavorable commercial termet ttesult in lower or negative gross margins omuiqular order or group of orders. These
market dynamics and factors may adversely affecgoass margin and results of operations in ceftaitods.

Service gross margin can be affected by the mbustomers and services, particularly the mix bebtngsployment and maintenance
services, geographic mix and the timing and ex@ééany investments in internal resources to supihistbusiness.

The tables below (in thousands, except percentagg det forth the changes in revenue, cost ofgeolll and gross profit for the periods
indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 %* 2013 %* (decrease) %**
Total revenue $ 1,833,92 100.0 $ 2,082,541 100.0 $ 248,62: 13.6
Total cost of goods sold 1,109,69! 60.5 1,217,37. 58.5 107,67: 9.7
Gross profit $ 724,22 395 $ 865,17! 415 $ 140,95: 19.5

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013
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Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 %* 2013 %* (decrease) %o**
Product revenue $ 1,454,99 100.c $ 1,680,12! 1000 $ 225,13: 155
Product cost of goods sold 868,80! 59.7 967,51( 57.6 98,70t 11.4
Product gross profit $ 586,18t 403 $ 712,61t 424 $ 126,42 21.6
* Denotes % of product revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013
Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 %* 2013 %* (decrease) %**
Service revenue $ 378,93. 100.0 $ 402,42: 1000 $ 23,48¢ 6.2
Service cost of goods sold 240,89: 63.6 249,86: 62.1 8,961 3.7
Service gross profit $ 138,03t 36.4 $ 152,56( 379 $ 14,52 10.5

* Denotes % of service revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013

» Gross profit as a percentage of revenuiacreaseds a result of the factors described be

e Gross profit on products as a percentage of produagevenueincreased primarily due to improved mix of higheawgin packet
platforms with software content, including withinrd®Packet Networking and Converged Packet Optegireents, higher sales of
integrated network service management softwaregiavarranty costs, and greater leverage from aftorstreamline and optimize
our supply chain activities.

» Gross profit on services as a percentage of serviceevenueincreased primarily due to improved margins onalation and
deployment services due to improved operationaieffcies, and increased consulting service revémume our Network
Transformation Solutions offering.

Operating Expense

We expect operating expense to increase in fistd 2rom the level reported for fiscal 2013 to smpphe growth of our business and
fund our research and development initiatives. @jreg expense consists of the component elemeantsided below.

Research and development expgiramarily consists of salaries and related emplagpgeense (including share-based compensation
expense), prototype costs relating to design, dgveént, and testing of our products, depreciatiggease and third party consulting co

Selling and marketing expengemarily consists of salaries, commissions andtesl employee expense (including share-based
compensation expense), and sales and marketingdugpense, including travel, demonstration unitgje show expense and third party
consulting costs.

General and administrative experm@émarily consists of salaries and related emploggeense (including share-based compensation
expense), and costs for third party consulting athér services.

Amortization of intangible assepsimarily reflects purchased technology and custorelationships from our acquisitions.
Restructuring costprimarily reflect actions Ciena has taken to bedten its workforce, facilities and operating costith perceived

market opportunities, business strategies and @saingnarket and business conditions.
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The table below (in thousands, except percentatzg dats forth the changes in operating expensthéoperiods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 %* 2013 %* (decrease) %o**
Research and development $  364,17¢ 199 $ 383,40t 18.4 $ 19,22¢ 5.3
Selling and marketing 266,33¢ 14.5 304,17( 14.6 37,83: 14.2
General and administrative 114,00: 6.2 122,43. 5.9 8,43( 7.4
Amortization of intangible assets 51,69° 2.8 49,77 2.4 (1,926 (3.7
Restructuring costs 7,85¢ 0.4 7,16¢ 0.3 (68E) (8.7
Total operating expenses $ 804,07( 438 $ 866,95( 416 $ 62,88( 7.8

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013

» Research and development expendenefited from $4.0 million as a result of foregxchange rates, primarily due to the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar in relation to @enadian dollar and the Indian Rupee. The $19llibbmi increase primarily reflects
increases of $15.9 million in employee compensatiath related costs, $7.5 million in prototype exgeer$5.2 million in facilities and
information systems expense and $2.1 million imt@togy-related purchases. The increase in emplogegensation is primarily
related to incentive-based compensation. Theseases were partially offset by a $12.5 million éase in professional services.

» Selling and marketing expenséncreased by $37.8 million , primarily reflectimgcreases of $26.5 million in employee compensatio
and related costs, $6.8 million in facilities anfbrmation systems expense, $4.5 million of trare related costs, $2.0 million in
trade show and related expense and $1.1 milligmafessional services. A significant portion of @ureased employee compensa
and related costs reflect commissions-based corafiensassociated with strong order flows achievadng fiscal 2013. These
increases were partially offset by decreases & @illion of freight and logistic costs and $1.3llnih for customer demonstration
equipment.

* General and administrative expenséncreased by $8.4 million primarily reflecting arciease of $10.8 million in employee
compensation and related costs, partially offsed B2.7 million decrease in facilities and inforfoatsystems expense. The increas
employee compensation is primarily related to itniverbased compensation.

» Amortization of intangible assetsdecreased due to certain intangible assets hagaahed the end of their economic Ii

» Restructuring costsfor fiscal 2012 and 2013 primarily reflect certagverance and related expense associated withdweddc
reductions and restructuring activities to aligm workforce and resources with market opportunidied research and development
initiatives. In addition, restructuring costs fegdal 2012 and 2013 include the consolidation ofade facilities located within
Maryland associated with the transition of our ltpeadters facility.

Other items

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in other items for #réops indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 %* 2013 %* (decrease) %**
Interest and other income (loss), net $ (15,200) 0.9 $ (5,749 03 $ 9,45¢ 62.2
Interest expense $ 39,65! 22 % 44,04: 21 % 4,38¢ 11.1
Loss on debt extinguishment $ — — % (28,63() 149 $ (28,630) (100.0)
Provision for income taxes $ 9,32 0t % 5,24( 208 (4,082) (43.¢)
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*

*%

Denotes % of total revenue
Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013

Interest and other income (loss), nein fiscal 2013, reflects a $3.0 million non-caslinglated to the change in fair value of the
embedded redemption feature associated with ous Riites. In fiscal 2012, interest and other incdloss), net reflected a $6.6
million non-cash loss related to the change invalue of the embedded redemption feature.

Interest expenseancreased , reflecting increases of $3.0 millidatieg to our convertible note exchange transastiuring the first
quarter of fiscal 2013 as described in "Overviete, and $2.1 million in expense relating to caged-backed loan facility entered
into during fiscal 2012. These increases were gfrtoffset by a decrease of interest expensestafi2013 of $0.6 million, principally
due to the repayment of our 0.25% convertible gamites at maturity in the second quarter of fiR€Hl3.

Loss on extinguishment of debteflects a non-cash loss of $28.6 million relationghe exchange transactions during the first guart
of fiscal 2013 as described in "Overview" aboveobissuance, the 2020 Notes were recorded at adtie of $213.6 million. The
exchange transactions resulted in the retiremeatitstanding 2015 Notes with a carrying value &%2 million and the write-off of

unamortized debt issuance costs of $2.3 million%hé million relating to the redemption featuretba 2015 Notes accounted for as
a separate embedded derivative.

Provision for income taxedor fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013 are primarily relhto foreign tax expense. The decrease in fithB 25
largely attributable to the recognition of prioraemtain tax benefits.

Fiscal 2011 compared to Fiscal 2012

Revenu

The table below (in thousands, except percentagg dats forth the changes in our operating segnegenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %o**

Revenue:

Converged Packet Optical $ 734,32t 421 $ 951,24! 519 $ 216,91¢ 29.t

Packet Networking 126,98: 7.3 128,98. 7.0 2,001 1.€

Optical Transport 535,87 30.8 353,62( 19.3 (182,25) (34.0

Software and Services 344,78¢ 19.8 400,07¢ 21.8 55,29( 16.C
Consolidated revenue $ 1,741,97 100.0 $ 1,833,92: 1000 $ 91,95: 5.3

*

*%k

Denotes % of total revenue
Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

Converged Packet Optical revenuéncreased , reflecting a $232.5 million increassdles of our 6500 Packet-Optical Platform,
largely driven by service provider demand for higtpacity, optical transport for coherent 40G and@ @etwork infrastructures. In
addition, sales of our 5430 reconfigurable switghégstem and the OTN configuration for the 5410drRéigurable Switching System

increased by $23.4 million and $11.1 million regpety. These increases were partially offset [$68.1 million decrease in sales of
our CoreDirector® Multiservice Optical Switches.

Packet Networking revenueincreased slightly, reflecting increases of $10ilfion in sales of our 3000 and 5000 families ofvsee
delivery and aggregation switches and a $5.9 millicrease in sales of our 5410 Service Aggrega&iwitch to support wireless
backhaul, Ethernet business services and resitlendiadband applications. Segment revenue bendfibed the expansion of Etherr
business services by our North American serviceiges customers and sales of service delivery gulegation products in support

of their related network initiatives. These incesawvere partially offset by a $14.6 million redoatin sales of our older stand-alone
broadband products.

Optical Transport revenue decreased , reflecting sales decreases of $82ibmmi our 4200 Advanced Services Platform, $60.5
million in other stand-alone transport products &86.7 million of our 5100/5200 Advanced Services
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Platform. Revenue for our Optical Transport segmwhich currently consists principally of stand+aoWDM and SONET/SDH-
based transport platforms, has experienced meainidgtlines in annual revenue in recent yearsec#fig network operators'
transition toward next-generation network architees as described above.

» Software and Services revenumcreased , reflecting increases of $15.2 milliométwork transformation consulting services, $15.0
million in installation and deployment, $13.3 malti in maintenance and support services revenu&hsh@ million in software sales.

Revenue from sales to customers outside of theed8tates is reflected as International in the ggadc distribution of revenue below.
The table below (in thousands, except percentatzg dats forth the changes in geographic distrinutif revenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %o**
United States $ 930,88 534 $ 972,57¢ 53.0 $ 41,69¢ 4.5
International 811,09( 46.6 861,34 47.0 50,25° 6.2
Total $ 1,741,97¢ 100.0 $ 1,833,92 100.0 $ 91,95: 53

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

» United States revenuencreased , primarily due to a $100.6 million iraze in Converged Packet Optical sales, a $32.&mill
increase in Software and Services revenue anddandiflion increase in Packet Networking sales. Ehiesreases were partially offset
by a $95.9 million decrease in Optical Transpolesa

» International revenue increased , primarily due to a $116.3 million irase in Converged Packet Optical sales and a $22iGrm
increase in Software and Services revenue. Theseases were partially offset by a $86.3 milliooréase in Optical Transport sales
and a $2.4 million decrease in Packet Networkirgssa

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit

The tables below (in thousands, except percentag det forth the changes in revenue, cost ofgeolll and gross profit for the periods
indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**
Total revenue $ 1,741,97 100.0 $ 1,833,92. 100.0 $ 91,95! 5.3
Total cost of goods sold 1,032,82. 59.3 1,109,69! 60.5 76,87¢ 7.4
Gross profit $ 709,14¢ 40.7 $ 724,22: 395 $ 15,07¢ 21
* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012
Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %o**
Product revenue $ 1,406,53; 100.0 $ 1,454,99: 100.0 $ 48,45¢ 3.4
Product cost of goods sold 825,96 58.7 868,80! 59.7 42,83¢ 5.2
Product gross profit $ 580,56: 413 $ 586,18t 403 $ 5,62: 1.0
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* Denotes % of product revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**
Service revenue $ 335,43t 100.0 $ 378,93: 100.0 $ 43,49 13.0
Service cost of goods sold 206,85! 61.7 240,89: 63.6 34,03¢ 16.5
Service gross profit $ 128,58 383 % 138,03¢ 364 % 9,45¢ 7.4

* Denotes % of service revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

» Gross profit as a percentage of revenudecreaseds a result of the factors described be

» Gross profit on products as a percentage of produaevenuedecreased primarily due to a higher concentratfidaveer margin
product revenue within our Optical Transport segimieareased warranty expense and provisions f@ritory excess and
obsolescence, partially offset by higher margirmoanConverged Packet Optical products.

» Gross profit on services as a percentage of serviceevenuedecreasedue to a higher concentration of lower margin iltestian and
deployment services for international solutionseolgrojects.

Operating expense

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in operating expensthéoperiods indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**

Research and development $ 379,86. 218 $ 364,17¢ 199 $ (15,687) (4.9
Selling and marketing 251,99( 14.t 266,33t 145 14,34¢ 5.7
General and administrative 126,24 7.2 114,00: 6.2 (12,240 (9.7
Acquisition and integration costs 42,08¢ 2.4 — — (42,089 (200.0
Amortization of intangible assets 69,66" 4.C 51,69: 2.8 (17,96¢) (25.9)
Restructuring costs 5,781 0.2 7,85¢ 0.4 2,07: 35.¢
Change in fair value of contingent

consideration (3,289 (0.2 — — 3,28¢ 100.(
Total operating expenses $ 872,33¢ 50.C $ 804,071 438 $ (68,269 (7.9

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

* Research and development expendenefited from $6.8 million as a result of foregrchange rates, primarily due to the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar in relation to @enadian dollar and the Indian Rupee. The $15lomdecrease primarily reflects
decreases of $11.0 million in employee compensatiwhrelated costs, $4.2 million in depreciatiopense and $2.8 million in
prototype expense. This was partially offset byrmnease of $3.2 million for facilities and infortian systems expense.

» Selling and marketing expensdenefited from $4.5 million due to foreign exchamgtes, primarily due to the strengthening of the
U.S. dollar in relation to the Euro and the Canadiallar. The $14.3 million increase primarily egfts increases of $9.9 million in
employee compensation, $4.2 million in facilitieglanformation systems expense and $2.1 milliotrafel and related costs. This
increase was partially offset by decreases of #illl®n each in trade show and advertising expense.
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* General and administrative expenselecreased by $12.2 million primarily related tor@ases of $4.9 million in professional
services, $4.4 million in employee compensation @tated costs largely related to reduced shareebesmpensation expense, and
$2.3 million in facilities and information systeraspense.

» Acquisition and integration costsprincipally consist of transaction, consulting ahild party service fees related to the acquisition
and integration of the MEN Business into the corablinperations. This integration activity was sufisély completed in the first he
of fiscal 2011.

« Amortization of intangible assetsdecreased due to certain intangible assets hagaahed the end of their economic lives during
fiscal 2011.

e Restructuring costsfor fiscal 2011 and 2012 primarily reflect certaigverance and related expense associated withdweddc
reductions and restructuring activities to aligm workforce and resources with market opportunigied research and development
initiatives. In addition, restructuring costs fegdal 2012 include the consolidation of certairilfies located within Maryland
associated with the transfer of our headquarteitia

e Change in fair value of contingent consideratiomelates to the contingent refund right we recei@ggart of the acquisition of the
MEN Business associated with the early terminatibtihe Carling lease. During the first quarteristél 2011, Ciena received from
Nortel notice of early termination, shortening tarling lease from ten years to five years, and @&sult, reported a $3.3 millic
gain. See Item 2 of Part | of this annual repartnfiore information on this transaction.

Other items

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in other items for #véogds indicated:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 %* 2012 %* (decrease) %**
Interest and other income (loss), net $ 6,02: 03 % (15,200 0.8 % (21,22) (352.9)
Interest expense $ 37,92¢ 22 $ 39,65! 22 % 1,72 4.€
Gain on cost method investments $ 7,24¢ 04 $ — — % (7,249 100.(
Provision for income taxes $ 7,67: 04 $ 9,32¢ 0 % 1,64¢ 21.t

* Denotes % of total revenue
**  Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

* Interest and other income (loss), netlecreased, due to a $7.7 million ncash loss in fiscal 2012 related to the foreigrhexge rate
on assets and liabilities denominated in a curreiogr than the relevant functional currency aspaned to a $4.3 million non-cash
gain in fiscal 2011. Interest and other incomegJpret was also affected by a $6.6 million norhdass in fiscal 2012 related to the
change in fair value of the embedded redemptiotufeassociated with our 4.0% convertible senidesidue March 15, 2015, as
compared to a $2.8 million non-cash gain in fi@l1.

» Interest expensancreased , due to an additional week of interggérse from our convertible notes payable in fi€dl2 and the
expense associated with our asset backed loarednteo during fiscal 2012.

e Gain on cost method investmentfor fiscal 2011 was the result of the sale of agiely held technology company in which we held «
minority equity investment.

» Provision for income taxesncreased primarily due to increased foreign tarésted to additional foreign activi

Segment Profit

The table below (in thousands, except percentazg dats forth the changes in our segment prafithfe respective periods:
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Fiscal Year
Increase
2012 2013 (decrease) %*
Segment profit:
Converged Packet Optical $ 148,24 $ 242,33!  $ 94,09: 63.-
Packet Networking $ 1,712 $ 22,740 $ 21,02 1,227."
Optical Transport $ 116,73t $ 89,75¢ $ (26,987) (23.])
Software and Services $ 93,35: $ 126,93t $ 33,58t¢ 36.C

* Denotes % change from 2012 to 2013

e Converged Packet Optical segment profilncreased primarily due to increased sales volumdeimproved gross margin, partially
offset by increased research and development egp&hs increased sales volume is largely drivesdvyice provider demand for
high-capacity, optical transport for coherent 461@ 400G network infrastructures and improved groasgin due to a greater mix of
higher-margin packet platforms with software conteithin the segment.

» Packet Networking segment profitincreased primarily due to increased sales volumdeimproved gross margin, partially offset by
increased research and development expense. Petkatrking revenue benefited from the expansioktbernet business services
our North American service provider customers aldssof service delivery and aggregation productipport of their related
network initiatives. Gross margin improved due @raater mix of higher-margin packet platforms vatiitware content within the
segment.

e Optical Transport segment profit decreased primarily due to reduced sales voluméiajia offset by improved gross margin and
lower research and development expense. Revenueif@ptical Transport segment, which currentlysists principally of stand-
alone WDM and SONET/SDH-based transport platfotmas, experienced meaningful declines in annual teyémrecent years,
reflecting network operators' transition toward thgeneration network architectures as describegeabo

e Software and Services segment profincreased primarily due to increased sales volundeimproved gross margin. The increased
sales volume is primarily due to higher sales far software products and installation services. iity@oved margins are primarily
installation and deployment services margins dusfwoved operational efficiencies.

The table below (in thousands, except percentatgg dats forth the changes in our segment prdfitife respective periods:

Fiscal Year
Increase
2011 2012 (decrease) %*
Segment profit:
Converged Packet Optical $ 5151 $ 148,24. $ 96,73( 187.¢
Packet Networking $ 17,71« $ 1,711 $ (16,007) (90.9)
Optical Transport $ 189,49° $ 116,73t 3 (72,76 (38.9
Software and Services $ 70,55¢ $ 93,35 $ 22,79: 32.2

* Denotes % change from 2011 to 2012

» Converged Packet Optical segment profiincreased primarily due to higher sales volumeiamitoved gross margin, partially offset
by increased research and development expensduigtiner sales volume is largely driven by serviceviler demand for high-
capacity, optical transport for coherent 40G and@@detwork infrastructures.

» Packet Networking segment profitdecreased due to increased research and developrpamtse and lower gross margin, partially
offset by higher sales volume. Packet Networkingneie benefited from the expansion of Ethernetimssi services by our North
American service provider customers and salesrgfcgedelivery and aggregation products in suppbtheir related network
initiatives.
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e Optical Transport segment profit decreased due to lower sales volume and lower gnasgin, partially offset by decreased researcl
and development expense. Revenue for our Opti@alsport segment, which currently consists pringipaf stand-alone WDM and
SONET/SDH-based transport platforms, has experénmeeaningful declines in annual revenue in receatsy, reflecting network
operators' transition toward next-generation nekvawchitectures as described above.

» Software and Services segment profincreased primarily due to increased sales volumndedgcreased research and development
expense, partially offset by a higher concentratibrevenue from lower margin installation and agphent services for international
solutions-based projects.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At October 31, 2013, our principal sources ofilifiy were cash and cash equivalents and short-tevestments and long-term
investments in marketable debt securities, reptageh.S. treasuries and commercial paper. Thevoilg table sets forth changes in our cast
and cash equivalents and investments in marketiiesecurities (in thousands):

October 31, Increase
2012 2013 (decrease)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 642,44: $ 346,48 $ (295,95
Short-term investments in marketable debt secaritie 50,057 124,97¢ 74,92:
Long-term investments in marketable debt securities — 15,03: 15,03:
Total cash and cash equivalents and investmemsiketable debt securities ~ $ 692,50:  $ 486,49 $ (206,009

The change in total cash and cash equivalentsrasedtiments in marketable debt securities durirgafig013 was primarily related to the
following:

*  $216.2 millionused to pay our 0.25% convertible senior notesedtirity;

» $44.7 million cash generated by operations, isting of $161.4 million from net losses adjustedrion-cash charges and $116.7
million for changes in working capital;

»  $43.8 million for purchases of equipment, fuund, fixtures and intellectual property, partiadffset by $2.3 million transferred from
restricted cash as a result of reductions in caBateral required to support our standby lettdrsredit;

»  $3.7 million used for transaction costs for fivate exchange offers relating to our 2015 Net@npleted during the first quarter of
fiscal 2013 as described in "Overview" above;

*  $3.3 millionused relating to payment of capital lease obligesti@ni

* $15.9 millionfrom proceeds of stock issuances under our emplsiped purchase plan and the exercise of stockiog

As described above, on December 27, 2012, we isBL&.5 million in aggregate principal amount oiwi2020 Notes in separate, private
transactions with holders in exchange for the eaignt of $187.5 million in aggregate principal amioaf our outstanding 2015 Notes. For a
summary of the exchange transactions and the rabterms of the 2020 Notes see "Overview" aboveNo@ 12 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of thismaal report. Following these private exchangerdfnsactions, $187.5 million in aggregate
principal amount of the 2015 Notes remained outitanwith terms unchanged.

In fiscal 2012, we entered into a $150.0 millionise secured asset-based revolving credit fadfthy “Credit Facility”). See Note 1t® our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8eofi Part Il of this annual report for a summanthe material terms and conditions of this
Credit Facility. We principally use the Credit Hagito support the issuance of letters of creklittarise in the ordinary course of our business
and thereby to reduce our use of cash requireditateralize these instruments. As of October 31,2, letters of credit totaling $43.6 million
were collateralized by the Credit Facility. Therer&sno borrowings outstanding under the Creditliéaeis of October 31, 2013 .

We regularly evaluate our liquidity position, dettligations, and anticipated cash needs to fundparating plans and may consider
capital raising and other market opportunities thay be available to us. Based on past performandeurrent expectations, we believe that
our cash, cash equivalents and investments wilifgaiur working capital needs, capital expendisuaed other liquidity requirements
associated with our operations through at leashéx¢ 12 months.
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The following sections set forth the componentswf$44.7 million of cash generated by operatirtg/éies for fiscal 2013 :
Net loss adjusted for non-cash charges

The following tables set forth (in thousands) oet loss adjusted for non-cash charges during thecpe

Year ended
October 31, 2013

Net loss $ (85,43)
Adjustments for non-cash charges:

Loss on extinguishment of debt 28,63(
Depreciation of equipment, furniture and fixturesd amortization of leasehold improvements 55,69¢
Share-based compensation costs 37,72(
Amortization of intangible assets 71,30¢
Provision for inventory excess and obsolescence 19,93¢
Provision for warranty 24,55¢
Other 9,02:
Net losses adjusted for non-cash charges $ 161,44

Working Capital
Accounts Receivable, Net
Cash used by increases in accounts receivablegifistal 2013 , net of $2.3 million in provisionrfdoubtful accounts, was $145.4

million . Our days sales outstanding (DSOs) incedefsom 69 days for fiscal 2012 to 84 days fordis2013 . This increase was primarily due
to a high volume of sales towards the end of thetfoquarter of fiscal 2013.

The following table sets forth (in thousands) chemtp our accounts receivable, net of allowancedabtful accounts, from the end of
fiscal 2012 through the end of fiscal 2013 :

October 31, Increase
2012 2013 (decrease)
Accounts receivable, net $ 345,49t $ 488,57¢ $ 143,08:

Inventory

Cash used by increases in inventory during fisbaB2was $8.9 million . Our inventory turns increaé®m 3.3 turns during fiscal 2012 to
3.9 turns during fiscal 2013 . During fiscal 20Xhanges in inventory reflect a $19.9 million n@sic provision for excess and obsolescence.
The following table sets forth changes (in thousdnd the components of our inventory from the ehfiscal 2012 through the end fiscal
2013:

October 31, Increase
2012 2013 (decrease)
Raw materials $ 39,67¢ % 53,27: $ 13,59¢
Work-in-process 10,73¢ 7,77: (2,969
Finished goods 178,21( 153,85! (24,355
Deferred cost of goods sold 71,48¢ 75,76¢ 4,28(
Gross inventory 300,10¢ 290,66¢ (9,447)
Provision for inventory excess and obsolescence (40,010 (41,569) (1,557%)
Inventory $ 260,09¢ $ 249,107 $ (10,995)
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Prepaid expenses and other

Cash used by prepaid expense and other durind #6d&8 was $82.8 million and primarily related berieases in prepaid value added tax,
maintenance spares and deferred deployment expense.

Accounts payable, accruals and other obligations

Cash generated by a lower utilization of cash nessufor accounts payable, accruals and otheratisigs during fiscal 2013 was $115.3
million . Changes in accrued liabilities reflec$24.6 million non-cash provision related to warest

The following table sets forth (in thousands) ctemim our accounts payable, accruals and othegaitiins from the end of fiscal 2012
through the end of fiscal 2013 :

October 31, Increase
2012 2013 (decrease)
Accounts payable $ 179,70 $ 254,84¢ $ 75,14¢
Accrued liabilities 209,54( 271,65¢ 62,11¢
Other long-term obligations 31,77¢ 34,75 2,97¢
Accounts payable, accruals and other obligations $ 421,020 § 561,25( $ 140,23!

Interest Paid on Convertible Notes and Credit Hagil

The final interest due on our 0.25% convertibleigenotes was paid on May 1, 2013. We paid $0.8anilin interest on these convertible
notes during fiscal 2013 . The remaining princig@ount outstanding on these notes was paid at ityaturing the second quarter of fiscal
2013 and the notes are no longer outstanding.

Interest on our outstanding 4.0% convertible senaies, due March 15, 2015, is payable on MarcartbSeptember 15 of each year. We
paid $7.5 million in interest on these convertib&#tes during fiscal 2013 . Upon completion of tlebtdexchange described above, we hidl
million in accrued interest on these notes wipeet to the portion exchanged.

Interest on our outstanding 0.875% convertiblewembtes, due June 15, 2017, is payable on Juaad December 15 of each year. We
paid $4.4 million in interest on these convertibtges during fiscal 2013 .

Interest on our outstanding 3.75% convertible semites, due October 15, 2018, is payable on Apriind October 15 of each year. We
paid $13.1 million in interest on these convertibdges during fiscal 2013 .

Interest on our outstanding 4.0% convertible senaies, due December 15, 2020, is payable on Juaed December 15 of each year.
paid $3.5 million in interest on these convertibt#es during fiscal 2013 .

During fiscal 2013, Ciena utilized the Credit Fagito collateralize certain standby letters ofditeWe paid $1.5 million in commitment
fees, interest expense and other administrativegekaelating to the Credit Facility during fis@@I13 .

For additional information about our convertiblaemand the private exchange transactions relatéget2015 and 2020 Notes, see Note
12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements inauddtem 8 of Part Il of this annual report. Fald#ional information about the Credit
Facility, see Note 13 to our Consolidated FinanStatements included in Item 8 of Part Il of tlepart.

Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue increased by $5.1 million duriege 2013 . Product deferred revenue represettisrgdayments received in advance of
shipment or payments received in advance of revesnagnition. Services deferred revenue is relaigghyment for service contracts that will

be recognized over the contract term. The followatge reflects (in thousands) the balance of deflerevenue and the change in this balance
from the end of fiscal 2012 through the end ofdis2013 :
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October 31, Increase
2012 2013 (decrease)
Products $ 29,27¢ % 36,67. $ 7,392
Services 77,79 75,49¢ (2,29¢)
Total deferred revenue $ 107,07¢  § 112,17¢  § 5,09¢

Contractual Obligations

During the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we comphtthe debt exchange transactions described alnovissued new 4.0% convertible
senior notes, due December 15, 2020. During theHauarter of fiscal 2013, we entered into an esiten of the term of Ciena’s lease of the
“Lab 10” building on the former Nortel Carling Campus in@tt, Canada. The following is a summary of ourritminimum payments und
contractual obligations as of October 31, 2013Kousands):

Less than one One to three Three to five
Total year years years Thereafter

Principal due at maturity on convertible notes (1) 1,254,62 — 187,50( 850,00( 217,12
Interest due on convertible notes 150,62! 32,50( 53,75( 45,62¢ 18,75(
Operating leases (2) 159,62: 30,93¢ 51,48¢ 27,03¢ 50,15¢
Purchase obligations (3) 134,55: 134,55: — — —
Capital lease 5,39: 3,31¢ 1,90(¢ 17¢€ —
Other obligations 5,76¢ 2,421 3,33¢ 11 —
Total (4) $ 1,710,58. $ 203,72t % 297,96¢ $ 922,85! $ 286,03!
Q) Includes the accretion of the principal amoamthe 2020 Notes payable at maturity at a rate&5% per year compounded semi-

annually, commencing December 27, 2012.
(2) Does not include variable insurance, taxesht@aance and other costs required by the appkoapérating lease. These costs are nof

expected to have a material future impact.
3) Purchase obligations relate to purchase aogmitments to our contract manufacturers and composuppliers for inventory. In

certain instances, we are permitted to cancelheshide or adjust these orders. Consequently, opbrigon of the amount reported
above relates to firm, non-cancelable and uncarditiobligations.

4) As of October 31, 2013, we also had approxége$9.1 million of other long-term obligations @ur Consolidated Balance Sheet for
unrecognized tax positions that are not includeithig table because the timing or amount of ani sattlement with the respective
tax authority cannot be reasonably estimated.

Some of our commercial commitments, including safine future minimum payments in operating leassgorth above and certain
commitments to customers, are secured by stantieydef credit collateralized under our Credit iligcor restricted cash. Restricted cash
balances are included in other current assetsher tang-term assets depending upon the duratidimecfinderlying letter of credit obligation.
The following is a summary of our commercial comments secured by standby letters of credit by camenit expiration date as of
October 31, 2013 (in thousands):

Less than one One to Three to
Total year three years five years Thereafter
Standby |etters of Credit $ 45,595 $ 19,29: $ 12,365 $ 4,18: $ 9,75-)

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any off-balance sheet finanairghgements. In particular, we do not have amyjteiterests in so-called limited
purpose entities, which include special purposiiestSPEs) and structured finance entities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires that we make estimates and judgrtiettaffect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expense, anderktiisclosure of contingent assets and liabili8stheir
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nature, these estimates and judgments are subjantinherent degree of uncertainty. On an ongbasjs, we reevaluate our estimates,
including those related to share-based compensdiazhdebts, inventories, intangible and otherlived assets, income taxes, warranty
obligations, restructuring, derivatives and hedgangd contingencies and litigation. We base oumadés on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that we believe to beoregble under the circumstances. Among other ththgse estimates form the basis for
judgments about the carrying values of assetsiahilities that are not readily apparent from otheurces. Actual results may differ from th
estimates under different assumptions or conditibnghe extent that there are material differerizgs/een our estimates and actual results,
our consolidated financial statements will be afec

We believe that the following critical accountinglipies reflect those areas where significant judgta and estimates are used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial staterment

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue when all of the followingesid are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangeexésis; delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered; the price to the bsifiged or determinable; and collectibility isasonably assured. Customer purchase
agreements and customer purchase orders are dgnsed to determine the existence of an arranger8éipping documents and evidence of
customer acceptance, when applicable, are useetify delivery or services rendered. We assesstvenehe price is fixed or determinable
based on the payment terms associated with theaicéion and whether the sales price is subje@ftmd or adjustment. We assess
collectibility based primarily on the creditwortleiss of the customer as determined by credit chemdtanalysis, as well as the customer's
payment history. Revenue for maintenance servigsierally deferred and recognized ratably ovep#riod during which the services are to
be performed. Shipping and handling fees billedustomers are included in revenue, with the astmtiexpenses included in product cost of
goods sold.

We apply the percentage-of-completion method tg{tamm arrangements where it is required to un#ersignificant production,
customizations or modification engineering, andsoeable and reliable estimates of revenue andacestvailable. Utilizing the percentage-of-
completion method, we recognize revenue basederatio of actual costs incurred to date to toseiheated costs expected to be incurred. In
instances that do not meet the percentage-of-cdimplmethod criteria, recognition of revenue isadtefd until there are no uncertainties
regarding customer acceptantiabilled percentage- of-completion revenues recghiare accumulated in the contracts in progressuatc
included in accounts receivable, net. Billings xecess of revenues recognized to date on theseactstire recorded within deferred revenue.

Software revenue is recognized when persuasivereaof an arrangement exists, delivery has oatutine fee is fixed or determinable,
and collectibility is probable. In instances whéimal acceptance criteria of the software is spediby the customer, revenue is deferred until
there are no uncertainties regarding customer é&zcep.

We limit the amount of revenue recognition for defied elements to the amount that is not contingerthe future delivery of products or
services, future performance obligations or sulifiectustomer-specified return or refund privileges.

Revenue for multiple element arrangements is att each unit of accounting based on the redat@lling price of each delivered
element, with revenue recognized for each delivetethent when the revenue recognition criterianage We determine the selling price for
each deliverable based upon the selling price fibyafor multiple-deliverable arrangements. Unduas hierarchy, we use vendor-specific
objective evidence ("VSOE") of selling price, ifeikists, or third party evidence ("TPE") of sellipdce if VSOE does not exist. If neither
VSOE nor TPE of selling price exists for a deliv#ea we use our best estimate of selling price SBE for that deliverable.

VSOE, when determinable, is established based ppraing and discounting practices for the spegqifioduct or service when sold
separately. In determining whether VSOE existsraqglire that a substantial majority of the sellmgres for a product or service fall within a
reasonably narrow pricing range. We have genebalgn unable to establish TPE of selling price beeawr go-tanarket strategy differs froi
that of others in our markets, and the extent sfamization and differentiated features and fumsivaries among comparable products or
services from our peers. We determine BESP basaa mpanagement-approved pricing guidelines, whiatsicter multiple factors including
the type of product or service, gross margin objest competitive and market conditions, and théogmarket strategy, all of which can affect
pricing practices.

Our total deferred revenue for products was $29lBomand $36.7 million as of October 31, 2012 @ctober 31, 2013 , respectively.
Our services revenue is deferred and recognizablyabver the period during which the servicestaree performed. Our total deferred
revenue for services was $77.8 million and $75 lianias of October 31, 2012 and October 31, 20E3pectively.
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Share-Based Compensation

We estimate the fair value of our restricted stocit awards based on the fair value of our comntockson the date of grant. Our
outstanding restricted stock unit awards are stibjeservice-based vesting conditions and/or paréorce-based vesting conditions. We
recognize the estimated fair value of service-baseards, net of estimated forfeitures, as shased expense ratably over the vesting peric
a straight-line basis. Awards with performance-dasesting conditions require the achievement dfageifinancial or other performance
criteria or targets as a condition to the vestorgacceleration of vesting. We recognize the es@ché&ir value of performance-based awards,
net of estimated forfeitures, as shaesed expense over the performance period, usaatgdvesting, which considers each performanced
or tranche separately, based upon our determinafiaether it is probable that the performancgéts will be achieved. At each reporting
period, we reassess the probability of achievimgpterformance targets and the performance pergpdresl to meet those targets. Determining
whether the performance targets will be achievedlires judgment, and the estimate of expense mag\eed periodically based on changes
in the probability of achieving the performancegets. Revisions are reflected in the period in Whiee estimate is changed. If any
performance goals are not met, no compensationisafiimately recognized against that goal andh&extent previously recognized,
compensation cost is reversed.

Because share-based compensation expense is lmaeauas that are ultimately expected to vestatheunt of expense takes into
account estimated forfeitures. We estimate forfegiat the time of grant and revise these estimitescessary, in subsequent periods if actus
forfeitures differ from those estimates. Changeth@se estimates and assumptions can materiadigtdffe measurement of estimated fair v
of our share-based compensation. See Note 17 t6ansolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Paf this report for information
regarding our assumptions related to share-basegemsation and the amount of share-based compamsxipense we incurred for the
periods covered in this report. As of October 3112, total unrecognized compensation expense 8&9 $nillion , which relates to unvested
restricted stock units and is expected to be rezedrover a weighted-average period of 1.4 years.

We recognize windfall tax benefits associated whth exercise of stock options or release of rasttistock units directly to stockholders'
equity only when realized. A windfall tax benefiéaurs when the actual tax benefit realized by s employee's disposition of a share-
based award exceeds the deferred tax asset, ihasgciated with the award that we had recordec:r/dssessing whether a tax benefit rel;
to share-based compensation has been realizea|/low the tax law “with-and-without” method. Undére with-and-without method, the
windfall is considered realized and recognizedfiftancial statement purposes only when an increahd@nefit is provided after considering
all other tax benefits including our net operatiogses. The with-and-without method results iniredfall from share-based compensation
awards always being effectively the last tax berefbe considered. Consequently, the windfalitaitable to share-based compensation will
not be considered realized in instances where euoperating loss carryover (that is unrelated itmalls) is sufficient to offset the current
year's taxable income before considering the effetturrer-year windfalls.

Reserve for Inventory Obsolescen

We make estimates about future customer demaraufgeroducts when establishing the appropriaterveder excess and obsolete
inventory. We write down inventory that has becarbsolete or unmarketable by an amount equal tditference between the cost of
inventory and the estimated market value basedssunaptions about future demand and market conditiorentory write downs are a
component of our product cost of goods sold. Ummognition of the write down, a new lower cost bdsr that inventory is established, and
subsequent changes in facts and circumstancestdesuit in the restoration or increase in thatlyestablished cost basis. In an effort to li
our exposure to delivery delays and to satisfyamst needs we purchase inventory based on forecsakes across our product lines. In
addition, part of our research and developmentegiyais to promote the convergence of similar feggtiand functionalities across our product
lines. Each of these practices exposes us togkéhat our customers will not order products ftiickh we have forecasted sales, or will
purchase less than we have forecasted. Historjca#iyhave experienced write downs due to changesristrategic direction, discontinuance
of a product and declines in market conditions.dtmrded charges for excess and obsolete inveaf@®$£3.4 million and $19.9 million in
fiscal 2012 and 2013, respectively. The chargdsaal 2012 and fiscal 2013 primarily related tameering design changes and the
discontinuance of certain parts and components insth@ manufacture of our Optical Transport and&rged Packet Optical products. Our
inventory net of allowance for excess and obsoleseevas $260.1 million and $249.1 million as ofébetr 31, 2012 and October 31, 2013,
respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivab

Our allowance for doubtful accounts receivableasdanl on management's assessment, on a specififiéaéion basis, of the collectibility
of customer accounts. We perform ongoing credituatens of our customers and generally have not
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required collateral or other forms of security froostomers. In determining the appropriate baldoceur allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable, management considers each individisibmer account receivable in order to determinkectibility. In doing so, we consider
creditworthiness, payment history, account actigityl communication with such customer. If a custgrimancial condition changes, or if
actual defaults are higher than our historical expee, we may be required to take a charge fallawance for doubtful accounts receivable
which could have an adverse impact on our restiltgerations. Our accounts receivable, net of adlowe for doubtful accounts, was $345.5
million and $488.6 million as of October 31, 20¥®ldctober 31, 2013, respectively. Our allowamcedbubtful accounts was $1.5 million
and $2.0 million as of October 31, 2012 and Oct@igr2013 , respectively.

Long-lived Assets

Our long-lived assets include: equipment, furnitamel fixtures, finite-lived intangible assets anaimenance spares. As of October 31,
2012 and October 31, 2013 these assets totaled3#ifion and $366.9 million , net, respectivelye test long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the assets' carrying amount is not recoleefedim its undiscounted cash flows. Our
long-lived assets are assigned to asset grouphwiicesent the lowest level for which we identifish flows.

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowanct

As of October 31, 2013, we have recorded a valoatilowance offsetting nearly all our net defert@xiassets of $1.5 billion. When
measuring the need for a valuation allowance, wesssboth positive and negative evidence regatbiegealizability of these deferred tax
assets. We record a valuation allowance to reducdeferred tax assets to the amount that is nikeely lthan not to be realized. In determin
net deferred tax assets and valuation allowancasagement is required to make judgments and estmealfated to projections of profitability,
the timing and extent of the utilization of net ogténg loss carryforwards, applicable tax ratesmsfer pricing methodologies and tax planning
strategies. The valuation allowance is reviewedtgudg and is maintained until sufficient positiggidence exists to support a reversal. Bec
evidence such as our operating results during th& necent thregear period is afforded more weight than forecastsdlts for future period
our cumulative loss during this thrgear period represents sufficient negative evideagarding the need for nearly a full valuatiomwathnce
We will release this valuation allowance when mamagnt determines that it is more likely than nat ur deferred tax assets will be reali:
Any future release of valuation allowance may lmrded as a tax benefit increasing net income anaadjustment to paiet-capital, based ¢
tax ordering requirements.

Warranty

Our liability for product warranties, included ither accrued liabilities, was $55.1 million and $5illion as of October 31, 2012 and
October 31, 2013, respectively. Our products areetplly covered by a warranty for periods randiogn one to five years. We accrue for
warranty costs as part of our cost of goods sobgth@n associated material costs, technical sufgimt costs and associated overhead.
Material cost is estimated based primarily uponohisal trends in the volume of product returnshivitthe warranty period and the cost to
repair or replace the equipment. Technical suppbdr cost is estimated based primarily upon histbtrends and the cost to support the
customer cases within the warranty period. Theipiow for product warranties was $33.4 million &##.6 million for fiscal 2012 and 2013,
respectively. See Note 10 to the Consolidated EiaaBtatements included in Item 8 of Part Il détteport. The provision for warranty claims
may fluctuate on a quarterly basis depending upemnix of products and customers in that periodctiial product failure rates, material
replacement costs, service or labor costs diffamfour estimates, revisions to the estimated warfamovision would be required. An increase
in warranty claims or the related costs associaf#dsatisfying our warranty obligations could iaase our cost of sales and negatively affect
our gross margin.

Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statemeritem 8 of Part Il of this report for informatiaelating to our discussion of the effects
of recent accounting pronouncements.

Unaudited Quarterly Results of Operations

The tables below (in thousands, except per shdeg det forth the operating results in our constéd statements of operations for each of
the eight quarters in the period ended OctobeRB13 . This information is unaudited, but in oumapn reflects all adjustments (consisting
only of normal recurring adjustments) that we cdashecessary for a fair statement of such infaomah accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The results for any quaaternot necessarily indicative of results for amyife period.

53




Table of Contents

Revenue:
Products
Services
Total Revenue
Cost of goods sold:
Products
Services

Total costs of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses:

Research and
development

Selling and marketing

General and
administrative

Amortization of
intangible assets

Restructuring costs

Total operating expenses

Income (loss) from
operations

Interest and other income

(loss), net
Interest expense

Loss on extinguishment of

debt

Income (loss) before
income taxes

Provision (benefit from) for

income tax
Net loss

Basic net loss per common

share
Diluted net loss per

potential common share $
Weighted average basic

common shares outstanding 98,06¢

Weighted average dilutive
potential common shares

outstanding

Jan. 31, Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31, Jan. 31, Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013
333,67 $ 384,72t $ 373,41t $ 363,17: $ 353,05 $ 413217 $ 437,44 $ 476,40¢

83,01: 92,89: 100,67: 102,35' 100,03t 94,49: 100,91 106,97t

416,68! 477,61 474,09 465,53: 453,09: 507,71. 538,35t 583,38!

197,75: 234,37. 225,23t 211,44: 196,52: 239,44: 247,76! 283,78
51,177 60,30 67,53: 61,88: 60,77" 58,75¢ 62,367 67,95¢

248,92! 294,67t 292,76! 273,32! 257,29t 298,19¢ 310,13! 351,73¢

167,75t 182,94: 181,32: 192,20t 195,79! 209,51 228,22: 231,64t
89,66« 90,39¢ 88,31t 95,80 89,12t 100,78: 93,06¢ 100,42
64,41: 62,517 65,397 74,01 66,58¢ 74,47" 75,61 87,49:
29,66« 26,67( 27,87¢ 29,79: 28,20¢ 30,88t 32,06¢ 31,27t
13,47: 12,96° 12,71 12,54t 12,45: 12,43¢ 12,44( 12,43¢
1,72: 1,851 2,291 1,99( 5,03( 1,50¢ 20z 42¢
198,93: 194,40: 196,59: 214,14: 201,40« 220,09: 213,391 232,06:
(31,17¢) (11,469 (15,279) (21,939 (5,609 (10,580 14,83: (417)
(4,887 (4,389 (2,45%) (3,46%) (137) (2,716 (3,167 27¢
(9,570 (9,646 (9,597 (10,840 (10,739 (11,399 (10,979 (10,94¢)
— — — — (28,63() — — —
(45,639 (25,499 (27,32)) (36,249 (45,109 (24,68¢) 692 (11,08)
2,02( 2,28¢ 2,49( 2,62¢ 2,21¢ 2,391 1,92 (1,290
(47,659 $ (27,780 $ (29.81) $ (38,77) $ (47,329 $ (27,079 $ (1.23) $ (9,79)
0.49 $ (0.28) $ (030 $ (039 $ 047 % 027 $ (0.00) $ (0.09)
(049 % (0.2¢) % (030 ¢ (039 $ 047 $ 0.27) % (0.00) $ (0.09)
98,98: 99,53( 100,50t 101,20 101,91¢ 102,71: 103,52:

98,06¢ 98,98 99,53( 100,50¢ 101,20 101,91¢ 102,71: 103,52:
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosureshéut Market Risk

The following discussion about our market risk tisares involves forward-looking statements. Actasults could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statemewts.are exposed to market risk related to changiddrest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Interest Rate SensitivityWe currently hold investments in U.S. Governmerigaltions with varying maturities. See Notes 3 dnod our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8ofi Part Il of this report for information relagirio investments and fair value. These
investments are sensitive to interest rate movesramd their fair value will decline as interesegatise and increase as interest rates
decline. The estimated impact on these investnaraslO0 basis point (1.0%) increase in interestsracross the yield curve from rates in
effect as of the balance sheet date would be arlién decline in value.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rigks a global concern, our business and results efatipns are exposed to movements in foreign cay
exchange rates. Due to our global presence, somer gévenue is non-U.S. dollar denominated witha@ian Dollars and Euros being our
most significant foreign currency revenue stredirthe U.S. dollar strengthens against these curesnour revenues reported in U.S. dollars
would decline. For our U.S. dollar denominated sam increase in the value of the U.S. dollar dantrease the real cost to our customers c
our products in markets outside the United Statl#;zh could impact our competitive position.

With regard to operating expense, our primary expo$o foreign currency exchange risk relates &rafing expense incurred in Canac
Dollars, British Pounds, Euros and Indian Rupeesirg fiscal 2013 , approximately 47.2% of our agigrg expense was non-U.S. dollar
denominated. If these currencies strengthen, ceptated in U.S. dollars will increase. During 62013 , research and development expens
benefited from approximately $4.0 million , nethafdging, due to the strengthening of the U.S. dallaelation to the Indian Rupee and the
Canadian Dollar in comparison to fiscal 2012 .

From time to time, Ciena uses foreign currency fohvcontracts to reduce variability in certain fsted non U.S.-dollar denominated
cash flows. Generally, these derivatives have niasiof 12months or less and are designated as cash flonebkedgthe inception of the ca
flow hedge, and on an ongoing basis, Ciena assessxher the forward contract has been effectivaffisetting changes in cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk during the hedgiegod. The effective portion of the derivative&t gain or loss is initially reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtoas) and, upon the occurrence of the forecasamdaction, is subsequently
reclassified to the line item in the Consolidat¢at&ment of Operations to which the hedged trasacotlates. Any net gain or loss associatec
with the ineffectiveness of the hedging instrumeneported in interest and other income (lossl), ne

From time to time, Ciena also uses foreign curréboyards to hedge certain balance sheet exposlinese forwards are not designated
as hedges for accounting purposes and any nebgéiss associated with these derivatives is regart interest and other income, net. See
Notel and Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statgsi@cluded in Iltem 8 of Part Il of this report.

Convertible Notes Outstandinghe fair market value of each of our outstandirsgiés of convertible notes is subject to interestaad
market price risk due to the convertible featur¢hef notes and other factors. Generally the faiketavalue of fixed interest rate debt will
increase as interest rates fall and decreaseassttrates rise. The fair market value of theqiotay also increase as the market price of our
stock rises and decrease as the market price stalk falls. Interest rate and market value charafect the fair market value of the notes an
may affect the prices at which we would be ableepurchase such notes were we to do so. Theseahdogiot impact our financial position,
cash flows or results of operations. For additiondrmation on the fair value of our outstandirajas, see Note 12 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of Padfithis report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D

The following is an index to the consolidated finiah statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiinm
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Lo
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhdl&epsity (Deficit)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ciéagporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated folalnstatements listed in the accompanying indesgnt fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Ciena Corporation and its sidiaries (the “Company” ) at October 31, 2013 28di2, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three yeathamperiod ended October 31, 2013 in conformithweiccounting principles generally accej

in the United States of America. Also in our opimithe Company maintained, in all material respeftective internal control over financial
reporting as of October 31, 2013, based on crigsiablished internal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis&xDSO). The Company's management is responsibtedee financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effectdss of internal control over financial
reporting, under Iltem 9A. Our responsibility isebpress opinions on these financial statementoaride Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our integrated audlite.conducted our audits in accordance with thedstiads of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamisine that we plan and perform the audits to obta&rsonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatgrand whether effective internal control overfinial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the financialestegnts included examining, on a test basis, evasuapporting the amounts and disclosures ir
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dyagement, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaécontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thatagerial weakness exists, and testing and evafygtie design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qditsaaiso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviceaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
December 20, 2013
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CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

October 31,
2012 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 642,44. $ 346,48
Short-term investments 50,057 124,97¢
Accounts receivable, net 345,49¢ 488,57¢
Inventories 260,09¢ 249,10:
Prepaid expenses and other 117,59! 186,65!
Total current assets 1,415,691 1,395,80.
Long-term investments — 15,03:
Equipment, furniture and fixtures, net 123,58( 119,72¢
Other intangible assets, net 257,13 185,82¢
Other long-term assets 84,73¢ 86,38(
Total assets $ 1,881,14. $ 1,802,77
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 179,70: $ 254,84¢
Accrued liabilities 209,54( 271,65¢
Deferred revenue 79,51¢ 88,55(
Convertible notes payable 216,21( —
Total current liabilities 684,97( 615,05!
Long-term deferred revenue 27,56( 23,62(
Other long-term obligations 31,77¢ 34,75
Long-term convertible notes payable 1,225,80! 1,212,01!
Total liabilities 1,970,11! 1,885,44
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Preferred stock — par value $0.01; 20,000,000 stemthorized; zero shares issued and outstand — —
Common stock — par value $0.01; 290,000,000 steartfworized; 100,601,792 and 103,705,709
shares issued and outstanding 1,00¢ 1,03
Additional paid-in capital 5,797,76! 5,893,88!
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,359 (7,779
Accumulated deficit (5,884,38) (5,969,82)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (88,977) (82,677)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit $ 1,881,14. §$ 1,802,77

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013

Revenue:

Products $ 1,406,53. $ 145499 $ 1,680,12!

Services 335,43t 378,93 402,42:
Total revenue 1,741,971 1,833,92. 2,082,541
Cost of goods sold:

Products 825,96¢ 868,80! 967,51(

Services 206,85! 240,89: 249,86:
Total cost of goods sold 1,032,82. 1,109,69 1,217,37

Gross profit 709,14¢ 724,22: 865,17!

Operating expenses:

Research and development 379,86: 364,17¢ 383,40t

Selling and marketing 251,99( 266,33 304,17(

General and administrative 126,24. 114,00: 122,43.

Acquisition and integration costs 42,08¢ — —

Amortization of intangible assets 69,66" 51,69’ 49,77

Restructuring costs 5,781 7,85¢ 7,16¢

Change in fair value of contingent consideration (3,289 — —

Total operating expenses 872,33¢ 804,07( 866,95(

Loss from operations (163,199 (79,846 (1,779
Interest and other income (loss), net 6,022 (15,200 (5,749
Interest expense (37,92¢) (39,657 (44,047
Gain on cost method investments 7,24¢ — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — (28,630)
Loss before income taxes (187,849 (134,699 (80,197
Provision for income taxes 7,67: 9,322 5,24(
Net loss $ (195,52) % (144,02) $ (85,43))
Basic net loss per common share $ (2.04 $ (1.45) $ (0.8%)
Diluted net loss per potential common share $ (209 $ (1.45) $ (0.83)
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 95,85/ 99,34 102,35(
Weighted average dilutive potential common shatgstanding 95,85¢ 99,34! 102,35(

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.

59




Table of Contents

CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(in thousands)

Year ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013
Net loss $ (195,52) $ (144,02) $ (85,43)
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on available-tde-securities, net of tax 39:¢ (16€) (14
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on foreign curyeéboward contracts, net of tax — 49 (310)
Change in accumulated translation adjustments (1,429 (3,269 (4,09¢)
Total comprehensive loss $ (196,55) $ (147,400 $  (89,85)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'
(in thousands, except share data)

EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Accumulated Total
Common Additional Other Stockholders’
Stock Paid-in- Comprehensiv Accumulated Equity
Shares Par Value Capital Income (Loss) Deficit (Deficit)

Balance at October 31, 2010 94,060,30 $§ 941 $5,702,13 $ 1,062 $(5,544,84) $ 159,29:
Net loss — — — — (195,52) (195,52)
Comprehensive loss — — — (1,03)) — (1,03))
Issuance of shares from employee equity plans 3,380,13 33 13,16¢ — — 13,20:
Share-based compensation expense — — 37,93( — — 37,93(
Balance at October 31, 2011 97,440,43 974 5,753,23I 31 (5,740,36) 13,87:
Net loss — — — — (144,02) (144,02)
Comprehensive loss — — — (3,38 — (3,38
Issuance of shares from employee equity plans 3,161,35! 32 12,13t — — 12,167
Share-based compensation expense — — 32,39« — — 32,39
Balance at October 31, 2012 100,601,79 1,00¢ 5,797,76! (3,354 (5,884,38) (88,972)
Net loss — — — — (85,43)) (85,43))
Comprehensive loss — — — (4,420 — (4,420
Equity component of convertible notes payable
issued — — 43,13 — — 43,13
Equity component of deferred debt issuance co (603 (603)
Issuance of shares from employee equity plans 3,103,91 31 15,867 — — 15,89¢
Share-based compensation expense — — 37,72( — — 37,72(
Balance at October 31, 2013 103,705,70 $ 1,037 $5,893,881 $ (7,77‘) $(5,969,82‘) $ (82,67-‘)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby (used in) operating activitie

Loss on extinguishment of debt
Gain on cost method investments

Depreciation of equipment, furniture and fixturasd amortization of leasehold

improvements
Share-based compensation costs
Amortization of intangible assets
Provision for inventory excess and obsolescence
Provision for warranty
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable, accruals and other obligations
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities:

Payments for equipment, furniture, fixtures aneliettual property

Restricted cash

Purchase of available for sale securities

Proceeds from maturities of available for sale stes
Proceeds from sale of cost method investment

Receipt of contingent consideration related to foess acquisition

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of capital lease obligations
Payment of long term debt
Payment of debt and equity issuance costs
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaénts
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for interest
Cash paid during the period for income taxes, net
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Purchase of equipment in accounts payable
Debt issuance costs in accrued liabilities
Fixed assets acquired under capital leases

Year Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013
$  (19552) $  (144,02) $ (85,437)
— — 28,63
(7,249 — —
60,15 59,09 55,69
37,93( 32,39 37,72(
95,92 74,49 71,30
17,33¢ 23,43 19,93¢
18,45; 33,41 24,55
2,741 13,72: 9,02:
(75,629 70,36¢ (145,42)
14,20¢ (53,460) (8,949)
(18,30 1,74¢ (82,809
(59,285 12,61 115,31
18,74¢ (16,729 5,09¢
(90,485 107,08 44,67
(52,36 (48,09) (43,819
10,75; 35,50 2,33¢
(49,89 — (184,869
— — 95,47¢
6,54¢ 524 —
16,39« — —
(68,570 (11,97) (130,86)
— (1,895) (3,33%)
— — (216,21()
— (2,337) (3,697)
13,20: 12,16 15,89¢
13,20: 7,94( (207,339
(93¢) (2,50 (2,43F)
(146,79) 100,54¢ (295,95)
688,68 541,89 642,44
$ 541,80 $ 642,44 $ 346,48
$ 32,93. $ 33,51, $ 32,39
$ 320¢ $ 9,60: $ 10,67¢
$ 6,431 $ 520: $ 6,191
$ — % 31¢  $ —
$ 1,106 $ 6,73¢ $ 2,53¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) CIENA CORPORATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO LICIES AND ESTIMATES
Description of Busines

Ciena Corporation (“Ciena” or the “Company”) ismyider of communications networking equipmentiwafe and services that support
the transport, switching, aggregation and managenferoice, video and data traffic. Ciena’s Conwtd®acket Optical , Packet Networking
and Optical Transport products are used, indivigual as part of an integrated solution, in netvgoolperated by communications service
providers, cable operators, governments and efigegparound the globe. Ciena is a network spettaligeting the transition of disparate,
legacy communications networks to converged, nexiegation architectures, better able to handleeased traffic and to deliver more
efficiently a broader mix of high-bandwidth commecations services. Ciena’s products, along witlem®edded network element software anc
unified service and transport management, enabléceeproviders to deliver critical enterprise asmhsumer-oriented communication services
efficiently and cost-effectively. Ciena’s principatecutive offices are located at 7035 Ridge Rblamhover, Maryland 21076.

Principles of Consolidatio

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of Ciena and its wholly owsebsidiaries. All material inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etadiiraconsolidation.

Fiscal Year

Ciena has a 52 or 53 week fiscal year, which endh® Saturday nearest to the last day of Octobeach year (October 29, 2011,
November 3, 2012, and November 2, 2013 for theodsrieported). Fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2013 eackistad of a 5-week fiscal year and
fiscal 2012 consisted of a 53-week fiscal year. ptoposes of financial statement presentation, &achl year is described as having ended ol
October 31.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements aratedldisclosures in conformity with accounting pifies generally
accepted in the United States requires managememiite estimates and judgments that affect the ataoeported in the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes. Estgraae used for selling prices for multiple eletre@rangements, shared-based
compensation, convertible notes payable valuatioad,debts, valuation of inventories and investsyaetoverability of intangible assets, o
long-lived assets, income taxes, warranty obligegioestructuring liabilities, derivatives, contamgies and litigation. Ciena bases its estimate
on historical experience and assumptions thatlié\zes are reasonable. Actual results may diffetemilly from management’s estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ciena considers all highly liquid investments pasd with original maturities of three months @slé be cash equivalents. Restricted
cash collateralizing letters of credit is includedther current assets and other long-term asggtsnding upon the duration of the restriction.

Investment:

Ciena's investments are classified as availablsdtr and are reported at fair value, with unredligains and losses recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).&diecognizes losses when it determines that dedinte fair value of its investments,
below their cost basis, are other-than-temporargetermining whether a decline in fair value isestthan-temporary, Ciena considers various
factors including market price (when availabley@stment ratings, the financial condition and rteam prospects of the investee, the length ¢
time and the extent to which the fair value hasmtess than Ciena's cost basis, and its intentahititly to hold the investment until maturity or
for a period of time sufficient to allow for anytanipated recovery in market value. Ciena considdiriarketable debt securities that it expect
to convert to cash within one year or less to ltsierm investments. All others are consideredjftarm investments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtarkith cost computed using standard cost, whiggr@imates actual cost, on a first-in,
first-out basis. Ciena records a provision for escand obsolete inventory when an impairment has luentified.
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Segment Reporting

Ciena's chief operating decision maker, its chiefcaitive officer, evaluates the company's perforraeaand allocates resources based on
multiple factors, including measures of segmenfipfloss). Operating segments are defined as compis of an enterprise that engage in
business activities that may earn revenue and ixqoense, for which discrete financial informatismvailable, and for which such informat
is evaluated regularly by the chief operating deoisnaker for purposes of allocating resourcesams#ssing performance. During the first
quarter of fiscal 2013, Ciena reorganized its maéorganizational structure and the managemeits biisiness into the following operating
segments: (i) Converged Packet Optical, (ii) Pablettvorking, (iii) Optical Transport, and (iv) Safare and Services. See Note 18 below.

Longlived Assets

Long-lived assets include: equipment, furniture &ixidires; intangible assets; and maintenance sp&iena tests long-lived assets for
impairment whenever triggering events or changesraumstances indicate that the asset's carryimguat is not recoverable from its
undiscounted cash flows. An impairment loss is messas the amount by which the carrying amoutii®fisset or asset group exceeds it
value. Ciena's long-lived assets are assignedsit gsoups which represent the lowest level forcvltiash flows can be identified.

Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures and Internal (&&ftware

Equipment, furniture and fixtures are recordedost.cDepreciation and amortization are computedguie straight-line method over
useful lives of two to five years for equipment;rfilure and fixtures and the shorter of useful tifdease term for leasehold improvements.

Qualifying internal use software and website depeient costs incurred during the application develept stage, which consist primarily
of outside services and purchased software liceoses, are capitalized and amortized straightdiver the estimated useful lives of two to five
years.

Intangible Asset

Ciena has recorded finite-lived intangible asssta eesult of several acquisitions. Finite-livethimgible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization. Amortization is compuisihg the straighline method over the expected economic lives ofélspective assets,
to seven years, which approximates the use of gittémassets.

Maintenance Spare
Maintenance spares are recorded at cost. Spargs csst is expensed ratably over four years.
Concentrations

Substantially all of Ciena's cash and cash equinslere maintained at a small number of major fin@ncial institutions. The majority of
Ciena's cash equivalents consist of money marketsfuDeposits held with banks may exceed the amufinsurance provided on such
deposits. Because these deposits generally masdeemed upon demand, management believes thét¢heyninimal risk.

Historically, a significant percentage of Cien&ganue has been concentrated among sales to amsmmdder of large communications
service providers. Consolidation among Ciena'sotnsts has increased this concentration. Conseguéidina’s accounts receivable are
concentrated among these customers. See Note d8.bel

Additionally, Ciena's access to certain materialsanponents is dependent upon sole or limitedcsosuppliers. The inability of any of
these suppliers to fulfill Ciena's supply requirerse or significant changes in supply cost, codildch future results. Ciena relies on a small
number of contract manufacturers to perform theonitgj of the manufacturing for its products. If @Gaecannot effectively manage these
manufacturers and forecast future demand, or #emanufacturers fail to deliver products or congmds on time, Ciena's business and result
of operations may suffer.

Revenue Recognitic

Ciena recognizes revenue when all of the followdritgria are met: persuasive evidence of an arraegeexists; delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered; the price to the hsifiged or determinable; and collectibility isasonably
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assured. Customer purchase agreements and cugiornbase orders are generally used to determinexieence of an arrangement. Shipy
documents and evidence of customer acceptance, agpicable, are used to verify delivery or sergicendered. Ciena assesses whether the
price is fixed or determinable based on the payrteenis associated with the transaction and wheligesales price is subject to refund or
adjustment. Ciena assesses collectibility basedapily on the creditworthiness of the customer a@®nined by credit checks and analysis, a:
well as the customer's payment history. Revenuenfintenance services is generally deferred armrézed ratably over the period during
which the services are performed. Shipping and livanéees billed to customers are included in rexerwith the associated expenses include
in product cost of goods sold.

Ciena applies the percentage-of-completion methdarig-term arrangements where it is required wemake significant production,
customizations or modification engineering, andsoeable and reliable estimates of revenue andacestvailable. Utilizing the percentage-of-
completion method, Ciena recognizes revenue basédeoratio of actual costs incurred to date taltestimated costs expected to be incurred
In instances that do not meet the percentage-oftitan method criteria, recognition of revenuééderred until there are no uncertainties
regarding customer acceptantiabilled percentage- of-completion revenues recmghiare accumulated in the contracts in progressuatc
included in accounts receivable, net. Billings xcess of revenues recognized to date on theseactsitire recorded within deferred revenue.

Software revenue is recognized when persuasivereaof an arrangement exists, delivery has oatutine fee is fixed or determinable,
and collectibility is probable. In instances whémal acceptance criteria of the software is spediby the customer, revenue is deferred until
there are no uncertainties regarding customer émcep.

Ciena limits the amount of revenue recognitiondelivered elements to the amount that is not cgetimhon the future delivery of produ
or services, future performance obligations or ecidjo customer-specified return or refund privileg

Revenue for multiple element arrangements is aatt each unit of accounting based on the redat@lling price of each delivered
element, with revenue recognized for each deliveiethent when the revenue recognition criterianaeé Ciena determines the selling price
for each deliverable based upon the selling prieearchy for multiple-deliverable arrangements. Eintthis hierarchy, Ciena uses vendor-
specific objective evidence ("VSOE") of sellingqi if it exists, or third party evidence ("TPET)selling price if VSOE does not exist. If
neither VSOE nor TPE of selling price exists fatediverable, Ciena uses its best estimate of gefiiice ("BESP") for that deliverable.

VSOE, when determinable, is established based enaS pricing and discounting practices for theiiggoroduct or service when sold
separately. In determining whether VSOE existsn&ieequires that a substantial majority of tharsglprices for a product or service fall
within a reasonably narrow pricing range. Cienalieen unable to establish TPE of selling price beedts go-to-market strategy differs from
that of others in its markets, and the extent st@mization and differentiated features and fumgiearies among comparable products or
services from its peers. Ciena determines BESRihgsen management-approved pricing guidelines, ivbénsider multiple factors including
the type of product or service, gross margin objest competitive and market conditions, and theéagmarket strategy, all of which can affect
pricing practices.

Warranty Accruals

Ciena provides for the estimated costs to fulfibtomer warranty obligations upon recognition &f telated revenue. Estimated warranty
costs include estimates for material costs, teetsigpport labor costs and associated overheadawtgiris included in cost of goods sold and
is determined based upon actual warranty cost expee, estimates of component failure rates andagement's industry experience. Ciena's
sales contracts do not permit the right of returthe product by the customer after the productidesen accepted.

Accounts Receivable, N

Ciena's allowance for doubtful accounts is baseiisomssessment, on a specific identification basithe collectibility of customer
accounts. Ciena performs ongoing credit evaluatigiits customers and generally has not requirdldteoal or other forms of security from its
customers. In determining the appropriate balaoc€fena's allowance for doubtful accounts, managgroonsiders each individual customer
account receivable in order to determine collelitybiln doing so, management considers creditwogbs, payment history, account activity
and communication with the customer. If a custosf@amancial condition changes, Ciena may be redquiveecord an allowance for doubtful
accounts, which would negatively affect its resaoftgperations.

Research and Developme
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Ciena charges all research and development costgptnse as incurred. Types of expense incurregsgarch and development include
employee compensation, cost of prototype equipnoamisulting and third party services, depreciatianility costs and information
technology.

Government Grants

Ciena accounts for proceeds from government gemngsreduction of operating expense when theeasonable assurance that Ciena ha
complied with the conditions attached to the geantt that the grant proceeds will be received. Grangfits are recorded to the line item in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations to which thatgactivity relates. See Note 20 below.

Advertising Cost

Ciena expenses all advertising costs as incurred.
Legal Cost:

Ciena expenses legal costs associated with litigatefense as incurred.
Share-Based Compensation Expense

Ciena measures and recognizes compensation exfoerstere-based awards based on estimated faevalu the date of grant. Ciena
estimates the fair value of each option-based amarthe date of grant using the Black-Scholes oppigcing model. This model is affected by
Ciena's stock price as well as estimates regaaimgmber of variables, including expected stockepviolatility over the expected term of the
award and projected employee stock option exelmbaviors. Ciena estimates the fair value of eastricted stock unit based on the fair ve
of the underlying common stock on the date of greméach case, Ciena only recognizes expenss @oitsolidated Statement of Operations
for those options or shares that are expected aiigiiyto vest. Ciena recognizes the estimatedsédire of performance-based awards, net of
estimated forfeitures, as share-based expenselmperformance period, using graded vesting, wbittsiders each performance period or
tranche separately, based upon its determinatiovhether it is probable that the performance targatl be achieved. At each reporting peri
Ciena reassesses the probability of achieving ¢inopnance targets and the performance period redjid meet those targets. Ciena uses the
straight-line method to record expense for grartis anly service-based vesting. See Note 17 below.

Income Taxe

Ciena accounts for income taxes using an assdiaiility approach that recognizes deferred taetssand liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences attributable to differebedmeen the carrying amounts of assets and lighifior financial reporting purposes and
their respective tax bases, and for operatingdosistax credit carryforwards. In estimating futtaxe consequences, Ciena considers all
expected future events other than the enactmesttarfges in tax laws or rates. Valuation allowamecegrovided if, based upon the weight of
the available evidence, it is more likely than tizt some or all of the deferred tax assets willb®realized.

In the ordinary course of business, transactioesioor which the ultimate outcome may be uncertliraddition, tax authorities
periodically audit Ciena's income tax returns. Ehasdits examine significant tax filing positioms;luding the timing and amounts of
deductions and the allocation of income tax expeaseong tax jurisdictions. Ciena is currently unaledit in India for 2007 through 2011 and
in Canada for 2010 and 2011. Management does pecethe outcome of these audits to have a mattadrse effect on Ciena's consolide
financial position, results of operations or cdslwé. Ciena's major tax jurisdictions and the eatlopen tax years are as follows: United State
(2010), United Kingdom (2012), Canada (2009) artid1§2007). However, limited adjustments can be ertad-ederal U.S. tax returns in
earlier years in order to reduce net operating ¢ass/forwards. Ciena classifies interest and pg@satelated to uncertain tax positions as a
component of income tax expense. All of the un@etax positions, if recognized, would decreasedtfective income tax rate.

Ciena has not provided for U.S. deferred incomegan the cumulative unremitted earnings of itsddd. affiliates, as it plans to
indefinitely reinvest cumulative unremitted foreigarnings outside the U.S. and it is not practicébldetermine the unrecognized deferred
income taxes. These cumulative unremitted foreggniags relate to ongoing operations in foreigisjlictions and will be used to fund forei
operations, capital expenditures and any expansigumrements.
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Ciena recognizes windfall tax benefits associatid the exercise of stock options or release dfieed stock units directly to
stockholders' equity only when realized. A windtalk benefit occurs when the actual tax benefiized by Ciena upon an employee's
disposition of a share-based award exceeds therdéfax asset, if any, associated with the awzaitlCiena had recorded. When assessing
whether a tax benefit relating to share-based cosgi®mn has been realized, Ciena follows the tax‘Wgith-and-without” method. Under the
with-and-without method, the windfall is consideredlized and recognized for financial statememppses only when an incremental benefit
is provided after considering all other tax bemsafitcluding Ciena's net operating losses. The aitt-without method results in the windfall
from share-based compensation awards always b#ewieely the last tax benefit to be consideredn€equently, the windfall attributable to
share-based compensation will not be considerdizedan instances where Ciena's net operatingdasyover (that is unrelated to windfalls)
is sufficient to offset the current year's taxableome before considering the effects of curreraryeindfalls.

Loss Contingencie

Ciena is subject to the possibility of various Esarising in the ordinary course of business. &neay relate to disputes, litigation and
other legal actions. Ciena considers the likelihobbbss or the incurrence of a liability, as wee#l Ciena's ability to reasonably estimate the
amount of loss, in determining loss contingendasestimated loss contingency is accrued whengtabable that a liability has been incurred
and the amount of loss can be reasonably estim@ieda regularly evaluates current information k@é to it in order to determine whether
any accruals should be adjusted and whether nesuasare required.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The carrying value of Ciena's cash and cash eantglaccounts receivable, accounts payable amdegttabilities approximates fair
market value due to the relatively short periodiroe to maturity. For information related to thér fealue of Ciena's convertible notes, see I
12 below.

Fair value for the measurement of financial asaetkliabilities is defined as the price that wobéreceived to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betm market participants at the measurement datsuéts fair value is a market-based
measurement that should be determined based ompsisns that market participants would use in pgcan asset or liability. Ciena utilizes a
valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputsfir value measurement. This hierarchy priorgidiee inputs into three broad levels as
follows:

* Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvactiarkets for identical assets or liabilit

» Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for identigasioilar assets or liabilities in less active metskor model-derived valuations in which
significant inputs are observable for the assdibbility, either directly or indirectly through miget corroboration, for substantially the
full term of the financial instrument; and

» Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based ona&ie@ssumptions used to measure assets andiéalsli fair value

By distinguishing between inputs that are observabthe marketplace, and therefore more objectind,those that are unobservable and
therefore more subjective, the hierarchy is degligneéndicate the relative reliability of the faialue measurements. A financial asset's or
liability's classification within the hierarchy éetermined based on the lowest level input thaigsificant to the fair value measurement.
Restructuring

From time to time, Ciena takes actions to bettignats workforce, facilities and operating costishaperceived market opportunities,
business strategies and changes in market andasssionditions. Generally accepted accounting iptes{"GAAP") require that a liability for
the cost associated with an exit or disposal agthwe recognized in the period in which the liagils incurred, except for one-time employee
termination benefits related to a service periothofe than 60 days , which are accrued over thécgeperiod. See Note 2 below.

Foreign Currency

Some of Ciena's foreign branch offices and subs&iaise the U.S. dollar as their functional curyeldecause Ciena, as the U.S. parent
entity, exclusively funds the operations of thessnbh offices and subsidiaries. For those subsdiarsing the
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local currency as their functional currency, asaets liabilities are translated at exchange rategfect at the balance sheet date, and the
statement of operations is translated at a mormiryage rate. Resulting translation adjustmentseai@ded directly to a separate compone
stockholders' equity. Where the monetary assetdiapitities are transacted in a currency othenttige entity's functional currency, re-
measurement adjustments are recorded in interdstther income (loss), net on the ConsolidatedeStanht of Operations.

Derivatives

Ciena's 4.0% convertible senior notes due Marct2@%5 (the "2015 Notes") include a redemption featbat is accounted for as a
separate embedded derivative. The embedded redemipéture is recorded at fair value on a recurbiagis, and these changes are included
interest and other income (loss), net on the Cagtesteld Statement of Operations.

From time to time, Ciena uses foreign currency vcontracts to reduce variability in certain fsted non-U.S.-dollar denominated
cash flows. Generally, these derivatives have ritegsiof 12 monther less and are designated as cash flow hedgeise Atception of the ca:
flow hedge, and on an ongoing basis, Ciena assedsdher the forward contract has been effectiveffisetting changes in cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk during the hedgiegod. The effective portion of the derivative&t gain or loss is initially reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtoas), and upon the occurrence of the forecastedaction, is subsequently
reclassified to the line item in the Consolidatéat&ment of Operations to which the hedged traisactlates. Any net gain or loss associated
with the ineffectiveness of the hedging instrumisneported in interest and other income (loss), ne

From time to time, Ciena uses foreign currency g to hedge certain balance sheet exposures Tor@gmrds are not designated as
hedges for accounting purposes, and any net gdosemssociated with these derivatives is repantéaterest and other income (loss), net on
the Consolidated Statement of Operations. See Noteelow.

Computation of Net Income (Loss) per Share

Ciena calculates basic earnings per share ("EBSiMiding earnings attributable to common stockiyy weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Dilute® Ehcludes other potential dilutive shares thatldide outstanding if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercisedmorerted into common stock. Ciena uses a dual pratien of basic and diluted EPS on the
face of its income statement. A reconciliationled humerator and denominator used for the basidéumed EPS computations is set forth in
Note 14 below.

Software Development Costs

Ciena develops software for sale to its custon@peAP require the capitalization of certain softwdexelopment costs that are incurred
subsequent to the date technological feasibiligsisiblished and prior to the date the productietplly available for sale. The capitalized cos
is then amortized straight-line over the estimdifedof the product. Ciena defines technologicaldigility as being attained at the time a
working model is completed. To date, the periodveen Ciena achieving technological feasibility #imelgeneral availability of such software
has been short, and software development cost#yquglfor capitalization have been insignificaiccordingly, Ciena has not capitalized any
software development costs.

Newly Issued Accounting Standa

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8daFASB") issued an accounting standards updeteamends current fair value
measurement and disclosure guidance to convergemérnational Financial Reporting Standards ("BFR This update provides improved
comparability of fair value measurements preseatatidisclosed in financial statements preparedénraance with GAAP and IFRS. This
guidance is effective for fiscal years and intepetiods beginning after December 15, 2011. Cienptad this guidance in the first quarter of
fiscal 2013.

In June 2011, FASB issued an accounting standqudiste that requires an entity to present total getmgnsive income, the component:
net income, and the components of other comprebeirsiome either in a single continuous stateméobmprehensive income or in two
separate but consecutive statements and elimitteasption to present the components of other cehwnsive income as part of the statemen
of changes in stockholders' equity. This guidasceffiective for fiscal years and interim periodgibeing after December 15, 2011. Ciena
adopted this guidance in the first quarter of i 3.

In February 2013, FASB issued an accounting stalsdapdate to require reclassification adjustmeawts fother comprehensive income to
be presented either in the financial statemenis tire notes to the financial statements. This
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accounting standard update will be effective fagr@i beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 20a#gwhich time Ciena will include the required
disclosures.

(2) RESTRUCTURING COSTS

Ciena has undertaken a number of restructuringitieti intended to reduce expense and better @Bgmorkforce and costs with market
opportunities, product development and businessesfies. The following table displays the activtyd balances of the historical restructuring
liability accounts for the fiscal years indicatéd thousands):

Consolidation

Workforce of excess

reduction facilities Total
Balance at October 31, 2010 $ 1,57¢ $ 6,392 $ 7,96¢
Additional liability recorded 6,621 (a) — 6,621
Adjustment to previous estimates — (84¢€) (a) (84¢€)
Cash payments (8,049 (2,259 (10,29¢)
Balance at October 31, 2011 16C 3,29: 3,45:
Additional liability recorded 5,48¢ (b) 2,37C (b) 7,85¢
Cash payments (4,195 (2,067) (6,25¢)
Balance at October 31, 2012 1,44¢ 3,60( 5,04¢
Additional liability recorded 5,041 (c) 2,12¢ (c) 7,16¢
Non-cash disposal — (747) (7479)
Cash payments (6,410 (3,045 (9,45%)
Balance at October 31, 2013 $ 8C $ 1,93¢ $ 2,01¢
Current restructuring liabilities $ 8C $ 594 $ 674
Non-current restructuring liabilities $ — $ 1,34 $ 1,34
€) During fiscal 2011, Ciena recorded a charg®6o® million of severance and other employee-gelabsts associated with a workforce

reduction of approximately 150 employees. Ciena esorded an adjustment of $0.8 million relatedstreviously restructured
Acton, Massachusetts facility.

(b) During fiscal 2012, Ciena recorded a charg®%5 million of severance and other employee-gel@bsts associated with a workforce
reduction of approximately 135 employees. Ciena sdsorded charges of $2.4 million related to @ssplidation of several facilities
in the Linthicum, Maryland area.

(c) During fiscal 2013, Ciena recorded a charg®%0 million of severance and other employee-eelabsts associated with a workforce
reduction of approximately 100 employees. Ciena edsorded charges of $2.1 million related to @ssplidation of several facilities
primarily in the Linthicum, Maryland area.

(3) SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

As of October 31, 2012, short-term investmentssvwoemprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31, 2012

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. government obligations
Included in short-term investments 49,98" 70 — 50,05"
$ 4998 $ 70 $ — 3 50,057

As of October 31, 2013, short-term and long-temgestments are comprised of the following (in ttengds):
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U.S. government obligations
Included in short-term investments
Included in long-term investments

Commercial paper
Included in short-term investments

October 31, 2013

Gross Unrealized

Gross Unrealized

Estimated Fair

Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 99,97 11 — 3 99,98¢
14,99¢ 35 — 15,03:
$ 114,97( 46 — 3 115,01¢
$ 24,99 — — % 24,99
$ 24,99¢ — — 3 24,99¢

The following table summarizes the legal maturitéslebt investments at October 31, 2013 :

Less than one year
Due in 1-2 years

(4) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

October 31, 2013

Estimated Fair

Amortized Cost Value
124,96¢ $ 124,97!
14,99¢ 15,03:
139,96« $ 140,01(

As of the date indicated, the following table sumimes the fair value of assets that are recordégiratalue on a recurring basis (in

thousands):

Assets:

Money market funds

U.S. government obligations
Commercial paper

Foreign currency forward contracts
Embedded redemption feature

Total assets measured at fair value

October 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
404,28t $ — — 3 404,28t
— 50,057 — 50,057
— 14,99¢ — 14,99¢
— 79 — 79
— — 42C 42C
404,28¢ $ 65,13¢ 42C % 469,84
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October 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:

Money market funds $ 254,331 $ — 3 — % 254,33(
U.S. government obligations — 115,01¢ — 115,01¢
Commercial paper — 44,99 — 44,99:
Embedded redemption feature — — 2,74( 2,74(
Total assets measured at fair value $ 254,33( $ 160,000 $ 2,74C  $ 417,07
Liabilities

Foreign currency forward contracts $ — 3 44z  $ —  $ 44z
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — § 44z $ — § 44z

As of the dates indicated, the assets and lisgsldéibove were presented on Ciena’s ConsolidatehBalSheet as follows (in thousands):

October 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash equivalents $ 400,41 $ 14,99¢ $ — % 415,41:
Short-term investments — 50,057 — 50,05}
Prepaid expenses and other 2,03( 79 — 2,10¢
Other long-term assets 1,84: — 42C 2,262
Total assets measured at fair value $ 404,28( $ 65,13 § 42C  $ 469,84:

October 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash equivalents $ 252,24. % 19,997 $ — $ 272,23t
Short-term investments — 124,97¢ — 124,97¢
Prepaid expenses and other 52 — — 52
Long-term investments — 15,03: — 15,03:
Other long-term assets 2,031 — 2,74( 4,77
Total assets measured at fair value $ 254,33( $ 160,000 $ 2,74C % 417,07
Liabilities
Accrued liabilities $ — 3 44z  $ — 44z
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ — $ 44z § — 3 44z

Ciena’s Level 3 assets included in other long-tessets reflect an embedded redemption featureigedtaithin Ciena’s 4.0%onvertible
senior notes. See Note 12 below. The embedded miatenieature is bifurcated from Ciena’s 4.0% catitde senior notes using the “with-
and-without” approach. As such, the total valu¢hefembedded redemption feature is calculatedeaditference between the value of the
4.0% convertible senior notes (the “Hybrid Instruntigand the value of an identical instrument withthe embedded redemption feature (the
“Host Instrument”). Both the Host Instrument and thiybrid Instrument are valued using a modifiecbbiral model. The modified binomial
model utilizes a risk free interest rate, an imghh®latility of Ciena’s stock, the recovery ratd$onds and the implied default intensity of the
4.0% convertible senior notes.

As of the dates indicated, the following table getth, in thousands, the reconciliation of chanigelsevel 3 assets recorded at fair value:
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Level 3

Balance at October 31, 2012 $ 42(
Issuances —
Settlements (630
Changes in unrealized gain 2,95(
Transfers into Level 3 —
Transfers out of Level 3 —

$ 2,74(

Balance at October 31, 2013

(5) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As of October 31, 2012, no single customer aceifar greater than 10% of net accounts receiv@{senf October 31, 2013, two
customers accounted for greater than 10% of neuents receivable, and in the aggregate accounte2{6%of net accounts receivable. Ci
has not historically experienced a significant antaf bad debt expense. The following table sumpearthe activity in Ciena’s allowance for
doubtful accounts for the fiscal years indicatedtfiousands):

Year ended Balance at beginning Net Balance at end of
October 31, of period Provisions Deductions period
2011 $ 117 % 1,69 $ 1,112 % 701
2012 $ 701 % 1647 $ 84t $ 1,50(¢
2013 $ 1,50C $ 2,33¢ $ 1,88 $ 1,95¢

(6) INVENTORIES

As of the dates indicated, inventories are comgrifehe following (in thousands):

October 31,
2012 2013

Raw materials $ 39,67¢ $ 53,27«
Work-in-process 10,73¢ 7,77:
Finished goods 178,21( 153,85!
Deferred cost of goods sold 71,48¢ 75,76«
300,10¢ 290,66t

Provision for excess and obsolescence (40,010 (41,567)
$ 260,09¢ $ 249,10:

Ciena writes down its inventory for estimated obsoknce or unmarketable inventory by an amount égtize difference between the ¢
of inventory and the estimated net realizable valased on assumptions about future demand and hrankéitions. During fiscal 2011 ,
recorded provisions for inventory reserves wereprily related to changes in forecasted salesdam products. During fiscal 2012 and
fiscal 2013 , recorded provisions for inventoryer@es were primarily related to engineering desiggnges and the discontinuance of certain
parts and components used in the manufacture ddptical Transport and Converged Packet Opticallyects. Deductions from the provision
for excess and obsolete inventory relate to didpagavities.

The following table summarizes the activity in Giéreserve for excess and obsolete inventory fofisbal years indicated (in thousanc
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Balance at
Year ended beginning of Balance at
October 31, period Provisions Disposals end of period
2011 $ 30,767 $ 17,33¢ % 16,33( $ 31,771
2012 $ 3,77 $ 23,43t $ 15,19¢ $ 40,01(
2013 $ 40,01 $ 19,93¢ $ 18,38 $ 41,56:

(7) PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER

As of the dates indicated, prepaid expenses aret ate comprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2012 2013
Prepaid VAT and other taxes $ 37,80¢ $ 101,07:
Deferred deployment expense 19,44¢ 23,19(
Product demonstration equipment, net 33,14« 33,38:
Prepaid expenses 16,47 16,96
Other non-trade receivables 8,68¢ 11,99¢
Restricted cash 2,03( 52
$ 117,59 $ 186,65!

Depreciation of product demonstration equipment $&3 million , $7.8 million and $7.4 million forstcal 2011 , 2012 and 2013 ,
respectively.

(8) EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE AND FIXTURES

As of the dates indicated, equipment, furniture fixtdres are comprised of the following (in thonda):

October 31,
2012 2013
Equipment, furniture and fixtures $ 422,11¢ $ 364,57:
Leasehold improvements 61,49: 46,24°
483,61 410,82:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (360,03) (291,09)
$ 123,58( $ 119,72¢

During fiscal 2011 , fiscal 2012 and fiscal 20X3iena recorded depreciation of equipment, furniaure fixtures, and amortization of
leasehold improvements of $50.5 million , $51.3lionl and $48.3 million , respectively. During fi$&913, in connection with the
restructuring activities described above, Cienpalied of equipment, furniture and fixtures withoaiginal cost of $39.0 million and related
accumulated depreciation of $38.3 million .

(9) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of the dates indicated, intangible assets amgpcsed of the following (in thousands):
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October 31,
2012 2013
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Intangible Amortization Intangible Intangible Amortization Intangible

Developed technology $ 417830 $ (279,19) $ 138,63¢ $ 417,837 $ (321,64) $ 96,18t
Patents and licenses 46,53¢ (45,56¢) 972 46,53¢ (45,749 794
Customer relationships, covenants no

compete, outstanding purchase order:

and contracts 323,57: (206,04¢) 117,52° 323,57: (234,72) 88,84¢
Total intangible assets $ 787,94 $ (530,807 $ 257,137 % 787,94: $ (602,116 $ 185,82¢

The aggregate amortization expense of intangildetasvas $95.9 million , $74.5 million and $71.3iom for fiscal 2011 , fiscal 2012 and
fiscal 2013 , respectively. Expected future amation of intangible assets for the fiscal yearsdatéd is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended October 31,

2014 $ 57,15:
2015 52,87¢
2016 52,87¢
2017 22,78:
2018 13€

$ 185,82t

(10) OTHER BALANCE SHEET DETAILS

As of the dates indicated, other long-term assete€@mprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2012 2013
Maintenance spares inventory, net $ 57,54¢ $ 61,30¢
Deferred debt issuance costs, net 20,57¢ 15,67"
Embedded redemption feature 42( 2,74(
Restricted cash 2,418 2,05
Other 3,78( 4,60¢
$ 84,73¢ $ 86,38(

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized usestthight line method which approximates the ¢iéthe effective interest rate method
through the maturity of the related debt. Amoriizatof debt issuance costs related to our convertibtes payable and the Credit Facility,
which is included in interest expense, was $5.3onil, $5.3 million and $5.4 million for fiscal 21, fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013 , respectively.

As of the dates indicated, accrued liabilities @mprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2012 2013
Warranty $ 55,13: $ 56,30
Compensation, payroll related tax and benefits 48,88t 98,77(
Vacation 29,58: 32,11¢
Current restructuring liabilities 3,51¢ 674
Interest payable 4,40¢ 6,18¢
Other 68,02: 77,60!
$ 209,54 $ 271,65t
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The following table summarizes the activity in Gié&naccrued warranty for the fiscal years indicgtedhousands):

Year ended Beginning Balance at end
October 31, Balance Provisions Settlements of period
2011 $ 54,37: $ 18,45 $ 2554. $ 47,28:
2012 $ 47,28. $ 33,41¢ % 25,56¢ $ 55,13
2013 $ 55,13: $ 2455¢ $ 23,387 $ 56,30:

As a result of acquisition and integration actisti Ciena consolidated certain support operatindgeocesses during fiscal 2011, resulting
in a reduction in costs to service future warrastiligations. As a result of the lower than expedatests, Ciena reduced its warranty liability by
$6.9 million , which had the effect of reducing f@visions in the table above. The increase tafi2012 warranty provision was driven
primarily by sales that included longerrm support obligations and technical supportirequents from additional geographies. The decrée
fiscal 2013 warranty provision was primarily duddwer failure rates.

As of the dates indicated, deferred revenue is cizegh of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2012 2013
Products $ 29,27¢ $ 36,67:
Services 77,79 75,49¢
107,07¢ 112,17(
Less current portion (79,516 (88,55()
Long-term deferred revenue $ 27,56(  $ 23,62(

(11) FOREIGN CURRENCY FORWARD CONTRACTS

As of October 31, 2013, Ciena had forward contgrémreduce the variability in its Canadian Dodiad Indian Rupee denominated
expense, which expense principally relates to reseand development activities. These derivativerects have been designated as cash flo
hedges. During fiscal 2013 , in order to hedgeaiethalance sheet exposures, Ciena entered im@fdrcontracts to sell Brazilian Real and
buy an equivalent U.S. Dollar amount. These dekieatontracts have not been designated as hedgaw'€foreign currency forward
contracts are immaterial for separate financiakstant presentation.

(12) CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

Outstanding Convertible Notes Payable

Ciena has fouissuances of convertible notes payable outstandimg.notes are senior unsecured obligations ofeCaerd rank equally wil
all of Ciena’s other existing and future senioremged debt. The indentures governing Ciena’s rmtadde for customary events of default
which include (subject in certain cases to custgngaace and cure periods), among others, the fallgwnonpayment of principal or interest;
breach of covenants or other agreements in theninde defaults in or failure to pay certain othmetebtedness; and certain events of
bankruptcy or insolvency. Generally, if an eventlefault occurs and is continuing, the trusteénerhiolders of at least 25% in aggregate
principal amount of the notes may declare the adof, accrued interest on, and premium, if amyall the notes immediately due and
payable. Under the indentures, if Ciena undergdésnalamental change” (as that term is definechmihdenture governing the notes to
include certain change in control transactionslés of notes will have the right, subject to agrtexemptions, to require Ciena to purchase
for cash any or all of their notes at a price eqodhe principal amount, plus accrued intereghdfholder elects to convert his or her notes in
connection with a specified fundamental change €ieifi be required to, in certain circumstancesré&ase the applicable conversion rate,
depending on the price paid per share for Cienamomstock and the effective date of the fundamenfitahge transaction.

0.25% Convertible Senior Notes due May 1, 2013

The remaining $216.2 million in principal amountstanding on these notes was paid at maturity duha second quarter of fiscal 2013
and the notes are no longer outstanding.

4.0% Convertible Senior Notes, due March TA,32
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On March 15, 2010, Ciena completed a private placgrof 4.0% convertible senior notes due March2Da5, in aggregate principal
amount of $375.0 million . Interest is payable ba hotes on March 15 and September 15 of eachlyeginning on September 15, 2010.

On December 27, 2012, Ciena issued $187.5 milticegigregate principal amount of 4.0% Convertiblri@eNotes due 2020 (the “2020
Note") in separate private offerings in exchange fo8%5 million in aggregate principal amount of then outstanding 2015 Notes (the
“Exchange Transactions”). The Exchange Transactiesislted in the retirement of outstanding 2015eNatith a carrying value of $187.9
million , the write-off of unamortized debt issuanmosts of $2.3 million , and settlement of $0.6iom relating to the redemption feature on
the 2015 Notes accounted for as a separate embdddedtive. The 2020 Notes offered in the Exchahigesactions had a fair value of
$213.6 million , which resulted in a loss on extirnment of debt of $28.6 million in the first qgtearof fiscal 2013. Ciena does not expect the
Exchange Transactions to affect its taxes frominairtg operations, as the company continues toigeoa valuation allowance against its
deferred tax assets.

At the election of the holder, the notes may beveadted prior to maturity into shares of Ciena comrstock at the initial conversion rate of
49.0557 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, wli@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $20.38 per share. The notes
may be redeemed by Ciena on or after March 15, #h8 closing sale price of Ciena’s common stfrkat least 20 trading days in any 30
consecutive trading day period ending on the dageday prior to the date of the notice of redemméirceeds 150% of the conversion price.
Ciena may redeem the notes in whole or in pa#,rademption price in cash equal to the principabant to be redeemed, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, including any additional inter@stbut excluding, the redemption date, plus a makele premium payment. Thatake whole
premium” payment will be made in cash and equabptiesent value of the remaining interest paymeats)aturity, computed using a discount
rate equal to 2.75% . The make-whole premium id pmholders whether or not they convert the nfiitbswing Ciena'’s issuance of a
redemption notice. For accounting purposes, tldemgtion feature is an embedded derivative thadilearly and closely related to the nc
Consequently, it was initially bifurcated from timelenture and separately recorded at its fair vakian asset with subsequent changes in fair
value recorded through earnings. As of Octobe2813 , the fair value of the embedded redemptiatufe was $2.7 million and is included in
other long-term assets on the Consolidated BalSheet. Changes in fair value of the embedded reti@migature in the amount of $3.0
million are reflected as interest and other incgloss), net in the Consolidated Statement of Operatduring fiscal 2013 .

The net proceeds from the original offering of tiotes were $364.3 million after deducting the ptaest agents’ fees and other fees and
expenses. Ciena used $243.8 million of this amtiufund its payment election to replace its contracobligation to issue convertible notes tc
Nortel as part of the aggregate purchase pricthfoacquisition of the MEN Business. The remairpnoceeds were used to reduce the cas
hand required to fund the aggregate purchase pfittee MEN Business.

0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June Q%72

On June 11, 2007, Ciena completed a public offesing 875%convertible senior notes due June 15, 2017, ineggde principal amount
$500.0 million . Interest is payable on June 15Brdember 15 of each year, beginning on Decemhe2((% .

At the election of the holder, the notes may beveadted prior to maturity into shares of Ciena comrstock at the initial conversion rate of
26.2154 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, whli@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $38.15 per share. The notes
are not redeemable by Ciena prior to maturity.

Ciena used approximately $42.5 million of the nmeftceeds of this offering to purchase a call spagatthn on its common stock that is
intended to limit exposure to potential dilutionrin conversion of the notes. See Note 15 below fteszription of this call spread option.

3.75% Convertible Senior Notes, due October 158201

On October 18, 2010, Ciena completed a privatesphent of 3.75% convertible senior notes due OctttbeP018, in aggregate principal
amount of $350.0 million . Interest is payable ba hotes on April 15 and October 15 of each yezgiriming on April 15, 2011.

At the election of the holder, the notes may beveoted prior to maturity into shares of Ciena commstock at the initial conversion rate of
49.5872 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, vlsi@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $20.17 per share.

The net proceeds from the offering were approxity&id40.4 million after deducting the placementragefees and other fees and
expenses. Ciena used $76.1 million of the net pa&t¢o effect the repurchase of its 0.25% conversibnior notes due 2013, which matured
during fiscal 2013.

4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due December 15, 2020
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As described above, on December 27, 2012, Cienads$187.5 million in aggregate principal amourd @ Convertible Senior Notes
due 2020 (the “2020 Notes”") in separate privateraifys in exchange for $187.5 million in aggregaiacipal amount of 2015 Notes above.

The 2020 Notes are senior unsecured obligationsamdequally with all of Ciena's other existingldoture senior unsecured debt. The
2020 Notes pay interest from the date of issuahegate of 4.0% per year. The interest is payaéiri-annually on June 15 and December 15
commencing on June 15, 2013. The principal amofititen2020 Notes will also accrete at a rate 05%&er year commencing December 27,
2012, compounding on a semaninual basis. The accreted portion of the pringipghble at maturity does not bear interest andtigonvertibl
into shares of Ciena's common stock. The 2020 Nmilémature on December 15, 2020. Consequentlyhéevent the 2020 Notes are
converted, the accreted liability will extinguishtmout payment.

The 2020 Notes may be converted prior to matugityhe option of the holder, into shares of Cienatamon stock at an initial conversion
rate of 49.0557 shares of common stock per $10@@iginal principal amount, which is equal to aitial conversion price of $20.39 per
share. In addition, Ciena may elect to conver2d20 Notes in whole or in part at any time on dompto December 15, 2020, if the daily
volume weighted average price of the common stociaks or exceeds 130% of the conversion price itneffect for at least 26ading days it
any 30 consecutive trading day period. If Cienatsléo convert the 2020 Notes on or before matuttity conversion rate will be adjusted to
include an amount of additional shares, determinerkference to a make-whole table, payable in £@mmon stock, or its cash equivalent,
at Ciena's election. An aggregate of 9,197,944eshair Ciena common stock issuable upon converditdred@020 Notes has been reserved for
issuance.

Upon certain fundamental changes, holders of ti2® 2btes have the option to require Ciena to pugelthe 2020 Notes at a price equal tc
the accreted principal amount of the notes delivéoe repurchase plus any accrued and unpaid stterethe original principal amount. Upo
holder's election to convert the 2020 Notes in eation with certain fundamental changes, the casigprrate will be adjusted to include an
amount of additional shares, determined by refesén@ make-whole table, payable in Ciena commmeksbor its cash equivalent, at Ciena's
election.

Accounting guidance issued by the FASB requiresgfiger of convertible debt instruments with casttlement features, including partial
cash settlement, to account separately for thditiaand equity components of the instrument. Unitiés guidance, the debt is recognized a
present value of its cash flows discounted usieggbuer's nonconvertible debt borrowing rate atithe of issuance and the equity componer
is recognized as the difference between the pracerth the issuance of the note and the fair vafube liability. The reduced carrying value
on the convertible debt results in a debt discduat is accreted back to the convertible debtiscgpal amount through the recognition of non-
cash interest expense over the expected life ofiehé which results in recognizing the interegiemse on these borrowings at effective rates
approximating what Ciena would have incurred hadgcoavertible debt with otherwise similar terms besued.

Because the additional make-whole shares can tledset cash or common stock at Ciena's optiongd#is and equity components were
accounted for separately. Ciena measured thedhievof the debt component of the 2020 Notes usingffective interest rate of 7.0% . As a
result, Ciena attributed $1709illion of the fair value of the 2020 Notes to tthebt component. The debt component was netted sighanfac
value of the 2020 Notes to determine the debt distd he debt discount will be accreted over théopefrom the date of issuance to the
contractual maturity date, resulting in the rectigniof non-cash interest expense. In additionn€ieecorded $43.1 million within additional
paid-in capital representing the equity componéihe 2020 Notes. There was no net tax expensededaue to Ciena'’s full valuation
allowance against its deferred tax assets.

The 2020 Notes were issued pursuant to an Indeahiezed into as of December 27, 2012 (the “Indefifwith The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. The Indemfpurovides for customary events of default whiotlude (subject in certain cases to
customary grace and cure periods), among othersptlowing: nonpayment of principal (including aeted portion) or interest; breach of
covenants or other agreements in the Indenturautisfin failure to pay certain other indebtednesst certain events of bankruptcy or
insolvency. Generally, if an event of default oscand is continuing under the Indenture, the teustehe holders of at least 25% in aggregate
original principal amount of the 2020 Notes thetstanding may declare the principal (including ated portion), premium, if any, and
accrued interest on all the 2020 Notes immediatakyand payable.

The principal balance, unamortized discount anccasling value of the liability and equity compaoite of our 2020 notes were as follows
as of October 31, 2013

Liability Component Equity Component
Unamortized Net Carrying Net Carrying
Principal Balance Discount Amount Amount
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due December 15, 2020 $ 190,45t $ 16,17. $ (174,28) $ 43,13:
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The following table sets forth, in thousands, therying value and the estimated current fair valfi€iena’s outstanding convertible notes:

October 31, 2013

Description Carrying Value Fair Value®
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes, due March 15, 2015 187,73« 243,86°
0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2017 500,00( 519,37!
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes, due October 158201 350,00t 497,65t
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes, due December 150 £02 174,28! 271,50(

$ 1,212,01' $ 1,532,39i

(1) Includes unamortized bond premium related to embedddemption featu

(2) The convertible notes were categorized as IL2ue the fair value hierarchy. Ciena estimatesftir value of its outstanding
convertible notes using a market approach basedservable inputs, such as current market tramsecinvolving comparable
securities.

3) Includes unamortized discount and accretion ofgipa.

(13) CREDIT FACILITY

During fiscal 2012, Ciena and certain of its sulagids, including Ciena Communications, Inc. andr@i Canada, Inc. (with Ciena,
collectively, the “Borrowers”), entered into asbetsed lending (ABL) facility and executed an ABLe@it Agreement (the “Credit
Agreement”) with the lenders party thereto, inchgdDeutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as administeagent and collateral agent (the
“Agent”), Bank of America, N.A., as Syndication Agent, andrlyn Stanley Senior Funding, Inc. and Wells FargolkB National Associatiol
as Co-Documentation Agents. The Credit Agreementtiges for a senior secured asset-based revolvetjtdacility of up to $150 million

(the “Credit Facility”). Ciena has the option tfiwiease the total commitment under the Credit Bacd $200 million , subject to certain
conditions, including obtaining commitments fromeasr more lenders. The Credit Agreement providasttie entire amount of the Credit
Facility is available for issuances of letters @dit, and allows for both swingline loans, and &tian dollar denominated loans to Ciena's
Canadian subsidiary (the “Canadian Borrower”) iraarount not to exceed $20 million . The Creditiiganatures on August 13, 2015,
provided that it will mature early on December 2614, if any of Ciena's 4.0% senior convertibleesatue March 15, 2015 are then
outstanding. Ciena principally expects to use thedif Facility to support the issuance of lettersredit that arise in the ordinary course of its
business and thereby to reduce its use of caslreddo collateralize these instruments. As of ®eto31, 2013, letters of credit totaling $43.6
million were collateralized by the Credit Facilifjhere were no borrowings outstanding under th@i€CFacility as of October 31, 2013 .

Availability under the Credit Facility is based upmonthly (or weekly, in certain cases) borrowiragé certifications valuing the
Borrowers' eligible inventory and eligible accourgseivable, as reduced by certain reserves ictdfi@n time to time. Outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Facility accrue inteedloating rates plus an applicable margin ragdrom 2.00% to 2.50% for LIBOR rate
loans, and 1.00% to 1.50% for base rate |oBms.commitment fee payable on the unused portidheCredit Facility equals 0.50% or
0.375% based on utilization of the Credit Faciityd Borrowers will pay customary letter of credis.

Ciena and Ciena Communications, Inc. also entereda U.S. Guaranty in favor of the Agent, provglan unconditional guaranty of all
amounts owing under the Credit Facility. Ciena Ganentered into a similar guaranty in favor of Aggnt with respect to the Canadian
Borrower's obligations. These agreements may re@dditional subsidiary guarantors in the futuneadidition, Ciena, the other domestic
Borrowers and the Agent entered into a SecurityeAgrent and a Pledge Agreement in connection wétlCtiedit Facility. Pursuant to the
Security Agreement and Pledge Agreement, the diigg of Ciena and the other domestic Borrowersthadyuarantees by the domestic
guarantors are secured by first priority secuntgiests (subject only to customary permitted lemd certain other permitted liens) in
substantially all current assets of Ciena, therafleenestic Borrowers and the domestic guarantacd) property consisting of accounts
receivable, inventory, cash, deposit and secuid@desunts, chattel paper, promissory notes and @alimtangibles and, to the extent
evidencing or otherwise related to such propettgeneral intangibles, licenses, letter of creijhts, commercial tort claims, instruments,
supporting obligations and documents. PursuantQaraadian Security Agreement entered into by atdden Ciena Canada and the Agent,
similar assets of the Canadian Borrower securelfigations of the Canadian Borrower.
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The Credit Agreement contains customary covenaatslitnit, absent lender approval, the ability aéta and certain of its affiliates to,
among other things, pay cash dividends, incur debgte liens and encumbrances, redeem or repershask, enter into certain acquisition
transactions or transactions with affiliates, merdissolve, repay certain indebtedness, changeature of Ciena's business, make investment
or dispose of assets. In some cases, these riesisieire subject to certain negotiated exceptioqeonit Ciena to undertake otherwise
restricted activities if it satisfies certain rexgad conditions. In addition, Ciena will be requitednaintain a minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio of not less than 1.0 to 1a8 of the end of any period of four fiscal quartehen excess availability under the Credit Facilitjess than tf
greater of (i) 12.5% of availability or (ii) $15,0@00 . Ciena is also required to maintain atiales at least $200 million in the aggregate of
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.

If (x) excess availability under the Credit Fagilis less than the greater of (i) 12.5% of avaligbor (ii) $15,000,000 or (y) there exists an
event of default, amounts in any of the Borrowersubsidiary guarantors' designated core deposituats will be transferred daily into a
blocked account held by the Agent and applied doice outstanding amounts under the Credit Facility.

The Credit Agreement contains customary eventef#udt including, among other things, failure to mdbligations when due, initiation of
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, defaultsemain other indebtedness, change of control, reciwe of certain material judgments that
are not stayed, satisfied, bonded or dischargddm®0 days, certain ERISA events, invalidity of tredit documents, and violation of
affirmative and negative covenants or breach ofesgntations and warranties set forth in the Crgglieement. Upon an event of default, the
lenders may, subject to various customary curdsjgkquire the immediate payment of all amountstanding and foreclose on collateral.

During fiscal 2013, Ciena's subsidiary, Ciena Gowegnt Solutions, Inc. executed a joinder agreerecbming a party to the Credit
Agreement and the related agreements describestabov

(14) EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE CALCULATION

The following table (in thousands except per slaameunts) is a reconciliation of the numerator aadadgninator of the basic net income
(loss) per common share (“Basic EPS”) and the elilutet income (loss) per potential common shardyt&l EPS”). Since the numerator
reflects net losses for the fiscal years indicabedh Basic EPS and Diluted EPS are computed ubngveighted average number of common
shares outstanding. If the numerator reflectednuaime, Diluted EPS would also include, to the ekthe effect is not anti-dilutive, the
following: (i) shares issuable upon vesting of rieg¢d stock units, (i) shares issuable under €eemployee stock purchase plan and upon
exercise of outstanding stock options, using teasury stock method; and (iii) shares underlyiren@is outstanding convertible notes.

Numerator
Year Ended October 31,
2011 2012 2013
Net loss $ (195,52) $ (144,02) $ (85,43))

Denominator

Year Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 95,85¢ 99,34 102,35(
Dilutive weighted average shares outstanding 95,85¢ 99,34! 102,35(
EPS

Year Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013
Basic EPS $ (2.09 % (1.45) $ (0.8%)
Diluted EPS $ (209 $ (1.45) $ (0.8%)

79




Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the weighted aversdgaes excluded from the calculation of the denator for Diluted EPS due to their
anti-dilutive effect for the fiscal years indicat@d thousands):

Year Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013
Shares underlying stock options and restricteckstoés 6,142 5,72¢ 3,89(
0.25% Convertible Senior Notes due May 1, 2013 5,47( 5,47( 2,682
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due March 15, 2015 18,39t 18,39 10,54:
0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2017 13,10¢ 13,10¢ 13,10¢
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due October 15, 2018 17,35¢ 17,35¢ 17,35¢
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due December 15, 2020 — — 7,85¢
Total excluded due to anti-dilutive effect 60,47C — 60,05¢ 55,43:

(15) STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Call Spread Options

Ciena purchased a call spread option relatinggdtB75% convertible senior notes due June 15, £51%42.5 million during the third
quarter of fiscal 2007. The call spread optiondsigned to mitigate exposure to potential dilufimm the conversion of the notes. The call
spread option was purchased at the time of thesrudfering from an affiliate of the underwriter. &lost of the call spread option was recol
as a reduction in paid-in capital.

The call spread option is exercisable, upon matofithe relevant issue of convertible note, factsaumber of shares of Ciena common
stock issuable upon conversion of that series tdaim full. The call spread option has a “loweikst price” equal to the conversion price for
the notes and a “higher strike price” that sereesap the amount of dilution protection provided itd election, Ciena can exercise the call
spread option on a net cash basis or a net shai® hae value of the consideration of a net skatdement will be equal to the value upon a
net cash settlement and can range from $0 , ifidwket price per share of Ciena common stock upercese is equal to or below the lower
strike price, or approximately $76.1 million , ife market price per share of Ciena common stock egercise is at or above the higher strike
price. If the market price on the date of exertideetween the lower strike price and the highekesprice, in lieu of a net settlement, Ciena
may elect to receive the full number of shares dyihg the call spread option by paying the aggtegsption exercise price, which is equal to
the original principal outstanding on that seriéaates. Should there be an early unwind of thesgakad option, the amount of cash or share
to be received by Ciena will depend upon the engistiverall market conditions, and on Ciena’s stogke, the volatility of Ciena’s stock and
the remaining term of the call spread option. Tamber of shares subject to the call spread optind,the lower and higher strike prices, are
subject to customary adjustments.

(16) INCOME TAXES

For the periods indicated, the provision for inca@ees consists of the following (in thousands):

October 31,
2011 2012 2013
Provision for income taxes:
Current:
Federal $ (194) $ — 8 —
State (51¢) 857 90¢
Foreign 8,20z 8,46t 4,33¢
Total current 7,49( 9,32 5,24(
Deferred:
Federal 16C — —
State 23 — —
Foreign — — —
Total deferred 18¢ — —
Provision for income taxes $ 767§ 9,32: $ 5,24(
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For the periods indicated, income (loss) beforevigion for income taxes consists of the following thousands):

October 31,
2011 2012 2013
United States $ (240,24 $ (151,959 $ (59,599
Foreign 52,39¢ 17,25¢ (20,597
Total $ (187,849 $ (134,699 $ (80,199

For the periods indicated, the tax provision redesdo the amount computed by multiplying incomdoss before income taxes by the
U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% as follows:

October 31,
2011 2012 2013
Provision at statutory rate 35.0( % 35.00 % 35.0( %
State taxes 0.27% (0.69H% (1.19%
Foreign taxes 2.32% (5.09% (22.70%
Research and development credit 11.0: % 10.21% 17.3¢%
Non-deductible loss on debt extinguishment — % — % (11.29)%
Non-deductible compensation and other (3.960% (4.99% (8.789%
Valuation allowance (48.79)% (41.49% (25.10%
Effective income tax rate (4.06% (6.99% (6.59%
The significant components of deferred tax assaddiabilities are as follows (in thousands):
October 31,
2012 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Reserves and accrued liabilities $ 44,12¢ % 44 51!
Depreciation and amortization 276,71( 274,46¢
NOL and credit carry forward 1,142,64 1,159,49.
Other 25,50¢ 8,82:
Gross deferred tax assets 1,488,99. 1,487,29
Valuation allowance (1,488,99) (1,487,29)
Net deferred tax asset $ — 3 —

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoafntinrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest penalties, is as follows (in
thousands):
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Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2010 $ 7,44:
Decrease related to positions taken in prior period (450
Increase related to positions taken in currentopleri 1,84
Reductions related to expiration of statute of fations (249
Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2011 8,59(
Decrease related to positions taken in prior period (12
Increase related to positions taken in currentopleri 2,86¢
Reductions related to expiration of statute of fations (392
Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2012 11,05:
Decrease related to positions taken in prior period (3,925
Increase related to positions taken in currentopleri 2,14¢
Reductions related to expiration of statute of fations (999
Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2013 $ 8,27¢

For both October 31, 2012 and 2013, Ciena haduadc$1.4 million of interest and some minor pepaltielated to unrecognized tax
benefits within other long-term liabilities in ti@onsolidated Balance Sheets. A benefit of $0.3anil) a charge of $0.3 million , and no
charges or benefits were recorded to the proviEipbmcome taxes during fiscal 2011 , fiscal 2018 éiscal 2013 respectively. If recognized,
the entire balance of unrecognized tax benefitsldvimpact the effective tax rate. Over the nexti@nths, Ciena does not estimate any
material changes in unrecognized income tax benefit

During fiscal 2002, Ciena established a valuatitowaance against its deferred tax assets. Ciemgds to maintain a valuation allowance
until sufficient positive evidence exists to suppmreversal. Any future release of the valuatibmnaance may be recorded as a tax benefit
increasing net income or as an adjustment to padpital, based on tax ordering requirements.félh@wving table summarizes the activity in
Ciena’s valuation allowance against its gross defetax assets (in thousands):

Year ended Balance at beginning Balance at end
October 31, of period Additions Deductions of period
2011 $ 1,363,49. $ 103,91t $ — 1,467,41.
2012 $ 1,467,41 $ 21,58: $ — % 1,488,99.
2013 $ 1,488,99. $ — % 1,69t $ 1,487,29!

As of October 31, 2013, Ciena had a $2.8 billiehaperating loss carry forward and a $0.1 bililmecome tax credit carry forward which
begin to expire in fiscal year 2018 and 2013, retpely. Ciena’s ability to use net operating lass@d credit carry forwards is subject to
limitations pursuant to the ownership change rofebe Internal Revenue Code Section 382.

The income tax provision does not reflect the &xrggs resulting from deductions associated win@k equity compensation and the «
spread option associated with Ciena’s convertiblet.dThe cumulative tax benefit through October28l,3 of approximately $79.0 million
will be credited to additional paid-in capital whesalized. For deductions associated with Ciengistg compensation, credits to paid-in
capital will be recorded when those tax benefitsiesed to reduce taxes payable.

(17) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE
Ciena grants equity awards under its 2008 Omnibosritive Plan and the Amended and Restated EmpBiges Purchase Plan (“ESBHP”

2008 Plan

The 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2008 Planithorizes the issuance of awards including st@tions, restricted stock units (RSU
restricted stock, unrestricted stock, stock apptem rights ("SARs") and other equity and/or cpelformance incentive awards to employees
directors, and consultants of Ciena. Subject ttagerestrictions, the Compensation Committee efR8loard of Directors has broad discretio
establish the terms and conditions for awards utide2008 Plan, including the number of sharegjngsonditions and the required service
performance criteria. Options and
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SARs have a maximum term of ten years , and theircése price may not be less than 108Rfir market value on the date of grant. Repg
of stock options and SARs is prohibited withoutktwlder approval. Certain change in control tratisas may cause awards granted under
the 2008 Plan to vest, unless the awards are emtior substituted for in connection with the test®n.

The 2008 Plan reserves 18.5 million shares of comstack for issuance, subject to increase from timtéme by the number of shares:
(i) subject to outstanding awards granted unden&geprior equity compensation plans that termiméthout delivery of any stock (to the
extent such shares would have been availabledoaisce under such prior plan), and (ii) subjeeivtards assumed or substituted in connet
with the acquisition of another company. The 20G&hcludes a fungible share feature that couats share of common stock underlying
full value awards, such as restricted stock uags].31shares for purposes of calculating the shares réngaavailable under the 2008 Plan.
of October 31, 2013 , approximately 4.9 million ®gremained available for issuance under the P08

Stock Options

Outstanding stock option awards to employees amergdly subject to service-based vesting restmstiand vest incrementally over a four
year period. The following table is a summary ofi@'s stock option activity for the periods indéch{shares in thousand

Shares Underlying Weighted
Options Average
Outstanding Exercise Price

Balance as of October 31, 2010 5,00: $ 40.9¢
Granted — —
Exercised (411) 14.8¢
Canceled (907) 97.6¢
Balance as of October 31, 2011 3,69( 30.01
Granted — —
Exercised (56) 6.72
Canceled (427) 51.2¢
Balance as of October 31, 2012 3,201 27.5¢
Granted — —
Exercised (24¢€) 13.81
Canceled (859 31.8:
Balance as of October 31, 2013 2,10z g 27.4¢

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrfiscal 2011 , fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013 wagt$8illion , $0.5 million and $2.0
million , respectively. There were no stock optigmanted by Ciena during fiscal 2011, fiscal 20L&szal 2013 .

The following table summarizes information withpest to stock options outstanding at October 3132Mased on Ciena'’s closing stock
price on the last trading day of Ciena’s fiscal 2@¢hares and intrinsic value in thousands):
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Options Outstanding at
October 31, 2013

Vested Options at
October 31, 2013

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number Remaining Weighted Number Remaining Weighted
Range of of Contractual Average Aggregate of Contractual Average Aggregate
Exercise Underlying Life Exercise Intrinsic Underlying Life Exercise Intrinsic
Price Shares (Years) Price Value Shares (Years) Price Value
$092 — $ 16.31 197 411 $ 86z $ 2,89: 19€ 4.09 $ 8.6C $ 2,87¢
$165:. — $ 17.2¢ 30C 1.68 16.6¢ 1,981 30C 1.68 16.6¢ 1,981
$17.4: —  $ 24.5( 402 1.46 20.6( 1,08t 402 1.46 20.6( 1,08t
$246¢ — 3 28.2¢ 347 3.01 27.0z — 347 3.01 27.0z —
$2861 — $ 31.4: 157 2.70 29.5¢ = 157 2.70 29.5¢ =
$31.717 —  $ 32.5¢ 21 413 31.9: — 21 413 31.92 —
$33.0( — $ 37.1( 28¢ 3.55 35.17 = 28¢ 3.55 35.17% =
$3731 — $ 47.3C 37¢ 1.21 45.9¢ — 37¢ 1.21 45.9¢ —
$475: — $ 55.7¢ 11 0.10 49.6¢ = 11 0.10 49.6¢ —
$094 — $ 557¢ 2,10z 235 ¢ 27.4¢ $ 595¢ 2,101 235 ¢ 2747 $ 594t

Assumptions for Option-Based Awards

Ciena recognizes the fair value of service-baseidiapas share-based compensation expense onghttiae basis over the requisite
service period. Ciena did not grant any option-dasgards during fiscal 2011, fiscal 2012, or fis2@l 3.

Restricted Stock Units

A restricted stock unit is a stock award that &githe holder to receive shares of Ciena comnmawk $ts the unit vests. Ciena's outstan
restricted stock unit awards are subject to setvased vesting conditions and/or performance-bassting conditions. Awards subject to
service-based conditions typically vest in increta@ver a three or four-year period. Awards withfgnancebased vesting conditions reqt
the achievement of certain operational, financiadtber performance criteria or targets as a cardif vesting, or the acceleration of vesting,
of such awards. Ciena recognizes the estimateddhie of performance-based awards, net of estahfatéeitures, as share-based
compensation expense over the performance persi graded vesting, which considers each perfocamaeriod or tranche separately, base
upon Ciena's determination of whether it is probabht the performance targets will be achievedeah reporting period, Ciena reassesse
probability of achieving the performance targetd e performance period required to meet thogetar

The following table is a summary of Ciena's resdcstock unit activity for the period indicatedtmthe aggregate fair value of the
balance outstanding at the end of each perioddb@s€iena’s closing stock price on the last trqdiay of the relevant period (shares and
aggregate fair value in thousands):

84




Table of Contents

Weighted
Average
Restricted Grant Date
Stock Units Fair Value Aggregate Fair
Outstanding Per Share Value
Balance as of October 31, 2010 5191 $ 13.81 71,68:
Granted 2,06¢
Vested (2,46€)
Canceled or forfeited (497
Balance as of October 31, 2011 4,29¢ 16.2¢ 59,39¢
Granted 2,43:
Vested (1,917
Canceled or forfeited (416
Balance as of October 31, 2012 4,40 14.1¢ 56,26
Granted 2,50¢
Vested (1,920
Canceled or forfeited (572
Balance as of October 31, 2013 441¢ g 15.31 $ 102,74t

The total fair value of restricted stock units thiasted and were converted into common stock ddisegl 2011 , fiscal 2012 and fiscal
2013 was $45.3 million , $27.0 million and $37.3limn , respectively. The weighted average faineabf each restricted stock unit granted by
Ciena during fiscal 2011 , fiscal 2012 and fisdal2 was $19.73 , $11.28 and $16.30 , respectively.

Assumptions for Restricted Stock Unit Awards

The fair value of each restricted stock unit awiardased on the closing price on the date of gfimare-based expense for service-based
restricted stock unit awards is recognized, netstimated forfeitures, ratably over the vestingqukbon a straight-line basis.

Share-based expense for performance-based resdtsictek unit awards, net of estimated forfeituresecognized ratably over the
performance period based upon Ciena's determinafiasmether it is probable that the performancgets will be achieved. At each reporting
period, Ciena reassesses the probability of aaigetie performance targets and the performancegesguired to meet those targets. The
estimation of whether the performance targetshélhachieved involves judgment, and the estimatxpénse is revised periodically based on
the probability of achieving the performance tasg&evisions are reflected in the period in whind éstimate is changed. If any performance
goals are not met, no compensation cost is ultimateognized against that goal and, to the extesxiously recognized, compensation cost is
reversed.

Because share-based compensation expense is rezbgmily for those awards that are ultimately etgubto vest, the amount of share-
based compensation expense recognized reflecthiatien for estimated forfeitures. Ciena estimédeeitures at the time of grant and revises
those estimates in subsequent periods based upoarreghanged information.

Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase PP

Under the ESPP, eligible employees may enrolltiwedve -month offer period that begins in Decemdnadl June of each year. Each offer
period includes two six -month purchase periodspBgees may purchase a limited number of shardseo€ompany's common stock at 85%
of the fair market value on either the day immealiapreceding the offer date or the purchase dateghever is lower. The ESPP is considerec
compensatory for purposes of share-based compenstpense. Pursuant to the ESPP's “evergreenisppoyon December 31 of each year,
the number of shares available under the ESPPasesdy up to 0.6 million shares, provided thatakel number of shares available at that
time shall not exceed 8.2 million . Unless earlegminated, the ESPP will terminate on January2p23.

During fiscal 2011 , fiscal 2012 and fiscal 20XGigna issued 0.5 million , 1.2 million and 0.9 moifl shares under the ESPP, respectively
At October 31, 2013, 7.2 million shares remaineailable for issuance under the ESPP.

Share-Based Compensation Expense for Periods Report
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The following table summarizes share-based compiensaxpense for the periods indicated (in thousind

Year Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013
Product costs $ 2,26¢ $ 2,15¢ $ 2,52:
Service costs 1,881 1,46% 1,771
Share-based compensation expense included in tgsbds sold 4,15( 3,61¢ 4,29:
Research and development 10,14¢ 8,56 8,21«
Sales and marketing 12,18: 11,55¢ 13,29(
General and administrative 11,14( 8,691 12,05t
Acquisition and integration costs 30¢€ 7 —
Share-based compensation expense included in opgeeatpense 33,77¢ 28,82 33,55¢
Share-based compensation expense capitalizedentiony, net 1 47) (132)
Total share-based compensation $ 37,930 $ 32,39¢  $ 37,72

As of October 31, 2013, total unrecognized comagmis expense was $55.9 million , which relatesrteested stock units and is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average peridddofyears.

(18) SEGMENT AND ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURES
Segment Reporting

During the first quarter of fiscal 2013, Ciena igamized its internal organizational structure dredrhanagement of its business into the
following new operating segments: (i) Convergedikea©ptical; (ii) Packet Networking; (iii) Opticdlransport; and (iv) Software and Servi
Ciena's chief operating decision maker, its chiefcaitive officer, evaluates the company's perforreaand allocates resources based on
multiple factors, including measures of segmenfipfloss). Operating segments are defined as compis of an enterprise that engage in
business activities that may earn revenue and iexpense; for which discrete financial informatisravailable, and for which such informat
is evaluated regularly by the chief operating deonisnaker for purposes of allocating resourcesassssing performance. Ciena's segment
revenue and segment profit (loss) for fiscal 20dd fiscal 2012 have been restated to reflect theomerating segments adopted in fiscal 2!
The following describes each of the newly reorgediaperating segments:

« Converged Packet Optical #acludes networking solutions optimized for the wergence of coherent optical transport, OTN
switching and packet switching. These platformsénautomated packet-optical infrastructures thedte and efficiently allocate
high-capacity bandwidth for the delivery of a widkriety of enterprise and consumer-oriented netvgerkices. Products in this
segment include the 6500 Packet-Optical Platformuiétng Ciena's WavelLogic coherent optical processgeroducts also include
Ciena's family of CoreDirector® Multiservice OptiGwitches, its 5430 Reconfigurable Switching Systnd its OTN configuration
for the 5410 Reconfigurable Switching System. Theselucts include multiservice, multi-protocol setiing systems that consolidate
the functionality of an add/drop multiplexer, daitross-connect and packet switch into a sing¢g-bapacity intelligent switching
system. These products address both the core atnd segments of communications networks and suggeyrimanaged services,
Ethernet/TDM Private Line, Triple Play and IP seed. This segment also includes sales of operayistgm software and enhanced
software features embedded in each of these pmdretvenue from this segment is included in prodexetnue on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

» Packet Networkin— principally includes Ciena's 3000 family of servaaivery switches and service aggregation switcties5000
series of service aggregation switches, and itsra#t packet configuration for the 5410 Service réggtion Switch. These products
support the access and aggregation tiers of comuations networks and have principally been depldgesiipport wireless backhaul
infrastructures and business data services. Emmaaphisticated, carrier-grade Ethernet switchéofinology, these products deliver
quality of service capabilities, virtual local aneetworking and switching functions, and carrieadg operations, administration, and
maintenance features. This segment includes stang-Aroadband products that transition voice neta/to support Internet-based
(IP) telephony, video services and DSL. This segmtso includes sales of operating system soft@ackenhanced software features
embedded in each of these products. Revenue frisrsggment is included in product revenue on thesGlidated Statement of
Operations.
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e Optical Transport —includes optical transport solutions that add cépae core, regional and metro networks and enabt-
effective and efficient transport of voice, videtdadata traffic at high transmission speeds. Cégoidcipal products in this segment
include the 4200 Advanced Services Platform, Coeast®Agility Optical Transport System, 5100/5200 Advati@&ervices Platforr
Common Photonic Layer (CPL), and 6100 Multisen@gtical Platform. This segment includes sales fRONET/SDH, transport
and data networking products, as well as certai@rprise-oriented transport solutions that supgtutage and LAN extension,
interconnection of data centers, and virtual pavatworks. This segment also includes operatisteay software and enhanced
software features embedded in each of these prmdretzenue from this segment is included in prodexgnue on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

» Software and Services ireludes Ciena's network software suite, includhng OneControl Unified Management System, an istieg
network and service management software designadttomate and simplify network management, operatitd service delivery.
These software solutions can track individual sgrsiacross multiple product suites, facilitatingnpled network maintenance, outage
detection and identification of customers or segiaffected by network performance. This segmeftdes the ON-Center®etwork
& Service Management Suite, Ethernet Services Manaptical Suite Release and network level apfiina. This segment includes
a broad range of consulting, network design anghasriservices from Ciena's Network Transformatiotufons offering. This
segment also includes installation and deploynmaatntenance support and training activities. Exéeptevenue from the software
portion of this segment, which is included in prodrevenue, revenue from this segment is includeskivices revenue on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Reportable segment asset information is not disdd&cause it is not reviewed by the chief opegatecision maker for purposes of
evaluating performance and allocating resources.

The table below (in thousands, except percentagg dats forth Ciena’s segment revenue for theets@ periods:

Fiscal Year
2011 2012 2013

Revenues:

Converged Packet Optical $ 734,32« $ 951,24 $ 1,187,23
Packet Networking 126,98: 128,98 222,89¢
Optical Transport 535,87" 353,62( 233,82:
Software and Services 344,78t 400,07¢ 438,59t
Consolidated revenue $ 1,74197 $ 1,833,920 $ 2,082,54

Segment Profit

Segment profit is determined based on internaloperdnce measures used by the chief executive pfficassess the performance of each
operating segment in a given period. In conneatitth that assessment, the chief executive offigetuges the following items: selling and
marketing costs; general and administrative c@stguisition and integration costs; amortizatiomnddngible assets; restructuring costs; chang
in fair value of contingent consideration; interastl other income (loss), net; interest expenagtyetpvestment gains or losses, loss on
extinguishment of debt and provisions for incomesta

The table below (in thousands) sets forth Ciss&gment profit and the reconciliation to consaid net loss during the respective peri
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Fiscal Year
2011 2012 2013

Segment profit:

Converged Packet Optical $ 51,51 % 148,24 $ 242,33!

Packet Networking 17,71« 1,71% 22,74

Optical Transport 189,49° 116,73t 89,75«

Software and Services 70,55¢ 93,35 126,93¢
Total segment profit 329,28 360,04! 481,76
Less: non-performance operating expenses

Selling and marketing 251,99( 266,33 304,17(

General and administrative 126,24. 114,00: 122,43.

Acquisition and integration costs 42,08¢ — —

Amortization of intangible assets 69,66" 51,69’ 49,77

Restructuring costs 5,781 7,85¢ 7,16¢

Change in fair value of contingent consideration (3,289 — —
Add: other non-performance financial items

Interest expense and other income (loss), net (31,909 (54,857 (49,786)

Gain on cost method investments 7,24¢ — —

Loss on extinguishment of debt — — (28,630)
Less: Provision for income taxes 7,67 9,32 5,24(
Consolidated net loss $ (195,52) $ (144,02) $ (85,43)

Entity Wide Reportini

The following table reflects Ciena’s geographidrilisition of revenue based on the location of thechaser, with any country accounting
for at least 10% of total revenue in the periodctjmally identified. Revenue attributable to geaghic regions outside of the United States is
reflected as International revenue. For the perfmdsw, Ciena’s geographic distribution of revemas as follows (in thousands, except
percentage data):

Fiscal Year
2011 2012 2013
United States $ 930,88( $ 972,57¢ $ 1,217,46:
International 811,09( 861,34° 865,08«
Total $ 1,741970 $ 1,833,922 $ 2,082,54

The following table reflects Ciena's geographidriisition of equipment, furniture and fixtures, netth any country
accounting for at least 10% of total equipmentiwre and fixtures, net, in the period specifigadlentified. Equipment, furniture and fixtures,
net, attributable to geographic regions outsidhefUnited States and Canada are reflected as f'@tteznational.” For the periods below,
Ciena's geographic distribution of equipment, fun@ and fixtures,net, was as follows (in thousaedsept percentage data):

October 31,
2011 2012 2013
United States $ 60,84t $ 64,65 $ 64,13:
Canada 47,42« 48,37t 43,77:
Other International 14,28t 10,55: 11,82¢
Total $ 12255¢ $ 123,58( $ 119,72
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For the periods below, customers accounting féeat 10% of Ciena'’s revenue were as follows (Gufands, except percentage data):

Fiscal Year
2011 2012 2013
AT&T $ 269,85¢ % 248,120 % 373,61

(19) OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Ciena has a Defined Contribution Pension Plandbegrs a majority of its Canada-based employees.pldn covers all Canada-based
employees who are not part of an excluded groufal Tontributions (employee and employer) cannceexr the lesser of 18% of participant
earnings and an annual dollar limit (CAD $24,2702013 ). This plan includes a required employertiibution of 1% for all participants and
a 50% matching of participant contributions up total annual maximum of CAD $3,000 per employeeriiy fiscal 2011 , 2012 and 2013,
Ciena made matching contributions of approxima@AD $4.3 million , CAD $4.0 million and CAD $3.9 ition , respectively.

Ciena has a 401(k) defined contribution profit gin@plan. Participants may contribute up to 60%ref-tax compensation, subject to
certain limitations. The plan includes an emplayatching contribution equal to 50% of the first @employee contributes each pay period.
Ciena may also make discretionary annual profitrdoutions up to the IRS regulated limit. Ciena haade no profit sharing contributions to
date. During fiscal 2011 , 2012 and 2013, Ciendemaatching contributions of approximately $3.9lioml , $4.1 million and $4.0 million,
respectively.

(20) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Ontario Grant

Ciena was awarded a conditional grant from the iRoavof Ontario in June 2011. Under this stratégis investment fund grant, Ciena
can receive up to an aggregate of CAD $25.0 miliiofunding for eligible costs relating to certaiext-generation, coherent optical transport
development initiatives over the period from Novemb, 2010 to October 31, 2015 . Ciena has recetregxpects to continue to receive,
disbursements approximating CAD $5.0 million pecél year over the period above. Amounts receivettuthe grant are subject to
recoupment in the event that Ciena fails to achaaréain minimum investment, employment and projeitéstones. Ciena recorded a CAD
$5.3 million , CAD $5.6 million and CAD $5.5 milliobenefit, as a reduction in research and developmeenses, in fiscal 2011 , fiscal 2012
and fiscal 2013, respectively. As of October 3112and October 31, 2013 , amounts receivable thisrgrant were CAD $2.5 million and
CAD $2.6 million , respectively.

Foreign Tax Contingencie

Ciena has previously received assessment notioesNtexican tax authorities asserting deficienaepdayments between 2001 and 2005,
related primarily to income taxes and import taard duties. Ciena previously submitted judicialtfmts appealing these assessments. As of
October 31, 2012, Ciena had accrued liabilitie$lo¥ million related to these foreign tax contingies. During the third quarter of fiscal year
2013, Ciena received a favorable resolution ofg¢hmatters with the tax court issuing a final and-appealable declaration determining such
tax assessments to be null and void. As a resigdhaeversed the accrued liability related to thigign tax contingency.

In addition to the matters described above, Cisrsubject to various tax liabilities arising in thalinary course of business. Ciena does
not expect that the ultimate settlement of thesailities will have a material effect on its resutf operations, financial position or cash flows.

Litigation

On July 26, 2013, Ciena and Cheetah Omni LLC edtint® a settlement agreement relating to patégation pending in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District @x@s. The proceeding arose on July 29, 2011, wheet@h Omni filed a complaint against
Ciena and several other defendants alleging thtdineof the parties' products infringe upon muétip.S. patents relating to reconfigurable
optical add-drop multiplexer (ROADM) technologidhe complaint sought injunctive relief and damadsder the terms of the settlement,
Ciena agreed to make a one-time payment of $1l®mtb Cheetah Omni in exchange for a fully paplligense to all of the patents-in-suit, a
release from all claims for damages and otherfradlating to such patents, and a covenant noi¢oGena at any time on any non-medical
patents owned by or
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assigned to Cheetah Omni on the effective dateeoféttlement agreement and through July 26, 20aAugust 9, 2013, the district court
granted the parties' joint stipulation of dismissih prejudice.

On May 29, 2008, Graywire, LLC filed a complainttire United States District Court for the North&istrict of Georgia against Ciena
and four other defendants, alleging, among otHag#) that certain of the parties' products infeng S. Patent 6,542,673 (the “'673 Patent”),
relating to an identifier system and component®ofuiical assemblies. The complaint seeks injunatlief and damages. In July 2009, upon
request of Ciena and certain other defendantd)i8ePatent and Trademark Office (“PTQO”") grantesl diefendantshter partesapplication for
reexamination with respect to certain claims of'@¥3 Patent, and the district court granted tHertkants' motion to stay the case pending
reexamination of all of the patents-in-suit. In Betber 2010, the PTO confirmed the validity of satams and rejected the validity of other
claims of the '673 Patent and Ciena and other def@s filed an appeal. On March 16, 2012, the Pii@ppeal rejected multiple claims of the
'673 Patent, including the two claims on which @ig&halleged to infringe. Subsequently, the pl&intiquested a reopening of the prosecution
of the '673 Patent, which request was denied by@ on April 29, 2013. Thereafter, on May 28, 20h@ plaintiff filed an amendment with
the PTO in which it canceled the claims of the '@&8ent on which Ciena is alleged to infringe. €ase currently remains stayed, and ther:
be no assurance as to whether or when the stapeviifted.

In addition to the matters described above, wesabgect to various legal proceedings and clainsragiin the ordinary course of business,
including claims against third parties that mayoire contractual indemnification obligations on ffaet of Ciena. We do not expect that the
ultimate costs to resolve these matters will hawaterial effect on our results of operations, fficial position or cash flows.

Operating Lease Commitments

Ciena has certain minimum obligations under norcekable operating leases expiring on various datesigh 2027 for equipment and
facilities. Future annual minimum operating leasmmitments under non-cancelable operating leas@staber 31, 2013 are as follows (in
thousands):

Year ended October 31,

2014 $ 30,93¢
2015 27,28
2016 24,19¢
2017 18,38
2018 8,65¢
Thereafter 50,15¢
Total $ 159,62:

Rental expense for fiscal 2011 , fiscal 2012 asddfi 2013 was approximately $25.5 million , $21ilfiom and $26.0 million, respectively
In addition, Ciena paid approximately $2.4 millio$1.4 million and $1.6 million during fiscal 201fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013 , respectively,
related to rent costs for restructured facilitiad anfavorable lease commitments, which were ofigeinst Ciena’s restructuring liabilities and
unfavorable lease obligations. The amount for dpegdease commitments above does not include bariexpenses relating to insurance,
taxes, maintenance and other costs required bggplicable operating lease. These costs are neceeghto have a material impact on Ciena's
financial condition, results of operations or célstws.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtsaon Accounting and Financial Disclosur

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedure
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this repeg,carried out an evaluation under the superviairmhwith the participation of
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, of our disclosure ca$rand procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuBtiebange Act of 1934, as amended). Based upomvhisiation, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded tloatr disclosure controls and procedures were effeets of the end of the period covered by
this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in Ciena’s internal control éimancial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15¢id 15d-15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) during the neastntly completed fiscal quarter that has matgriflected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, Ciena’s internal control ovandncial reporting.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Finarcial Reporting

The management of Ciena Corporation is responiblestablishing and maintaining adequate intecoatrol over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underSeeurities Exchange Act of 1934).

The internal control over financial reporting ae@a Corporation was designed to provide reasormssigrance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantteagcounting principles generally acceptec
in the United States of America. Internal contreéofinancial reporting includes those policies @ndcedures that:

» pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttthasactions and dispositions of the
assets of Ciena Corporation;

» provide reasonable assurance that transactiengeorded as necessary to permit preparatiomafidial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America;

e provide reasonable assurance that receipts anaeitpes of Ciena Corporation are being made ambycicordance with authorizati
of management and directors of Ciena Corporatiod; a

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preveatiimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiage or disposition of assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidatedrfcial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements.

Management of Ciena Corporation assessed theigffeets of the company’s internal control overfiitial reporting as of October 31,
2013 . Management based this assessment on cfdaegéective internal control over financial rating described in “Internal Control —
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee afrSpring Organizations of the Treadway Commissdiased on this assessment,
management determined that, as of October 31, 2Cigha Corporation maintained effective interrattcol over financial reporting.
Management reviewed the results of its assessmi#ntive Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent regisfaiblic accounting firm, who audited and reportedimsconsolidated financial
statements of Ciena Corporation included in thisuahreport, has also audited the effectivene&di@fia Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting as of October 31, 2013 , atestén its report appearing in Item 8 of Part Il annual report.

/sl Gary B. Smith /sl James E. Moylan, Jr.

Gary B. Smith James E. Moylan, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer Seniazé/President and Chief Financial Officer
December 20, 2013 December 20, 2013

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and CorpoeaGovernance

Information relating to Ciena’s directors and exa@uofficers is set forth in Part | of this annueport under the caption "ltem 1.
Business—Directors and Executive Officers.”

Additional information responsive to this item cemnuing our Audit Committee and regarding compliawith Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act is incorporated herein by referendgiéma’s definitive proxy statement with respecbtw 2014 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 12§ slafter the end of the fiscal year covered by faiem 10-K.

As part of our system of corporate governanceboard of directors has adopted a code of ethidgdlspecifically applicable to our chief
executive officer and senior financial officers.iFode of Ethics for Senior Financial Officersyaal as our Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, applicable to all directors, officers amdpdoyees, are available on the "Corporate Goverigmage of our website at
http://www.ciena.com We intend to satisfy any disclosure requirememeaun Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendmenbit waiver
from, a provision of the Code of Ethics for Seritamancial Officers, by posting such informationaur website at the address above.

Item 11. Executive Compensatic

Information responsive to this item is incorporaledein by reference to Ciena’s definitive proxgtsinent with respect to our 20Aénual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaMDers and Management and Related Stockholder Mat

Information responsive to this item is incorporatedein by reference to Ciena’s definitive proxgteiment with respect to our 20Aénual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trandaas, and Director Independenc

Information responsive to this item is incorporaledein by reference to Ciena’s definitive proxatsinent with respect to our 20Aénual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servic

Information responsive to this item is incorporaledein by reference to Ciena’s definitive proxgtsinent with respect to our 20Aénual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddoy this Form 10-K.
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PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
€)) 1. The information required by this item islirded in Item 8 of Part Il of this annual rep
2. The information required by this item is includedtem 8 of Part Il of this annual rept

3.  Exhibits: See Index to Exhibits, which is ingorated by reference in this ltem. The Exhibittelisin the accompanying Index to
Exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by refece as part of this annual report.

(b) Exhibits. See Index to Exhibits, which is ingorated by reference in this Item. The Exhibisdd in the accompanying Index to
Exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by refece as part of this annual report.

(c) Not applicable
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized on the 20th day of December 2013 .

Ciena Corporation

By: /s/ Gary B. Smith
Gary B. Smith
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
the Registrant and in the capacities and on theiddtcated.

Signatures Title Date

/s/ Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.D. Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors December 20, 2013
Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.D.

/sl Gary B. Smith President, Chief Executive Officer and Director December 20, 2013

Gary B. Smith
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl James E. Moylan, Jr. Sr. Vice President, Finance and Chief Financialdeff December 20, 2013

James E. Moylan, Jr.
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Andrew C. Petrik Vice President, Controller December 20, 2013

Andrew C. Petrik
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/sl Harvey B. Cash Director December 20, 2013
Harvey B. Cash

/s/ Bruce L. Claflin Director December 20, 2013
Bruce L. Claflin

/sl Lawton W. Fitt Director December 20, 2013
Lawton W. Fitt
/sl Patrick T. Gallagher Director December 20, 2013

Patrick T. Gallagher

/s/ Judith M. O’Brien Director December 20, 2013
Judith M. O’Brien

/sl Michael J. Rowny Director December 20, 2013
Michael J. Rowny

94






Table of Contents

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Incorporated by Reference

Form and Filed
Exhibit Registration or Here-
Number Exhibit Description Commission No. Exhibit Filing Date with (X)
2.1 Amended & Restated Asset Sale Agreement by and gNortel 10-K (000- 2.1 12/22/2009
Networks Corporation, Nortel Networks Limited, NalriNetworks, 21969)
Inc. and certain other entities identified theraénsellers and Ciena
Corporation, dated as of November 24, 2009 (“Nok®A")+
2.2 Amendment No. 1 to Nortel ASA dated as of Decen¥h@009+ 10-K (000- 2.2 12/22/2009
21969)
2.3 Amendment No. 2 to Nortel ASA dated as of Decen#3r2009+ 10-Q (000- 2.1 3/5/2010
21969)
2.4 Amendment No. 3 to Nortel ASA dated as of March2@®10 10-Q (000- 2.1 6/10/2010
21969)
25 Amendment No. 4 to Nortel ASA dated as of March 26,0+ 10-Q (000- 2.2 6/10/2010
21969)
2.6 Amendment No. 5 to Nortel ASA dated as of March2®10+ 10-Q (000- 2.3 6/10/2010
21969)
2.7 Asset Sale Agreement (relating to the sale andhasee of certain 10-K (000- 2.3 12/22/2009
Nortel assets in Europe, the Middle East and Afrilgaand among 21969)
the Nortel affiliates, Joint Administrators andritdisraeli
Administrators named therein and Ciena Corporatiated as of
October 7, 2009 (“Nortel EMEA ASA™)+
2.8 Deed of Amendment, dated October 20, 2009, relatirtbe Nortel 10-K (000- 2.4 12/22/2009
EMEA ASA+ 21969)
29 Amending Agreement dated November 24, 2009 reldtirthe 10-K (000- 2.5 12/22/2009
Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
2.10 Amending Agreement dated December 16, 2009 relatinige 10-K (000- 2.6 12/22/2009
Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
2.11 Deed of Amendment (Amendment No. 4) dated Janugr2Q10 10-Q (000- 2.2 3/5/2010
relating to Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
2.12 Deed of Amendment (Amendment No. 5) dated Marct2090 10-Q (000- 2.4 6/10/2010
relating to Nortel EMEA ASA+ 21969)
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatio@iena 8-K (000- 3.1 3/27/2008
Corporation 21969)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ciena Corporation 8-K (000- 3.1 8/28/2008
21969)
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate 10-K (000- 4.1 12/27/2007
21969)
4.2 Indenture dated June 11, 2007 between Ciena Cdiqoend The 8-K (000- 4.7 6/12/2007
Bank of New York, as trustee, for 0.875% ConveetiBenior Notes 21969)

due 2017, including the Form of Global Note attachs Exhibit A
thereto
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Incorporated by Reference

Form and Filed
Exhibit Registration or Here-
Number Exhibit Description Commission No. Exhibit Filing Date with (X)
4.3 Indenture dated March 15, 2010 between Ciena Catiporand Th 8-K (000- 4.1 3/19/2010
Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, for 4.0% Cortiabe Senior 21969)
Notes due 2015, including the Form of Global Ndtached as
Exhibit A thereto
4.4 Indenture dated October 18, 2010 between Cienadtatipn and 8-K (000- 4.1 10/21/2010
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,tasstee, for 21969)
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2018, includiegForm of
Global Note attached as Exhibit A thereto
4.5 Indenture dated December 27, 2012 between Cienao@aiion and 8-K (000- 4.1 12/31/2012
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,tasstee, for 21969)
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2020, includirggFEorm of
Global Note attached as Exhibit A thereto
10.1 1999 Non-Officer Stock Option Plan and Form of Kt@ption 10-K (000- 10.22 12/10/1999
Agreement* 21969)
10.2 Amendment No. 1 to 1999 Non-Officer Stock OptioarPl 10-K (000- 10.25 12/13/2001
21969)
10.3 Catena Networks, Inc. 1998 Equity Incentive Planamended* 10-Q (000- 10.38 5/20/2004
21969)
10.4 Internet Photonics, Inc. Amended and Restated Zifporate 10-Q (000- 10.39 5/20/2004
Stock Option Plan* 21969)
10.5 Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (Amezhdnd 10-K (000- 10.37 12/11/2003
Restated ONI Systems Corp. 2000 Equity Incentiaa PI 21969)
10.6 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for executbficers 8-K (000- 10.1 11/4/2005
under Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for execaibfficers 8-K (000- 10.2 11/4/2005
under Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.8 Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreementdrecutive 8-K (000- 10.3 11/4/2005
officers under Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity IneenPlan* 21969)
10.9 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for directarsler Ciena 8-K (000- 104 11/4/2005
Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.10 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement faredtors under ~ 8-K (000- 10.5 11/4/2005
Ciena Corporation 2000 Equity Incentive Plan* 21969)
10.11 Amended and Restated 2003 Employee Stock Purchase P 8-K (000- 10.2 3/23/2012
21969)
10.12 1996 Outside Directors Stock Option Plan* S-1(33317729) 104 12/12/1996
10.13 Forms of 1996 Outside Directors Stock Option Agrerth S-1(33317729) 10.5 12/12/1996
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Incorporated by Reference

Form and Filed
Exhibit Registration or Here-
Number Exhibit Description Commission No. Exhibit Filing Date with (X)
10.14 Third Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan* S-1(33317729) 10.2 12/12/1996
10.15 Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan Foffamployee S-1 (33317729) 10.3 12/12/1996
Stock Option Agreement*
10.16 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan* 8-K (000- 10.1 3/27/2008
21969)
10.17 Amendment to Ciena Corporation 2008 Omnibus Ingerfilan* 8-K (000- 10.1 4/15/2010
21969)
10.18 Amendment to Ciena Corporation 2008 Omnibus Ingerfilan 8-K (000- 10.1 3/23/2012
dated March 21, 2012 21969)
10.19 Form of 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricted Stdoit 10-K (000- 10.18 12/22/2011
Agreement (Employee)* 21969)
10.20 Form of 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan Non-Qualifi¢dcR Option 10-Q (000- 10.2 6/4/2009
Agreement (Employee)* 21969)
10.21 Form of 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricted IStdwit 10-Q (000- 10.3 6/4/2009
Agreement (Director)* 21969)
10.22 World Wide Packets, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive PEmamended* S-8 (333- 10.1 3/4/2008
149520)
10.23 Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directorsdaaxecutive 10-Q (000- 10.1 3/3/2006
Officers* 21969)
10.24 Amended and Restated Change in Control Severanm@eimgnt 8-K (000- 10.1 11/01/2013
dated November 1, 2013, between Ciena CorporatidrGary B. 21969)
Smith*
10.25 Form of Amended and Restated Change in Controlr@ace 8-K (000- 10.2 11/01/2013
Agreement between Ciena and Executive Officers* 21969)
10.26 Ciena Corporation Directors Restricted Stock DefePlan* 10-Q (000- 10.1 8/31/2007
21969)
10.27 Ciena Corporation Amended and Restated IncentiveuB®lan, as 10-K (000- 10.26 12/22/2011
amended December 15, 2011* 21969)
10.28 Ciena Corporation 2010 Inducement Equity Award Plan 10-K (000- 10.35 12/22/2009
21969)
10.29 Form of 2010 Inducement Equity Award Plan Restdc&ock Unit 8-K (000- 10.2 3/25/2010
Agreement* 21969)
10.30 U.S. Executive Severance Benefit Plan* 10-Q (000- 10.1 6/9/2011
21969)
10.31 Lease Agreement dated as of March 19, 2010 bet@esTa 10-Q (000- 10.1 6/10/2010
Canada, Inc. and Nortel Networks Technology Corp.# 21969)
10.32 Lab 10 Lease Amending Agreement dated FebruarR®? 8-K (000- 1.1 2/15/2012
between Ciena Canada, Inc. and Public Works aneé@awent 21969)
Services Canada
10.33 Intellectual Property License Agreement dated ddarfch 19, 2010  10-Q (000- 10.3 6/10/2010
between Ciena Luxembourg S.a.r.l. and Nortel Neta/tuimited# 21969)
10.34 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Enrollment Agreement* 10-K (000- 10.33 12/22/2011
21969)
10.35 Amended & Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plaual diéarch 8-K (000- 10.2 3/23/2012
21,2012 21969)
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10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

12.1

21.1

Lease Agreement dated November 3, 2011 betweeraCien
Corporation and W2007 RDG Realty, L.L.C.

ABL Credit Agreement, dated August 13, 2012, by antbng
Ciena Corporation, Ciena Communications, Inc. aimh&Canada,
Inc., as the borrowers, the lenders party thei2¢oitsche Bank AG
New York Branch, as administrative agent and cefkdtagent,
Bank of America, N.A., as syndication agent, and¢4m Stanley
Senior Funding, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, Natioksdociation,
as co-documentation agents +

Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated August 2422b6¢% and
among Ciena Corporation, Ciena Communications,dnd.Ciena
Canada, Inc., as the borrowers, and Deutsche B&nhkléw York
Branch, as administrative agent +

Security Agreement, dated August 13, 2012, by andng Ciena
Corporation and Ciena Communications, Inc., agasss, and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as collaterahage

Pledge Agreement, dated August 13, 2012, by andhgr@oena
Corporation and Ciena Communications, Inc., asgaes| and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as collateranagad
pledgee +

U.S. Guaranty, dated August 13, 2012, by and an@bega
Corporation and Ciena Communications, Inc., asantars, and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as administrasigent +

Canadian Security Agreement, dated August 13, 204 and
between Ciena Canada, Inc., as assignor, and DeuBank AG
New York Branch, as collateral agent +

Canadian Guaranty, dated August 13, 2012, by atvdelea Ciena
Canada, Inc., as guarantor, and Deutsche Bank AG Yk
Branch, as administrative agent +

Second Lease Amending Agreement dated August 238 BQ and
between Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canasi®epresented
by the Minister of Public Works and Government $&s, as
landlord, and Ciena Canada, Inc., as tenant (a)

Omnibus Second Amendment to Credit Agreement ared Fi
Amendment to U.S. Security Agreement, Canadian i8gcu
Agreement, U.S. Pledge Agreement, U.S. GuarantyCamadian
Guaranty, entered into as of March 5, 2013, byandng Ciena
Corporation, Ciena Communications, Inc., Ciena @anic., and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch (a)

Joinder Agreement under Credit Agreement and Rlate
Agreements as of March 15, 2013 by and betweenaCien
Government Solutions, Inc. and Deutsche Bank AG Nevk
Branch, as Administrative Agent and as Collatergé#t, for the
benefit of the Secured Creditors (a)

Omnibus Second Amendment to Credit Agreement ared Fi
Amendment to U.S. Security Agreement, Canadian i8gcu
Agreement, U.S. Pledge Agreement, U.S. GuarantyCamadian
Guaranty, entered into as of March 5, 2013, byandng Ciena
Corporation, Ciena Communications, Inc., Ciena @an#c., and
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch (b)

Computation of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of registrant

10-K (000- 10.34
219609)

10-Q (000- 10.1
219609)

10-Q (000- 10.2
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.3
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.4
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.5
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.6
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.7
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.1
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.1
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.2
21969)

10-Q (000- 10.2
21969)

12/22/2011

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/5/2012

9/11/2013

6/12/2013

6/12/2013

3/13/2013



23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCF

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRE

Consent of Independent Registered Puld@oninting Firm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer PursuantRule 13a-14
(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 aspet]
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer PursuantRule 13a-14(a)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as Adbptasuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuaott8 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@i6eoBarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@iéeoBarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Doent
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Lirdde Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbaseoent
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* Represents management contract or comperyspl@m or arrangement

+ Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation Se&rtain schedules and exhibits referenced inahie tof contents have been omitted.
Ciena hereby agrees to furnish supplementally & obpny omitted exhibit or schedule to the SECrupquest. In addition,
representations and warranties included in thesseatents, as amended, were made by the partie® tanmther in connection
with a negotiated transaction. These representtiod warranties were made as of specific datésfanpurposes of these
agreements and for the benefit of the parties thefdese representations and warranties werecubjemportant exceptions and
limitations agreed upon by the parties, includiegng qualified by confidential disclosures, madetfe purposes of allocating
contractual risk between the parties rather thtaibéishing these matters as facts. These agreemenfded with this report only to
provide investors with information regarding itsms and conditions, and not to provide any othetufa information regarding
Ciena or any other party thereto. Accordingly, stees should not rely on the representations anrdanwties contained in these
agreements or any description thereof as charaatemns of the actual state of facts or conditibary party, its subsidiaries or
affiliates. The information in these agreementausthbe considered together with Ciena’s public repfiled with the SEC.

# Certain portions of these documents have begtied based on a request for confidential treatnsubmitted to the SEC. The non-
public information that has been omitted from théseuments has been separately filed with the &ac€h redacted portion of
these documents is indicated by a “[*]” and is s@bjo the request for confidential treatment stteuito the SEC. The redacted
information is confidential information of the Rsggiant.
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EXHIBIT 12.1

Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Bied Charges

Year Ended October 31,

2011 2012 2013

Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations $ (187,84) $ (134,69) $ (80,19)
Fixed charges:

Interest expense 37,92¢ 39,65 44,04

Portion of rental expense representative of@stefactor 8,421 7,14¢ 7,66¢

Total fixed charges 46,34 46,80: 51,70¢
Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operationssgdixed charges $ (14150) $ (87,89) $ (28,48Y
Ratio of losses to fixed charges (1) $ — % —  $ —

(1) Pre-tax losses from continuing operations fiked charges were inadequate to cover total fotearges.



EXHIBIT 21.1

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incomation or Organization

Ciena Communications, Inc. Delesv



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-33831, 333-30900, 333-72474, 333-
91294, 333-102462, 333-103328, 333-113872, 333-87,5233-121110, 333-123509, 333-123510, 333-1495284149929, 333-163927, 333
166125, 333-180332 and 333-180333) and on FornfN$3333-108476 and 333-149519) of Ciena Corpaomatioour report dated

December 20, 2013 relating to the financial statesiand the effectiveness of internal control direxncial reporting, which appears in this
Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
December 20, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1
CIENA CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Gary B. Smith, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Ciena Goapion;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentihisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportth@t occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anlalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitifethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 20, 2013

/sl Gary B. Smith
Gary B. Smith
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CIENA CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

[, James E. Moylan Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Ciena Goapion;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentihisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportth@t occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anlalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitifethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 20, 2013

/sl James E. Moylan Jr.
James E. Moylan Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CIENA CORPORATION

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Office€®na Corporation (the “Company”), hereby ceetifthat, to his knowledge, on the date

hereof:
(a) the Report on Form 10-K of the Company forythar ended October 31, 2013 filed on the date heritlo the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S¢iesrExchange Act of 1934; and

(b) information contained in the Report fairly peass, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the

Company.

/sl Gary B. Smith

Gary B. Smith
President and Chief Executive Officer

December 20, 2013

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticatiegnowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within thetetamic version of this written statement requibsdSection 906, has been provided to Ciena
Corporation and will be retained by Ciena Corporatind furnished to the Securities and Exchangendission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2
CIENA CORPORATION

Written Statement of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Office€@&na Corporation (the “Company”), hereby ceesfihat, to his knowledge, on the date
hereof:

(a) the Report on Form 10-K of the Company forythar ended October 31, 2013 filed on the date heritlo the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S¢iegrExchange Act of 1934; and

(b) information contained in the Report fairly peass, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/sl James E. Moylan Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
December 20, 2013

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticategnowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within thetetamic version of this written statement requibydSection 906, has been provided to Ciena
Corporation and will be retained by Ciena Corpamtind furnished to the Securities and Exchangenission or its staff upon request.



